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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This annual report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Report”) and the documents incorporated herein by reference 
contain forward-looking statements as defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements 
are based on the beliefs and assumptions of management. Although Porch Group, Inc. believes that its plans, intentions 
and expectations reflected in or suggested by these forward-looking statements are reasonable, the Company cannot 
assure you that it will achieve or realize these plans, intentions or expectations. Forward-looking statements are 
inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Generally, statements that are not historical facts, including 
statements concerning the Company’s possible or assumed future actions, business strategies, events or results of 
operations, are forward-looking statements. These statements may be preceded by, followed by or include the words 
“believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “plans,” “scheduled,” 
“anticipates” or “intends” or similar expressions. 

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance. You should not put undue reliance on these 
statements which speak only as of the date hereof. Unless specifically indicated otherwise, the forward-looking 
statements in this Annual Report do not reflect the potential impact of any divestitures, mergers, acquisitions, or other 
business combinations that have not been completed as of the date of this filing. You should understand that the 
following important factors, among others, could affect the Company’s future results and could cause those results or 
other outcomes to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the Company’s forward-looking statements: 

• our expansion plans and opportunities and our ability to effectively manage our growth and integration of 
completed acquisitions, maintain and enhance our existing and recently acquired brands, to build a leading 
consumer brand; 

• the incidence, frequency and severity of weather events, extensive wildfires, and other catastrophes, particularly 
occurring where Porch has a concentration of homeowners insurance policyholders, or that adversely impact 
consumer confidence and spending behavior in the industries we serve; 

• changes in economic conditions, especially those affecting the housing and financial markets and the volume of 
home purchases, mortgage and home refinancing activity, mortgage interest rates, credit availability, real estate 
prices, inflation, fears of recession and consumer confidence; 

• our future financial performance, including our expectations regarding our revenue, cost of revenue, operating 
expenses, and our ability to achieve and maintain future profitability; 

• existing and developing federal and state laws and regulations, including with respect to insurance, warranty, 
privacy, information security, data protection and taxation, and our ability to interpret and comply with such 
laws and regulations; 

• our reinsurance program, which includes the use of a captive reinsurer, the success of which is dependent on a 
number of factors outside our control, including, but not limited to, continued access to financial solutions, a 
favorable regulatory environment, and our overall tax position;  

• our reliance on reinsurance, which exposes us to counterparty risk, and the condition of the reinsurance market 
effecting the pricing and availability of reinsurance, which in a hardening market causes Porch to carry more 
risk and pay more for reinsurance coverage to adequately protect us against losses; 

• uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, insurance products, license 
applications, acquisitions of businesses or strategic initiatives, including our planned formation of the reciprocal 
exchange, and other matters within the purview of insurance regulators; 

• our reliance on strategic, proprietary relationships to provide us with access to personal data and product 
information, and our ability to use such information and data to increase our transaction volume and attract and 
retain customers; 
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• our ability to develop new, or enhance existing, products, services, and features and bring them to market in a 
timely manner; 

• changes in capital requirements, and our ability to access capital when needed to provide statutory surplus; 

• the increased costs and initiatives required to address new legal and regulatory requirements arising from 
developments related to cybersecurity, privacy and data governance and the increased costs and initiatives to 
protect against data breaches, cyber-attacks, virus or malware attacks, or other infiltrations or incidents 
affecting system integrity, availability and performance; 

• our ability to attract and retain employees with necessary skills and experience; and 

• costs related to being a public company. 

We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. 

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We have based the forward-
looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K primarily on our current expectations and projections 
about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and 
prospects. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties, and 
other factors, including those described in Item 1A. Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We 
disclaim any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether in response to new information, 
future events, or otherwise, except as required by applicable law. 

NOTE REGARDING INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA 
 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains market data and industry statistics and forecasts that are based on 
independent industry publications and other publicly available information. Although we believe these sources are 
reliable, we do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of this information and we have not independently verified 
this information. In addition, the market and industry data and forecasts included in this report may involve estimates, 
assumptions and other risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including those 
discussed in Item 1 A. Risk Factors contained in this report. Accordingly, investors should not place undue reliance on 
this information. 
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PART I 

Item 1. Business 

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this section to “we,” “our,” “us,” the “Company”, “Porch 
Group” or “Porch” generally refer to Porch Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

Company Overview 

Overview 

Who We Are 

Porch Group is a leading vertical software company reinventing the home services and insurance industries. Porch 
Group’s mission is to partner with home service companies and together, delight homeowners from moving to 
improving and everything in between, Porch Group provides software and services to approximately 30,900 companies 
and small businesses, such as home inspectors, mortgage companies and loan officers, title companies, moving 
companies, real estate agencies, utility companies, roofers, insurance agencies, and others. Porch Group helps these 
service providers grow their business and improve their customer experience. Through these companies, Porch Group 
also gets introduced to their customers to help with other services, including insurance, to make the move and home 
maintenance simpler. 

Porch Group makes the moving process easier for homebuyers by helping them save time and make better decisions 
about critical services, including insurance, warranty, moving, security, TV/Internet, home repair and improvement. The 
Company provides home and personal property insurance policies through its own underwriting operations in 21 states 
and across the U.S. with its wholly-owned Insurance Agency. 

Our multi-faceted value proposition resonates with a broad customer demographic, regardless of home price, 
income level, geographic location or age. We acquire our customers through a variety of channels, including at the time 
of a real estate transaction through third parties, direct-to-consumer (“DTC”), and leads from other Porch Group 
businesses.  

Porch Group has two reportable segments: the Vertical Software segment and the Insurance segment. 

Porch Group’s Vertical Software segment provides software and services to home services companies. Through 
these relationships, Porch earns fees, and gains a competitive advantage through unique and early access to homebuyers 
and homeowners. This early access allows Porch to assist homebuyers and homeowners with critical moving services. In 
turn, Porch’s platform drives demand for other services. The Vertical Software segment has three types of customers: 
(1) home services companies, such as home inspectors, mortgage companies and loan officers, and title companies, for 
whom Porch provides software and services to help them make their businesses run more efficiently and grow; 
(2) consumers, such as homebuyers and homeowners, whom Porch assists with the comparison and provision of various 
home services, such as moving, security, TV/Internet, and home repair and improvement; and (3) service providers, such 
as moving companies, security companies, title companies, mortgage companies and TV/Internet providers, who pay 
Porch for new customer sign-ups. 

Porch Group’s Insurance segment offers various property-related insurance policies through our risk-bearing carrier, 
independent agency, and risk-bearing home warranty companies. We earn insurance policy premiums collected from 
insured homeowners for our insurance products, policy fees when policies are sold and renewed, and commissions when 
we cede premiums to reinsurance companies. Additionally, when we sell a homeowner an insurance policy through a 
carrier other than our own, these third-party insurance companies pay new business and renewal commissions to Porch’s 
insurance agency. The Insurance segment also includes home warranty, from which Porch receives premiums paid by 
homeowners for Porch’s home warranty products. 

Porch Group operates under several brands in both the Vertical Software and Insurance segments, such as: 

• Vertical Software segment: 
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o Porch, the overarching brand for our consumer experience, including helping consumers with their move 
and ongoing services for their homes,  

o Floify, a point-of-sale (”POS”) software for mortgage companies and loan officers for engaging their 
customers and helping them through the loan process, 

o HireAHelperTM, provides software and demand for moving companies, 

o Home Inspector Pro (“HIP”) and Palm-Tech, are easy-to-use mobile home inspection report writing tools, 

o Inspection Support Network (“ISN”), provides Porch’s enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) and customer 
relationship management (“CRM”) software for inspectors, 

o iRoofing LLC (“iRoofing”), provides measurement software for roofers, 

o Rynoh, is a financial management and fraud prevention software for title and real estate companies, and 

o Porch Group Media, provides audiences, media execution, and analytics to support brands to complete 
more effective marketing to movers and homeowners. 

• Insurance segment: 

o American Home Protect (“AHP”) and Residential Warranty Services (“RWS”) are providers of home 
warranty policies and services, 

o Elite Insurance Group, (“EIG”) is Porch’s licensed insurance agency, 

o Homeowners of America (“HOA”) is Porch’s insurance managing general agency and licensed property 
and casualty insurance carrier operating in 21 states, and 

o Porticus Reinsurance Ltd. (“Porticus Re”), the Company’s wholly owned captive insurer that provides 
reinsurance for Homeowners of America Insurance Company (HOAIC), HOA's licensed insurance carrier. 

The Porch Platform 

Porch Group provides software and services to home services companies, and, through these relationships, gains a 
competitive advantage through unique and early access to homebuyers and homeowners, as well as unique insights to 
property data. Porch then assists homebuyers and homeowners with critical services such as insurance and moving. In 
turn, Porch’s platform drives demand back to companies using Porch’s software as part of our value proposition. 
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Software and Services for Home Services Companies 

Porch Group’s platform provides home services companies with software and services to help them grow their 
business and provide a better customer experience. This value proposition can be divided into three components. 

First, Porch Group offers industry-leading vertical-specific software that includes a wide range of functionality 
required by home services companies, e.g., home inspectors, mortgage companies, title companies, roofers, and moving 
services providers to run a successful business. These software solutions, which vary by industry, include features such 
as configurable dashboards, calendars and scheduling, online booking, payment processing, dispatch and routing 
optimization, customer relations and communications, point of sale interfaces, flexible reporting, industry integrations, 
report writing, quoting and more. Companies use this software for their customers and transactions, managing their 
employees and tracking their partners. The depth of functionality varies among industry-specific products. Because this 
software is used in so many aspects of day-to-day management by home services companies such as home inspectors, 
Porch sees high retention rates among our software customers. 

Second, Porch offers a concierge service that home services companies can then offer to their end customers to 
improve the moving and home improvement experience. Porch’s Moving Concierge service assists the home services 
company’s end customer with the remaining aspects of their move and, in the future, with ongoing home maintenance. 
through the use of a customer self-service dashboard in which the customer manages their moving “to do” list.  In 
addition, a Moving Concierge representative will contact the customer to talk about their home inspection, answer 
questions, collect a review for the company, and chart out all upcoming services with which Porch can assist, including 
comparing prices and making decisions about critical services such as insurance (as both a licensed, nationwide 
insurance agent and a carrier in certain states), moving, security, and TV/Internet. Porch’s Moving Concierge service 
creates a positive end-customer experience that can benefit the home services company.  In 2022, Porch launched the 
Porch smartphone app to enhance and expand the customer experience and home-related features, including recall 
monitoring for appliances and other systems, as well as to do lists for ongoing home projects. 
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Third, Porch can help home services companies grow their business through new customer acquisition. Porch does 
this through its various digital and concierge experiences and marketing solutions. Home services companies can pay for 
Porch’s software and specific modules with business-to-business (“B2B”) SaaS fees. Through a variety of products 
Porch can also get introduced to these companies’ consumers who are often in the process of buying a home. This allows 
Porch Group to generate business-to-business-to-customer (“B2B2C”) transaction fees by offering high-value products 
and services such as insurance or warranty contracts to these end customers. We believe the combination of B2B SaaS 
fees and B2B2C transaction revenue is compelling; it allows Porch Group to achieve a very strong home services 
company lifetime value to acquisition cost ratio. 

Consumer Services 

Porch Group connects consumers with home services companies nationwide and offers a full range of products and 
services where homeowners can, among other things: (1) compare and buy home insurance and warranty policies (along 
with auto, flood and umbrella policies from third party carriers) with competitive rates and coverage; (2) arrange for 
moving labor to load or unload a truck or full-service, long-distance movers; (3) discover and install home automation 
and security systems; (4) compare and purchase Internet and television options for their new home; (5) book small 
handyman jobs at fixed, upfront prices, and more. 

Our initial focus is on the move stage of the homeowner’s journey given the concentration of high-value services 
that are purchased during this time. According to a survey conducted by OnePoll, moving was one of the most highly 
stressful moments in a consumer’s life. Across each of these services, Porch helps the consumer quickly and easily select 
the right products for them. For example, after helping the consumer quickly compare a large set of options for 
homeowner’s insurance for their new home, we will bind coverage as a licensed insurance agent and connect it to the 
homebuyer’s mortgage. In the 21 states where we operate as a carrier, we can offer consumers our own homeowners 
insurance products. Additionally, Porch offers home warranty products to protect critical systems and appliances 
typically not covered under homeowners’ insurance. 

Upon engaging with the homeowner at the move stage and thereafter, we broaden the scope of our engagement by 
providing consumers with tools and resources to help make homeownership easy.  Porch’s smartphone app provides 
recall monitoring for appliances and other home systems, as well as to do list tracking, which information we seek to 
obtain from the home inspection report when applicable. Homeowners can use Porch to find local professionals to 
complete most types of home maintenance, repair and improvement projects. Professionals can create profiles on 
Porch.com, but we also partner with large service provider companies and large networks of service providers, allowing 
us to provide assistance to consumers most efficiently. 

Our Industry 

The home is foundational to the American experience. According to data from the National Association of Realtors 
and the U.S. Census Bureau, there were 5.03 million existing homes sold and approximately 644,000 newly constructed 
homes sold in the United States in 20221. The U.S. home services market is composed of millions of companies, the 
majority of which are small businesses operating in fragmented markets, according to the U.S. Small Business 
Administration Office of Advocacy. For consumers, moving and maintenance can be full of pitfalls and headaches. 
Porch Group seeks to simplify the home and homeownership by providing software and services to home services 
companies and connecting homeowners to high-quality services throughout the home lifecycle. In doing so, Porch Group 
conducts its business across a broad total addressable market (“TAM”) beyond its software and service offerings, 
consisting of moving services, property and casualty (“P&C”) insurance, contractor services, and mover marketing with 
an estimated total value of $362 billion. This TAM is based on the services Porch offers today, with ample opportunity 
for expansion of Porch’s U.S. addressable market.  

 
1 National Association of Realtors 2022 December Existing Home Sales. 
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A summary of the TAM by significant type of service is as follows (see sections below for the details): 

  TAM 
      (in billions) 
Services:    

Contractor services  $  195.0 
Property and casualty insurance and home warranty    149.7 
Mover marketing    10.8 
Moving services    4.7 

Total revenue  $  360.2 
 
Property and Casualty (P&C) Insurance and Home Warranty 

Through its wholly-owned licensed insurance agency, EIG, Porch Group serves customers in the P&C home, auto, 
flood, and umbrella insurance market, selling third-party insurance policies in all 50 states. In addition, Porch Group 
operates a risk-bearing insurance carrier, HOA, a leading property and casualty insurance company focused on products 
in the residential homeowner space. Based on U.S. home insurance annual revenues of $120 billion plus U.S. auto 
insurance annual revenues of $252 billion, we believe the P&C home and auto insurance TAM is approximately 
$145 billion.2 In the second quarter of 2022, Porch Group began operating a wholly-owned captive reinsurer, Porticus 
Re, which seeks to efficiently reinsure Porch Group affiliates. 

 
With the acquisitions of AHP and RWS, the Company now operates its own home warranty business, which market 

is estimated to be worth $4.7 billion for the combined home warranty and utility service line3. 
 
Moving Services 

Porch Group provides three primary moving services that support homeowners during the moving process: direct 
moving services, security installations, TV/Internet and solar installations. Based on U.S. Census Bureau data and 
company estimates, we believe the overall addressable opportunity for us in these three service offerings in the U.S. to 
be approximately $4.7 billion. 

Contractor Services 

Contractor services is another large portion of Porch Group’s TAM with an estimated size of approximately 
$195 billion. This estimate is based on our estimate of a greater than $650 billion valuation of the home improvement 
market. 

Mover Marketing 

Mover Marketing represents Porch Group’s opportunity to sell marketing technology and services that help 
advertisers retain existing customers and attract new customers at key moments in the homeownership journey, such as 
during the home buying process.  We estimate this TAM in the U.S. as $10.8 billion. 
 
Trends and Growth in the Housing and Home Maintenance Sectors 

Home Sales 

As a home services platform that provides core software and services to approximately 30,900 companies and small 
businesses, Porch Group’s revenue is in part linked to the volume of home sales. Throughout 2022, the U.S housing 
market was impacted by a rapid increase in interest rates, increased home sales prices, and general economic uncertainty, 
which resulted in a 17.8% decrease in existing home sales volumes. For the full year, 2022, the volume of existing home 

 
2 According to IBISWorld 2021 full year data. 
3 According to IBISWorld and company management estimates. 
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sales volumes totaled 5.03 million, per the National Association of Realtors. Aside from these headwinds to the housing 
market in 2022, America has historically been a very mobile country, with the average American homeowner moving 
once every 10 years, according to the National Association of Realtors. 

Approximately 20% of our revenue is directly related to housing market transactions, primarily from moving 
services. 

Buying a Home and Moving Is Complex 

Moving is considered one of the most stressful life events. A growing list of factors go into choosing a home, 
including, but not limited to, home affordability, safety, quality of schools and proximity to parks, recreational facilities, 
health centers and outdoor space. When purchasers do find the right home, they might face a competitive process where 
their bid is ultimately rejected. Once their bid is accepted, home buyers typically get a home inspection and must finalize 
their mortgage by meeting lender requirements including getting homeowners insurance. 

With the house purchase offer accepted and home inspection completed, homebuyers then must deal with the 
complexity of and logistics of moving. Pre-move considerations include, but are not limited to, researching moving 
services, visiting new communities, booking rentals, reserving storage units, coordinating with movers on packing, 
transferring utilities, home cleaning, completing a change of address, purchasing home insurance, and purchasing a 
home warranty. Within the moving company market alone, according to the American Trucking Associations, in 2021, 
there were over 16,500 moving and storage businesses to choose from. Post-move considerations include, but are not 
limited to, unpacking, cleaning the new house, scheduling essential home improvements listed in the inspection report, 
changing locks, transferring medical records, registering vehicles, purchasing Internet and setting up a security system. 
All of these considerations make moving a stressful and arduous process. 

Porch Group strives to make the move simpler through its Moving Concierge and related services. Homebuyers 
using Porch Group’s self-service dashboard can facilitate the purchasing of insurance, compare prices for movers, 
provision other move-related services, and manage their moving checklist.  

Increasing Home Improvement Spending 

After helping consumers with their move, Porch Group stays in touch with the homeowner to help with home 
management, and all maintenance and improvement projects. We expect that the continued growth of the home 
improvement spending market will impact Porch Group’s future revenues. 

According to Houzz market research reports, over half of homeowners plans to tackle a home renovation project in 
2022, and median spend on renovation projects was $18,000. Porch Group helps make the process of finding a vetted 
professional for these projects easy, while offering transparent pricing. 

According to Technavio, online on-demand home services are expected to grow at a compounded annual growth 
rate of over 61% from 2022 to 2027. The digitally minded millennial and Gen Z generations are driving this trend, 
entering the home ownership market and hiring home services professionals online. Home service professionals 
experiencing the benefits and scalability of connecting and engaging with consumers online, including reaching wider or 
targeted audiences, improving conversion rates, reducing acquisition costs, and tracking performance of marketing 
investments, are expected to invest more into digital offerings over time. 

Our Competitive Strengths 

Leading Software with approximately 30,900 Companies and Small Businesses across a Diverse Set of Industries 

Porch Group owns several leading software platform brands including ISN, Palm-Tech, and Home Inspector Pro for 
home inspectors, Floify for mortgage companies and loan officers, Rynoh for title companies, HireAHelperTM for 
moving companies, and iRoofing for roofers. Porch Group provides software that helps these companies manage and 
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grow their business such as CRM, ERP and POS modules to approximately 30,900 companies and small businesses 
across a number of home services verticals utilizing these various software brands. 

Early Access to Demand 

Porch Group’s early access to homebuyers through companies using Porch’s software allows us to connect with 
homebuyers before others and assist in their moving journey prior to completing many large purchasing decisions. Porch 
Group receives access to these homebuyers through the Porch software platform from the various verticals utilizing 
Porch’s various software brands. In addition, in certain verticals such as home inspection, companies may provide Porch 
with access and an introduction to the consumer; here Porch generates additional revenue via B2B2C transactions. This 
gives Porch the opportunity to market and offer services to these customers up to and before six weeks in advance of 
their move. Porch’s customer access model represents an extremely valuable marketing tool and customer acquisition 
platform for home services providers, who typically rely on a change of address request that occurs near the end of the 
moving journey to reach out to homebuyers. 

Porch Group’s software for home inspectors is the software of choice for a significant portion of inspection 
companies including most of the largest inspection companies in the U.S. Based on our estimates, these inspection 
companies complete more than 40% of U.S. home inspections through Porch Group’s software and services. 

Through research and development, Porch Group continues to invest in and strengthen the software advantage of its 
software offerings. Moreover, we expect to increase the percentage of U.S. homebuyers available through its customer 
access model through the broad rollout of the Porch smartphone app, expanding sales efforts, and by developing new 
products and tools for its current verticals. 

Proprietary Data and Analytics 

Through the services it offers, Porch Group has access to a trove of proprietary data on homebuyers and their 
homes. For example, Porch Group has access to home inspection reports and the data these provide around the home. 
Using this homebuyer and home data, Porch intends to continue its investment in data science and analytics to better 
price insurance policies, provide more convenient services to homebuyers and improve service provider marketing 
opportunities. For example, Porch believes that its data can improve our pricing algorithms for homeowners insurance to 
lower prices for low-risk homes, as well as help improve Porch’s ability to predict a variety of events, including the 
timing and likelihood of specific purchase decisions around the home, a mover’s likelihood of switching insurance 
carriers or the probability and severity of home insurance and home warranty claims. Porch Group Media provides 
software and data solutions to help brands and small and medium-sized businesses acquire new customers and improve 
their marketing. 

Comprehensive Service Offering 

Porch Group offers a unique breadth and depth of home services that span the entire homeownership experience 
from the move to ongoing maintenance. Not only are we able to help a consumer with the services they need at any point 
in their journey with their home, but also by going deeper into select services such as insurance, warranty, moving, and 
handyman services, we are able to improve the consumer experience and capture more value. This ability to create value 
from consumers allows Porch to offer a unique and strong value proposition to companies that provide access to their 
customers. Because we are able to drive value to the companies that use our products and services, we believe we are 
more easily able to attract new business partners, which then enables us to continue our investments in product 
development and customer support to ensure we sustain our competitive advantage. 

Our Strategies for Growth 

Porch Group’s strategy is to provide home service professionals with the tools they need to run a successful 
business, gain early access to homebuyers, and utilize proprietary data on homebuyers and their homes. We believe that 
this combination of products, services and data, and customer access can help Porch build fast-growing and healthy 
homeowners insurance and warranty businesses, and make homeownership simpler. Through this strategy, we anticipate 
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growth in many areas: by selling software to more companies, by adding more software modules for companies, by 
getting access to more consumers at key moments in time, by selling more services to each consumer, and generating 
more revenue per service sold. Within insurance specifically, we are able to utilize the proprietary data across all 
platforms of software aiming to enhance revenue and effectiveness of risk management.  We have and will continue to 
grow through geographic expansion, which efforts have expanded our homeowners insurance offerings from 6 to 21 
states over the past 2 years. We intend to continue focusing on growth that will positively impact long-term shareholder 
value through the following strategies: 
 
Sell More Software and Gain Access to More Homebuyers 

Porch Group’s software not only generates B2B SaaS-like fees, but it also serves as a low-cost customer acquisition 
tool that drives growth through expanded homebuyer access. Porch Group intends to expand its B2B SaaS fees and 
homeowner access by: 

• Increasing the number of software customers organically through expanded sales and marketing efforts and 
inorganically through acquisitions. 

• Upselling into these software customers additional modules for B2B SaaS fees. 

• Continuing to develop long-term relationships with software customers, while increasing B2B SaaS fees as we 
helps these software customers grow their business. 

• Increasing the percentage of software customers that grant access rights to their consumers. In some verticals, 
such as mortgage, this is a strategic benefit to our software customer as they are able to seamlessly provide 
insurance solutions to the borrower, who will be required to purchase insurance during the mortgage process.  
We believe this value-added service approach can increase a loan officer’s close rate, reduce time to close and 
improve the homebuying experience for the homebuyer. 

Increase Revenue per Homebuyer 

Porch Group intends to capitalize on its expanded homebuyer access by increasing the revenue generated from each 
homebuyer by: 

• Improving the digital shopping experience for consumers who prefer to shop for moving solutions, home 
maintenance providers, and insurance and warranty policies online. 

• Increasing the percentage of individuals with access rights that are called, contacted, and engaged by the 
Company’s Moving Concierge call center team. 

• Making available additional high-margin services for these homebuyers, such as solar installation and 
increasing the market access for certain services only offered in select geographies, such as the Company’s 
insurance and home warranty solutions. 

• Increasing conversion and take rates of both existing and new services by offering more services, such as 
offering home warranty contracts in parallel with providing homeowner insurance quotes, to incentivize 
customers to not leave the Porch Group ecosystem. 

Continued Expansion of Insurance and Warranty Offerings 

EIG, a wholly owned subsidiary of Porch, is an insurance agency that is currently licensed in all 50 states. By 
acquiring Homeowners of America in 2021, Porch expanded from solely operating an insurance agency to pricing and 
underwriting its own homeowners insurance products. By doing so, Porch intends to capitalize on the underwriting 
advantage provided by its unique insights into properties and homebuyers. In addition, HOA cedes some insurance 
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premiums, thus reducing earnings volatility and the capital required for the insurance carrier. Potential growth 
opportunities for Porch’s insurance business include expanding from the 21 states where it operates HOA, and adding 
more insurance carriers as partners.  

Porch collects proprietary data on households through the software platforms homeowners use to access handyman, 
inspection and other services. The insurance division uses this proprietary data to add efficiency in the underwriting and 
sales process, leading to increased revenue. 

On September 9, 2021, Porch completed its acquisition of AHP, a Texas-based provider of whole home warranty 
policies across the U.S. AHP utilizes a direct-to-consumer model to acquire customers for their multi-year warranty 
plans. 

On April 1, 2022, Porch acquired RWS, one of the key companies operating in the home inspection space, providing 
CRM software, recall check software, and specific inspection-centric warranties to more than 1,000 home inspection 
companies. The business also distributes full annual home warranty products through real estate agents across the 
country, which helps us move our warranty business and strategy forward. 

Mover Marketing 

Today, companies of all shapes and sizes advertise to movers through direct mail after the consumers have moved 
into their new home and change their address with the United States Postal Service. Through Porch Group’s early access 
to homebuyers, the Company helps homebuyers obtain earlier access to discounts and promotions that are typically 
made available to movers, through its leading consumer data and analytics platform. 

Geographic Expansion 

Porch Group currently conducts the vast majority of its business in the United States and a small portion in Canada. 
While the Company expects to remain focused on the U.S. market for the next several years, in the future Porch may 
expand internationally into Europe, Australia, and other markets where the home sales market operates similarly to the 
U.S. Within the United States, Porch operates nationwide and has opportunity to expand its insurance operations and 
offerings across more of the U.S. markets. 

Revenue 

Porch generates revenue in three ways: (i) insurance revenue in the form of insurance and warranty premiums, 
ceding commissions, policy fees, commissions from reinsurers and other insurance-related fees generated through its 
own insurance carriers, as well as commissions from third-party insurance carriers where Porch acts as an independent 
agent; (ii) predominantly recurring software and service subscription revenue generated from fees paid by companies for 
access to Porch’s software and provision of services, (iii) reoccurring B2B2C transaction revenues for move-related 
services through fees received for connecting homeowners to a variety of service providers during the time of move; and 
business-to-consumer (“B2C”) transaction revenues from post-move services in the form of fees earned from 
introducing homeowners to home service professionals, including handyman, plumbers, electricians, roofers, etc. 

Insurance Segment 

Homeowners insurance and home warranty, which form Porch Group’s Insurance segment, are our largest and 
fastest growing revenue streams.  Where Porch underwrites its own insurance or warranty product, premiums are 
recognized over the life of the policy and reoccur at a high rate as the policyholder renews. In certain portions of 
business sold by EIG on behalf of third-party insurers, Porch recognizes the estimated lifetime value (“LTV”) of 
commissions Porch receives from insurance carriers for each new sale to a policyholder which are paid in the first year 
and each subsequent year that the policyholder renews.  The vast majority of Porch’s insurance and warranty revenue is 
recurring revenue recognized annually as customers renew. A portion of the warranty contracts are a 3-year term, and 
those revenues are recognized over the term of the contract. 
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In 2022, revenue from our insurance and warranty offerings was $121.0 million or 44% of total revenue. 

Vertical Software Segment 

Most companies that use Porch’s software and services pay Porch monthly or annual fees on a combination of per 
user, per organization and/or volume of transactions. In addition, in certain verticals such as home inspection, companies 
may provide Porch with access and an introduction to the consumer; here Porch generates additional revenue via B2B2C 
transactions. Because of the volume and value of services needed when purchasing a home, getting access to consumers 
increases revenue per company. 

For our move-related services, we generate B2B2C transaction revenue, which includes commissions and fees 
related to the sale of services such as moving services, security, or TV/Internet, as well as fees earned from providing 
services directly to homeowners. Revenue for B2B2C transactions, excluding Insurance and Warranty, generally follow 
the seasonality of both existing home sales and home projects, with more revenue concentrated in the second and third 
quarters rather than the first and fourth quarters. 

Post-move revenue is generated by the Company connecting third-party service providers with homeowners that 
meet pre-defined criteria and who may be looking for relevant services. Transaction revenue for post-move services 
include monthly fees from contractors as well as per lead, per appointment and per job fees paid by contractors and 
partners to Porch when we provide customer demand. 

In 2022, revenue from our software and subscription services was $72.8 million or 26% of total revenue, and 
revenue from move-related and post-move services, was $82.1 million or 30% of total revenue (majority being from 
move-related). 

Sales and Marketing 

We sell our software and services to companies using a variety of sales and marketing tactics. We have teams of 
inside sales representatives organized by vertical market who engaged directly with companies. We have enterprise sales 
teams that target the large named accounts in each of our vertical markets. In addition, our underwritten insurance 
business uses field teams to onboard and engage with independent agents in various states. These teams are supported by 
a variety of typical software marketing tactics, including both digital, in-person (such as trade shows and other events) 
and content marketing as well as tactics common in insurance like in person visits and targeted compensation. Porch 
Group has successfully partnered with key companies in our vertical markets who have aided in sales and adoption. 

To reach consumers, Porch Group largely relies on our relationships with approximately 30,900 companies and 
small businesses to provide access and distribution. Porch Group then utilizes technology, lifecycle marketing and teams 
in lower-cost locations to operate as a Moving Concierge to assist these consumers with services. In addition, our 
underwritten insurance business gains access to consumers from third-party independent agents. 

Technology 

Porch Group has invested significantly for many years in engineering, product, and design to build out our platform. 
We operate a modern technology stack that allows for rapid development and deployment as well as integrations. Our 
platform allows us to build and develop consumer facing applications that integrate with many of our business units to 
acquire consumers and help those consumers with all the services they would need around the home. An example of this 
is the Porch smartphone app that brings consumers into our ecosystem and functions as a platform allowing our business 
units to integrate to offer capabilities. 

Each of our business units develops its own technology to support its products and services, leveraging both open-
source and vendor-supported software technology. Each of our various software brands and businesses has dedicated 
engineering teams responsible for software development and creating of new features to support our products and 
services across a full range of devices (desktop, mobile web and native mobile applications). Our engineering teams use 
an agile development process that allows us to deploy frequent iterative product and feature releases. 
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Competition 

The home services industry is highly competitive, fragmented, and localized. We compete with, among others: 
(i) vertical software companies in our markets, (ii) companies who provide or help consumers purchase homeowners 
insurance, home warranty, moving, and other home services, (iii) search engines or online marketplaces for all types of 
home services with which we assist consumers, and (iv) other companies which help consumers to make managing and 
maintaining their homes simple. We believe that our largest competition comes from the wide variety of companies 
focused on reaching consumers to help with key high-value services such as insurance. 

We believe that our ability to compete successfully will depend primarily upon the following factors: 

• the size, quality, diversity and stability of the large number of companies utilizing Porch’s software and 
services who give Porch early and proprietary access to homebuyers and property data; 

• our ability to consistently generate revenues through our access to homebuyers and homeowners in a cost-
effective manner; 

• our ability to price our homeowners insurance products more effectively than others; 

• our access to capital, including reinsurance arrangements; 

• our ability to increasingly engage with consumers directly through our platforms (rather than through search 
engine marketing or search engine referrals); 

• the functionality of our software and services, websites and mobile applications and the attractiveness of their 
features and our products and services generally to home services companies and consumers, as well as our 
continued ability to introduce new products and services that resonate with consumers and service professionals 
generally; 

• our ability to continue to build trust in and loyalty to, our various brands, particularly American Home Protect, 
Elite Insurance Group, Floify, HireAHelper, Homeowners of America, Home Inspector Pro, iRoofing, ISN, 
Kandela, Palm-Tech, Porch.com, RWS, Rynoh, and Porch Group Media; and 

• the ability for us to continue to expand our platform organically and inorganically into other vertical markets 
and select services. 

Intellectual Property 

The Company has several trademarks, trade names, trade secrets, service marks, domain names, and proprietary 
technologies and customer relationships that we believe, in the aggregate, constitute a valuable asset. However, we do 
not believe that our business is materially dependent on any individual, trademark or other intellectual property asset. 

The Company seeks to protect its intellectual property rights through a combination of trademarks, trade dress, 
domain name registrations, and trade secrets, as well as through contractual restrictions and reliance on federal, state and 
common law. In addition, the Company enters into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with employees, 
consultants, contractors and business partners, and employees and contractors are also subject to invention assignment  

Government Regulation  

Porch Group is subject to laws and regulations that affect companies conducting business on the Internet generally 
and through mobile applications, including laws relating to the liability of providers of online services for their 
operations and the activities of users. As a result, the Company could be subject to claims based on negligence, unfair 
business practices, various torts and trademark and copyright infringement, among other actions. 
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As Porch Group receives, transmits, stores and uses a substantial amount of information received from or generated 
by consumers and service professionals, the Company is impacted by state laws and regulations governing privacy, the 
storage, sharing, use, processing, disclosure and protection of personal data and data breaches.  These regulations are 
often complex and subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their 
application in practice may change or develop over time through judicial decisions or as new guidance or interpretations 
are provided by regulatory and governing bodies, such as federal, state and local administrative agencies. For example, 
California passed a comprehensive data privacy law, the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 and the California 
Privacy Rights Act (“CPRA”), and other states including Virginia, Colorado, Utah and Connecticut have also passed 
similar laws. These laws impose data protection obligations on covered businesses, including consumer rights 
procedures and obligations, limitations on data uses, audit requirements for higher risk data, and constraints on certain 
uses of sensitive data. The majority of the CPRA provisions will go into effect on January 1, 2023, and additional 
compliance investment and potential business process changes may be required. 

We are subject to laws governing marketing and advertising activities conducted by/through telephone, e-mail, 
mobile devices and the Internet, including the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991 (“TCPA”), the 
Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), the CAN-SPAM Act, Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and similar 
state laws, as well as federal, state, and local laws and agency guidelines governing background screening. 

We are also subject to certain laws and regulations with regard to the real estate settlement process, including the 
Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act regulated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, which, among other 
matters, prohibits certain practices, such as kickbacks, referrals, and unearned fees for the referral of real estate 
settlement services. 

Furthermore, our moving services business is subject to various federal, state and local agencies that exercise broad 
regulatory powers over the moving industry, generally governing such activities as operations of and authorization to 
engage in transportation, insurance requirements, and licensing. 

Additionally, as we expand into the insurance business, which is highly regulated, we must comply with and 
maintain various licenses and approvals with individual state departments of insurance, and we are subject to state 
governmental regulation and supervision. 

State Regulation - Insurance 

Our insurance business is subject to extensive regulation, primarily at the state level. The method, extent and 
substance of such regulation varies by state, but generally has its source in National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners ("NAIC") model laws and regulations that establish standards and requirements for conducting the 
business of insurance and that delegate regulatory authority to a state regulatory agency.   

Moreover, the NAIC Accreditation Program requires state regulatory agencies to meet baseline standards of 
solvency regulation, particularly with respect to regulation of multi-state insurers. In general, such regulation is intended 
for the protection of those who purchase or use our insurance products, and not our shareholders. These rules have a 
substantial effect on our business and relate to a wide variety of matters including: insurance company licensing and 
examination; the licensing of insurance agents and adjusters; price setting or premium rates; trade practices; approval of 
policy forms; claims practices; restrictions on transactions between our subsidiaries and their affiliates, including the 
payment of dividends; investments; underwriting standards; advertising and marketing practices; capital adequacy; and 
the collection, remittance and reporting of certain taxes, licenses and fees. 

Insurance Holding Company Regulation - Insurance 

Nearly all states have adopted the version of the Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulation Act and 
Regulation as amended by the NAIC in December 2010 (the "Amended Model Act"). As part of an insurance holding 
company system, Homeowners of America Insurance Company (HOAIC), our insurance business, is required to register 
with the Texas Department of Insurance (the insurance supervisory agency of HOAIC’s state of domicile) and furnish 
information concerning the operations of companies within the holding company system that may materially affect the 
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operations, management or financial condition of the insurers within the system. Under these laws, the respective state 
insurance departments may examine us at any time, require disclosure of material transactions and require prior notice of 
or approval for certain transactions. All transactions within a holding company system affecting an insurer must have 
fair and reasonable terms and are subject to other standards and requirements established by law and regulation. 

Financial Solvency Ratios - Insurance 

The NAIC annually calculates 13 financial ratios to assist state insurance regulators in monitoring the financial 
condition of insurance companies. A "usual range" of results for each of these ratios is used by insurance regulators as a 
benchmark. Departure from the usual range on four or more of the ratios could lead to inquiries from individual state 
insurance departments as to certain aspects of a company's business. In addition to the financial ratios, states also require 
us to calculate a minimum capital requirement for each of our insurance companies based on individual company 
insurance risk factors. These "risk-based capital" results are used by state insurance regulators to identify companies that 
require regulatory attention or the initiation of regulatory action.  

Restrictions on Shareholder Dividends - Insurance 

Our insurance carrier’s capacity to pay dividends to shareholders is limited. Insurance companies must provide 
advance informational notice to the domicile state insurance regulatory authority prior to payment of any dividend or 
distribution to its shareholders. Prior approval from the state insurance regulatory authority must be obtained before 
payment of an "extraordinary dividend" as defined under the state's insurance code. The amount of ordinary dividends 
that may be paid is subject to certain limitations, the amounts of which change each year. 

Price Regulation - Insurance 

Nearly all states have insurance laws requiring our carrier to file rate schedules, policy or coverage forms, and other 
information with the state's regulatory authority. In certain states, rate schedules, policy forms, or both, must be 
approved prior to use. While insurance laws vary from state to state, their objectives are generally the same: an insurance 
rate cannot be excessive, inadequate, or unfairly discriminatory. The speed with which we can change our rates in 
response to competition or in response to increasing costs depends, in part, on the willingness of state regulators to allow 
adequate rates for the business we write. 

Insurance Reserves - Insurance 

State insurance laws require that insurance companies analyze the adequacy of their reserves annually. Our 
appointed actuaries must submit an opinion that our statutory reserves are adequate to meet policy claims-paying 
obligations and related expenses. 

Exiting Geographic Markets; Canceling and Non-Renewing Policies - Insurance 

Most states regulate our carrier’s ability to exit a market. For example, states limit, to varying degrees, our ability to 
cancel and non-renew insurance policies. Some states prohibit us from withdrawing one or more types of insurance 
business from the state, except upon prior regulatory approval. Regulations that limit policy cancellation and non-
renewal may restrict our ability to exit unprofitable markets. 

Investment Regulation - Insurance 

Our insurance business is subject to various state regulations requiring investment portfolio diversification and 
limiting the concentration of investments we may maintain in certain asset categories. Failure to comply with these 
regulations leads to the treatment of nonconforming investments as non-admitted assets for purposes of measuring 
statutory surplus. Further, in some instances, state regulations require us to sell certain nonconforming investments. 
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Insurance Guaranty Associations – Insurance 

Each state has insurance guaranty association laws. Membership in a state's insurance guaranty association is 
generally mandatory for insurers wishing to do business in that state. Under these laws, associations may assess their 
members for certain obligations that insolvent insurance companies have incurred with regard to their policyholders and 
claimants. 

Typically, states assess each solvent association member with an amount related to that member's proportionate 
share of business written by all association members within the state. Most state guaranty associations allow solvent 
insurers to recoup the assessments they are charged through future rate increases, surcharges or premium tax 
credits. However, there is no assurance that we will ultimately recover these assessments. We cannot predict the amount 
and timing of any future assessments or refunds under these laws. 

Shared Market and Joint Underwriting Plans - Insurance 

State insurance regulations often require insurers to participate in assigned risk plans, reinsurance facilities and joint 
underwriting associations. These are mechanisms that generally provide applicants with various types of basic insurance 
coverage that may not otherwise be available to them through voluntary markets. Such mechanisms are most commonly 
instituted for automobile and workers' compensation insurance, but many states also mandate participation in Fair 
Access to Insurance Requirements Plans or Windstorm Plans, which provide basic property coverage. Participation is 
based upon the amount of a company's voluntary market share in a particular state for the classes of insurance 
involved. Policies written through these mechanisms may require different underwriting standards and may pose greater 
risk than those written through our voluntary application process. 

Statutory Accounting Principles - Insurance 

For public reporting, insurance companies prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles ("GAAP"). However, state laws require us to calculate and report certain data according to 
statutory accounting rules as defined in the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual. While not a substitute 
for any GAAP measure of performance, statutory data frequently is used by industry analysts and other recognized 
reporting sources to facilitate comparisons of the performance of insurance companies. 

Federal Regulation - Insurance 

Although the federal government and its regulatory agencies generally do not directly regulate the business of 
insurance, federal initiatives and legislation often have an impact on our business. These initiatives and legislation 
include tort reform proposals, proposals addressing natural catastrophe exposures, terrorism risk mechanisms, federal 
financial services reforms, various tax proposals affecting insurance companies, and possible regulatory limitations, 
impositions and restrictions arising from the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act ("Dodd-
Frank"). 

Human Capital Management 

By staying true to: No Jerks/No Egos; Solve Each Problem; Be Ambitious; Care Deeply; and Together We Win, 
Porch Group has created a company where good people can do great work and drive shareholder value. These values 
guide us in everything we do, from individual everyday tasks to high-level strategic planning. They foster a culture of 
dialogue, collaboration, and recognition that contributes to our long-term success. 

Porch is organized in a decentralized operating model, which allows our businesses to move quickly and 
entrepreneurially leveraging a common playbook and infrastructure that benefit from shared best practices as we 
scale. When we acquire a company, our decentralized operating model helps us maintain momentum and entrepreneurial 
culture while mitigating the risks associated with integration. In most cases, we integrate acquisitions into our (1) central 
data platform; (2) transactional monetization to drive our B2B2C revenues such as insurance and warranty; and 
(3) operational systems, such as accounting and payroll.  
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We engage and empower our team with continued career and learning and development opportunities. Fostering a 
growth mindset facilitates a culture where all voices are heard and team members can take informed risks, ask questions, 
and seek creative solutions to tough problems. This approach helps us build a strong bench of leaders for tomorrow’s 
business challenges. 

We are a progressive organization which values environmental, social, and corporate governance (ESG).  We 
recently embarked on our ESG journey to create our ESG strategy that will reflect the relevant issues that are most 
important to Porch and our stakeholders, and which can influence our business success.   

Our diversity, equity, inclusion, and belonging efforts are based on the principle that all Porch team members can 
bring their whole selves to work and thrive. We have a commitment throughout the organization for Porch to be a 
supportive and inclusive environment.  

We pride ourselves on our values driven culture that fosters employee engagement and creates an attractive home 
for top talent.  We were certified as a Great Place to Work in 2022. 

As of February 2023, Porch had approximately 1,800 full-time employees and independent contractors. We believe 
that we generally have good relationships with our employees and contractors. 

Additional Information 

Our main consumer website is www.porch.com, and our corporate and investor relations website is located at 
www.porchgroup.com. You may access our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current 
Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) free of charge at our 
website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. 
Neither the information on these websites, nor the information on the websites of any of our brands and businesses, is 
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report, any other filings with, or any other information furnished or 
submitted to, the SEC. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

The following summary risk factors and other information included in this Annual Report should be carefully 
considered. The summary risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and 
uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem less significant may also affect our business 
operations or financial results. If any of the following risks actually occur, our stock price, business, operating results 
and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. For more information, see below for more detailed 
descriptions of each risk factor. 

• Our brands and businesses, including our insurance business, operate in an especially competitive and 
evolving industry. 

• Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to manage our growth and maintain and/or enhance our 
existing brands, and the brands of our recently acquired companies. 

• We rely on strategic, proprietary relationships with third parties to provide us with access to personal data and 
product information.  

• We rely on our ability to reach home services companies’ customers and home service-related consumers 
earlier than our competitors, and throughout the homebuying and homeownership journey. 

• Our future growth is dependent in part on increasing our revenue by increasing the number of sales of home 
related services per customer and consumer, and cross-sale of our other products and services to these 
customers and consumers. 

• Our brands and businesses are sensitive to general economic events, trends and conditions, including those 
related to, without limitation, the housing and financial markets, which impacts the demand and costs for a 
portion of our products and services. 
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• Our success depends, in part, on the integrity, quality, efficiency and scalability of our systems, technology and 
infrastructure, and those of third parties. 

• Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and monetize versions of our products and services for 
mobile and other digital devices.   

• Our businesses are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations, and we must comply with 
such laws, regulations and regulatory interpretations and any changes or stricter interpretations of any of the 
foregoing (whether through private litigation or governmental action). 

• Our insurance business and operations are subject to a variety of uncertainties, including, without limitation, 
regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, insurance products, license applications, acquisitions of 
businesses or strategic initiatives, including our planned formation of the reciprocal exchange, and other 
matters within the purview of insurance regulators. 

• The incidence, frequency and severity of weather events, extensive wildfires, and other catastrophes, 
particularly occurring where Porch has a concentration of homeowners insurance policyholders, or that 
adversely impact consumer confidence and spending behavior in the industries we serve, could have a material 
effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

• Reinsurance may be unavailable at current levels and prices, which may limit our ability to write new business. 
Furthermore, reinsurance subjects us to counterparty risk and may not be adequate to protect us against losses, 
which could have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

• We may change the structure of our reinsurance arrangement in the future, which may impact our overall risk 
profile and financial and capital condition. 

• We face risks related to the number of service providers available to consumers on our platform.  
• If we are unable to deliver effective customer service, it could harm our relationships with our existing home 

services companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners and adversely affect our ability to 
attract new home services companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners. 

• We may face negative consequences from the actions and omissions of our service providers, and our terms and 
conditions may not adequately protect us from claims.  

• If personal, confidential, or sensitive user information or property data that we maintain and store is breached 
or otherwise accessed by unauthorized persons, it may be costly to mitigate, and our reputation could be 
harmed. 

• We may not be able to protect our systems, technology and infrastructure from cyberattacks and cyberattacks 
experienced by third parties may adversely affect us. 

• We are subject to payment network rules and any material modification of our payment card acceptance 
privileges could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.  

• The price of the Company’s securities may change significantly over time and investors could lose all or part of 
their investment as a result. 

• We have substantial indebtedness, which may limit our financial flexibility. 
• The conditional conversion feature of the 2026 Notes, if triggered, may adversely affect our financial condition 

and operating results. 
• Conversion of our 2026 Notes may dilute the ownership interest of our stockholders or may otherwise depress 

the price of our common stock. 
 
The summary risk factors described above should be read together with the text of the full risk factors below and in 

the other information set forth in this Annual Report, including our consolidated financial statements and the related 
notes, as well as in other documents that we file with the SEC. If any such risks and uncertainties actually occur, our 
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. These risks 
are more fully described below, and these risks are not the only risks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not 
currently known to us, or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially adversely affect our business, 
prospects, financial condition and results of operations. 
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Risks Relating to the Company’s Business and Industry 

Our brands and businesses, including our insurance business, operate in an especially competitive and evolving industry. 

Our brands and businesses operate in home-related product and service industries, which industries include 
insurance, mortgage, warranty, moving services, inspection services, home repair, and marketing, financial and other 
software for home services companies; all of which are competitive, with many existing competitors and a consistent 
and growing stream of new entrants, services and products. Some of our competitors are well-established, have greater 
functional and compliance maturity, or enjoy better competitive positions with respect to certain geographical areas, 
consumer and service provider demographics, and/or types of services offered. Some of our competitors have stronger 
brand name recognition, better economies of scale, more developed software platforms or other intellectual property, 
and/or better access to capital. Additionally, the home and home-related services industries continue to undergo 
consolidation and vertical integration, which may make it more difficult to compete with existing competitors and new 
entrants. Any of these advantages could enable these competitors to reach more consumers and service providers than 
we do, offer products and services that are more appealing to consumers and service providers than our products and 
services, and respond more quickly and/or cost effectively than we do to evolving market opportunities and trends, any 
of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Alternatively, our innovative 
business model and our limited track record as a public company may cause confusion in the market such that failures of 
our competitors or companies operating in similar or adjacent spaces may impact consumer or investor perceptions of 
the digital home services industry as a whole. 

If we are unable to compete effectively against new competitors, services or products or unable to establish or 
maintain a consumer brand that resonates with customers, maintain high customer satisfaction, or compete with the 
pricing offered by our competitors,  could result in decreases in the size and level of engagement of our consumer and 
service provider bases, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We rely on strategic, proprietary relationships with third parties to provide us with access to personal data and 
information, and property data. 

We rely on strategic relationships with third parties, including home services companies, to provide us with personal 
information, including property data, about their customers in exchange for giving such companies access to our ERP 
and CRM services or other value. In the future, any of these third parties could sever its relationship with us, change its 
data sharing policies, including making them more restrictive, or alter its own data collection practices, any of which 
could result in the loss of, or significant impairment to, our ability to access, collect and use personal information about 
their customers or consumers. 

We also license data from third-party data brokers and other data suppliers. However, we cannot assure you that we 
will continue to be able to access, collect or use personal information or property data provided by consumers, service 
providers and commercial partners as we currently do or may want to do in the future. Our ability to access, collect and 
use personal information and property data provided by these parties may be adversely affected by federal and state laws 
and regulations that make it burdensome for us to collect or use personal information and property data, privacy 
concerns of the individuals from whom we collect personal information, privacy and reputational concerns of 
commercial partners that provide us with end customer personal information and property data, and adverse consumer 
reaction to our marketing practices.  

We also use consumer data that we directly collect from consumers or license from third parties to engage in 
targeted marketing based upon such consumer data and their online behavior. Practices in this industry are under 
scrutiny by federal and state law enforcement agencies and regulators in light of new and proposed federal and state 
laws, and pressure from some lawmakers and privacy advocates regarding how consumer data is collected and used in 
the ad tech industry. If we are unable to collect information from our customers or our service providers and commercial 
partners do not continue to provide us with information of their customers, or if applicable laws prohibit or materially 
impair our use of such information, our ability to provide services to consumers and drive consumer access to service 
providers may be materially impacted. This may make our products, services and pricing for such products and services 
less appealing to consumers and service providers, which in turn may lead to reduced utilization of our products and 
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services. To the extent any of the foregoing occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be 
adversely impacted. 

We rely on our ability to reach home services companies’ customers and home service-related consumers earlier than 
our competitors, and throughout the homebuying and homeownership journey. Our competitors could find ways to reach 
these customers and consumers earlier than us or at other times during the homebuying and homeownership journey. 

Our consumer access model allows us to market and offer services to home services companies’ customers very 
early and throughout the homebuying and homeowning journey. We also have relationships with commercial partners 
that provide us with data about consumers who may require a variety of home services early and throughout the 
homebuying and homeownership journey. There can be no assurances that we will continue to receive access to these 
customers and consumers relative to our competitors. Our competitors may adopt a similar model or may develop a new 
model that affords them similar or earlier access. Any erosion of our competitive advantage in access to home services 
companies’ customers and home service-related consumers may impair future opportunities to monetize those 
customers, which in turn could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. Even if we 
capture early access to home services companies’ customers, if we are unable to convert that access into sales of our 
services and products, it could negatively impact revenue growth and adversely impact our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

Our future growth is dependent in part on increasing our revenue by increasing the number of sales of home-related 
services per customer and consumer. We may not succeed in these efforts. 

Our future growth depends in part on increasing the revenue generated from each customer or consumer we serve. 
We plan on increasing this revenue by increasing the number of value-add touchpoints with customers and consumers 
for whom we have access rights by offering new services and by improving conversion rates and revenue generation of 
both existing and new services. There can be no assurances we will be successful in these efforts. Failure to increase 
revenue per customer or consumer may slow our growth, which could in turn have an adverse impact on our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

Our growth therefore depends on our ability to attract new customers, maintain existing customers and sell 
additional products and services to existing customers. This depends on our ability to understand and anticipate 
customers’ needs and our ability to deliver consistent, reliable, high-quality services and products. If we fail to engage 
new customers, continue to re-engage with our existing customers or to cross-sell additional services, our operating 
results could be materially impacted. 

We rely on our ability to retain home services companies who use our software and services and our retention rates 
could be impacted if we are not able to sustain our competitive advantages related to our value proposition. 

Our consumer access model, whereby home services companies use our software for a discounted rate or receive 
other value in exchange for providing access rights to their end customers, helps us generate revenue from such 
customers. There can be no assurances that home services companies will use or retain our software and services, or 
provide us access rights to their end customers. Our retention rates could be impacted by, among other things, more 
desirable software and services from competitors, software developed in house by home services companies and 
acquisitions, consolidations and other changes to the structure and dynamics of the home and home-related services 
industries that may make our ERM and CRP offerings less desirable or valuable. If adoption and retention rates of our 
software and services decline, our growth prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations could be 
impaired. 

If the market for SaaS software applications develops more slowly than we expect or declines, our business would be 
adversely affected. 

The adoption rate of SaaS software applications may be slower among companies in the home-related services 
industries generally and among business in those industries requiring highly customizable application software more 
particularly. Our success will depend to a substantial extent on the widespread adoption of SaaS applications within the 
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industries we serve. The expansion of the SaaS applications market depends on a number of factors, including the cost, 
performance, and perceived value associated with SaaS, as well as the ability of SaaS providers to address data security 
and privacy concerns. If SaaS business applications do not continue to achieve market acceptance within the industries 
we serve, if there is a reduction in demand for SaaS applications caused by a lack of customer acceptance, or if there are 
technological challenges, weakening economic conditions, data security or privacy concerns, governmental regulation, 
competing technologies and products, or decreases in information technology spending, it could result in decreased 
revenue or access to consumer personal information and our business, financial condition and results of operations could 
be adversely affected. 

Our success will depend, in substantial part, on the continued migration of the home and home-related services market 
online. 

We believe that the digital penetration of the home and home-related services market remains low, with the vast 
majority of consumers continuing to search for, select and hire service providers offline. While many consumer 
demographics have been and remain averse to finding service providers online, others have demonstrated a greater 
willingness to purchase such services online. Whether or not service providers turn to Internet platforms will depend, in 
substantial part, on whether online products and services help them to better connect and engage with consumers relative 
to traditional offline efforts. The speed and ultimate outcome of the transition of the home and home-related services 
market online for consumers and service providers is uncertain and may not occur as quickly as we expect, or at all. The 
failure or delay of a meaningful number of consumers and/or service providers to migrate online and/or the return of a 
meaningful number of existing participants in the online home services market to offline solutions could adversely affect 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our efforts to develop new insurance products, expand in targeted insurance markets, improve business processes and 
workflows, or make acquisitions may not be successful and may create enhanced risk. 

Our efforts to develop new products, expand in targeted insurance markets, improve business processes and 
workflows, or make acquisitions may require us to make substantial expenditures and may not be successful, and even if 
successful, they may create additional risks: 

• Changes to our business processes or workflow, including the use of new technologies, may give rise to 
execution risk. 

• Models underlying automated underwriting and pricing decisions may not be effective. 

• Demand for new products or expansion into new markets may not meet our expectations. 

• New products or services and expansion into new markets may change our risk exposures, and the data models 
we use to manage such exposures may not be as effective as those used in existing markets or with existing 
products. 

• Acquisitions may not be successfully integrated, resulting in substantial disruption, costs, or delays, and 
adversely affecting our ability to compete, and may also result in unforeseen liabilities or impact our credit 
ratings, and 

• In connection with the conversion of policyholders to a new product, some policyholders’ pricing may increase, 
while the pricing for other policyholders may decrease, the net impact of which could negatively impact 
retention and profit margins. 

These efforts may require substantial expenditures, which may negatively impact results in the near term and if not 
successful, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations 

Marketing efforts designed to drive traffic to our brands and businesses may not be successful or cost-effective. 

Attracting home services companies and consumers to our brands and businesses involves considerable 
expenditures for online and offline marketing and sales. We have made, and expect to continue to make, significant 
marketing expenditures, primarily for digital marketing such as paid search engine marketing, display advertising and 
third-party affiliate agreements. These efforts may not be successful or cost-effective. 
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Our ability to market our brands on any given property or channel is subject to the policies of the relevant third-
party seller or publisher of advertising or marketing affiliate. As a result, we cannot assure you that these parties will not 
limit or prohibit us from purchasing certain types of advertising, advertising certain of our products and services and/or 
using one or more current or prospective marketing channels in the future. If a significant marketing channel took such 
an action generally, for a significant period of time and/or on a recurring basis, our business, financial condition and 
results of operations could be adversely affected. In addition, if we fail to comply with the policies of third-party sellers, 
publishers of advertising and/or marketing affiliates, our advertisements could be removed without notice and/or our 
accounts could be suspended or terminated, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

In addition, our failure to respond to rapid and frequent changes in the pricing and operating dynamics of marketing 
channels, as well as changing policies and guidelines applicable to digital advertising, which may unilaterally be updated 
by search engines without advance notice, could adversely affect our digital marketing efforts and free search engine 
traffic. Such changes could adversely affect the placement and pricing of paid listings, as well as the ranking of our 
brands and businesses within search results, any or all of which could increase our marketing expenditures, particularly 
if free traffic is replaced with paid traffic. Additionally, our competitors may engage in marketing strategies and search 
engine optimization techniques that increase the relative ranking of their brands and businesses within search engine 
results at the expense of our rankings within such search results. This could have a negative impact on the results of our 
search engine marketing efforts. Any or all of these events could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

The incidence, frequency and severity of weather events, extensive wildfires, and other catastrophes, particularly 
occurring where Porch has a concentration of homeowners insurance policyholders, or that adversely impact consumer 
confidence and spending behavior in the industries we serve, could have a material effect on our results of operations 
and financial condition. 

In particular, severe weather events and the effects of climate change, including, extensive wildfires, drought, 
flooding and other catastrophes, and the frequency of such events, as well as the impacts of future global pandemics and 
other health crises, may harm our insurance business. For example, as it relates to our insurance agency, if carriers 
restrict the sale of policies in certain geographical areas and/or for certain types of coverage or if they increase their 
premiums as a result of these events, it could result in fewer carriers whose policies we could offer to our customers and 
otherwise make policies harder to sell. As it relates to our insurance carrier entity, we will be exposed to a portion of 
these losses directly. While we intend to manage our risk via reinsurance, there can be no guarantee this will adequately 
reduce our exposure to losses, including, but not limited to, the inability to negotiate reinsurance contracts at renewal at 
acceptable terms or at all, large catastrophes that exceed the our aggregate reinsurance coverage limits, the inability or 
unwillingness of counterparties to pay us reinsurance receivables we believe we are owed, and multiple losses in a single 
year that exceed our ability to reinstate reinsurance contracts. The availability of reinsurance and its price, however, are 
generally determined in the reinsurance market by conditions beyond the Company’s control.  Additionally, significant 
increase in insurance claims and the cost of the claims by consumers who purchase our insurance could reduce our 
access to reinsurance. 

These events have in the past and could in the future negatively affect the economy in general, and the housing and 
home services markets in particular. For example, our business was adversely impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19. 
The extent to which future global pandemics and health crises impact our financial condition or results of operations will 
depend on factors such as the duration and scope of the pandemic, as well as whether there is a material impact on the 
businesses or productivity of our customers, employees, and other partners.     

These events and trends could also result in decreased marketing and advertising expenditures by service providers 
or cash flow problems for service providers that could affect their ability to pay us subscription fees, their ability to 
purchase leads from us and the success of any revenue sharing arrangements with them or could result in service 
providers decreasing and/or delaying subscription fees paid for our platform or being more likely to default on incurred 
fees, which would result in decreased revenue.   
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Any of these events that could negatively affect the home industries we serve and could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Our brands and businesses are sensitive to general economic events, trends and conditions, including those related to, 
without limitation, the housing and financial markets, which impact the demand for certain of our products and services. 

Our businesses are sensitive to events and trends, such as a general economic downturn, health of the housing 
market, inflation or sudden disruption in business conditions, a recession or fears of a recession, consumer confidence, 
spending levels and access to credit, which could result in decreases in demand for insurance, home mortgages, 
warranty, moving and inspection services, home repair, and marketing, financial and other software for home services 
companies and providers. Any such decreases could result in turnover of our consumer and service provider base and/or 
adversely impact the breadth of services offered through our service market platform, our home-related services, and our 
warranty and insurance products. 

Demand for certain of our products and services generally decrease as the number of housing purchasing and 
refinance transactions decrease. The housing market is seasonal, cyclical and affected by significant conditions beyond 
the Company’s control. The number of housing transactions in which certain of the Company’s products and services are 
purchased have been, and may continue to be impacted by the following situations, among others: 

• high, volatile or rising mortgage interest rates; 
• availability of credit, including commercial and residential mortgage funding; 
• real estate affordability, housing supply rates, home building rates, housing foreclosures rates, multi-family 

housing fundamentals, and the pace of home price appreciation or the lack of it; 
• slow economic growth or recessionary conditions and other macroeconomic conditions, which may be 

impacted by national or global events (such as the COVID-19 pandemic); 
• local, state and federal government intervention in the financial markets; 
• increased unemployment or declining or stagnant wages; 
• changes in household debt levels and disposable income; 
• changing trends in consumer spending; 
• fewer homebuyers electing to get a home inspection; and 
• changing expectations for inflation and deflation. 
 
Any adverse impact on a macro level to the housing or financial markets generally could have an adverse impact on 

our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to build a consumer brand, maintain and/or enhance our existing brands, 
and the brands of our recently acquired companies. 

We believe that our success depends, in substantial part, on our ability to build a consumer brand, while maintaining 
and enhancing our established brands, that increases awareness and consumer loyalty with respect to our new, emerging 
and recently acquired brands. Events that could negatively impact our brands and brand-building efforts include service 
quality concerns, service provider quality concerns, brand confusion, consumer and service provider complaints and 
lawsuits, advertising or marketing that is ineffective or that is perceived as excessive or untimely, inappropriate and/or 
unlawful acts perpetrated by service providers, actions or proceedings commenced by governmental or regulatory 
authorities, data protection and security breaches, and negative publicity related to the foregoing. Any factors that 
negatively impact our brands could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 

In addition, trust in the integrity and objective, unbiased nature of the service provider options we present to 
consumers as well as any ratings, reviews and information with respect to service provider qualification and experience 
found across our various brands contributes significantly to public perception of these brands and their ability to attract 
consumers, employees, and service providers and other partners. If the options available to consumers or consumer 
reviews are perceived as not authentic in general, the reputation and strength of the relevant brands could be materially 
and adversely affected. Additionally, our service marketplace platform aggregates service provider reviews from third-
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party platforms. If these third-party platform reviews are inaccurate or misleading, consumers may lose confidence in the 
reliability of the ratings displayed on our site, which could in turn negatively impact our brand and reputation, and we 
may be subject to claims of misrepresentation. 

We face risks related to the number of service providers available to consumers on our platform. 

The usefulness of our platform to consumers is based in part on the number of service providers available on our 
platform for each type of service trade or service area we offer. There can be no assurances that our ability to attract and 
retain service providers to our platform will be commensurate with consumer demand for the services of such service 
providers. Supply of service providers may be affected by, among other things, the size of the workforce in a given trade 
or service area and barriers to entry in a given market (such as licensure requirements). Additionally, our competitors 
may enter into arrangements with service providers that prevent them from offering their services on our platform. If for 
these or any other reasons we are unable to attract and retain enough service providers to our platform to meet consumer 
demand, we may be required to increase payments to service providers in order to perform services for our consumers or 
our consumer experience may suffer, each of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results 
of operations. 

If we are unable to deliver effective customer service, it could harm our relationships with our existing home services 
companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners and adversely affect our ability to attract new home 
services companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners. 

Our business depends, in part, on our ability to satisfy our home services companies, consumers and service 
providers, both by providing access to services that address the needs of consumers and service providers and providing 
services and software-based solutions to home services companies that address their business needs. Our customer 
support personnel also sell our products and services. If our sales efforts are not satisfactory, consumers may choose not 
to do business with us, or we may suffer reputational costs. Additionally, our home services companies, consumers and 
service providers depend on our customer support personnel to resolve technical issues relating to use of our products 
and services. We may be unable to respond quickly to accommodate short-term increases in demand for support services 
or may otherwise encounter a customer service issue that is difficult to resolve. If a home services company, consumer 
or service provider is not satisfied with the quality or responsiveness of our customer service, we could incur additional 
costs to address the situation or the home services company, service provider, or consumer (and commercial partners 
who provide us with their customers’ data) may choose not to do business with us or we may suffer reputational costs. 
As we do not separately charge our home services companies, consumers and service providers for support services, 
increased demand for our support services would increase costs without corresponding revenue, which could adversely 
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, regardless of the quality or responsiveness 
of our customer service efforts, home services companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners that are 
not satisfied with outcomes may choose to terminate, or not to renew, their relationships with us. 

Certain parts of our business are highly dependent on the ease of use of our products and services and positive 
recommendations from our existing home services companies, consumers and service providers. Any failure to maintain 
high-quality or responsive customer service, or a market perception that we do not maintain high-quality or responsive 
customer service, could harm our reputation, cause us to lose home services companies, consumers or service providers 
and adversely impact our ability to sell our products and services to prospective consumers. 

We may face negative consequences from the actions and omissions of our service providers, and our terms and 
conditions may not adequately protect us from claims. 

Under our agreements with consumers and service providers, our service providers, and not us, are responsible for 
the actions and omissions of our service providers. However, consumers may still bring claims against us for actions and 
omissions of service providers, and the service providers may deny responsibility for or be unable to pay any resulting 
liability. Additionally, certain agreements with our commercial partners obligate us to indemnify such commercial 
partners against third-party claims resulting from the actions and omissions of the service providers we engage to 
provide services to consumers referred to us by those commercial partners. These claims may be expensive and may 
divert management’s time away from our operations. We may not have adequate insurance coverage to compensate for 
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losses resulting from these claims, and too many or certain types of claims may result in increased premiums or denial of 
coverage. In addition, we may be deemed, correctly or incorrectly, a contractor with respect to our service providers, 
which may subject us to licensure and/or bonding requirements and may subject us to penalties for past operations. Any 
of the foregoing could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

In general, our consumers and our service providers agree to our customer terms and conditions by accessing our 
services online. However, some consumers or service providers who access our services only by phone, and consumers 
who come to us from third-party lead sources, may not click through to our terms and conditions. If consumers or 
service providers do not agree to our terms and conditions for any reason, we may face increased litigation risk, which 
could in turn adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

If personal, confidential, or sensitive user information or property data that we maintain and store is breached or 
otherwise accessed by unauthorized persons, it may be costly to mitigate, and our reputation could be harmed. 

We receive, process, store and transmit a significant amount of personal, confidential or sensitive personal 
information and property data about consumers that use our products and services, as well as our employees. While we 
continuously develop and maintain systems designed to protect the security, integrity and confidentiality of this 
information, we cannot guarantee that inadvertent or unauthorized use or disclosure will not occur or that third parties 
will not gain unauthorized access to this information. When such events occur, we may not be able to remedy them, we 
may be required by law to notify regulators, impacted individuals and commercial partners, and it may be costly to 
mitigate the impact of such events and to develop and implement protections to prevent future events of this nature from 
occurring. If we or any third party that we engage to host our platforms or to otherwise store or process data experience a 
breach of security, third parties could gain unauthorized access to personal data about our users and subscribers. As a 
result, or associated with any required regulatory disclosures, we could face governmental enforcement actions, 
significant fines, litigation (including consumer class actions), claims for breach of contract and/or indemnity by third 
parties, and harm to the reputation of our brands and business, each of which could adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. A single breach could result in claims for damages or indemnification from 
many counterparties. Any such breach or other unauthorized access could indirectly harm the reputation of our brands 
and businesses and, in turn, adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.  Even if we do 
not experience such events firsthand, the impact of any such events experienced by third parties including service 
providers, could indirectly harm the reputation of our brands and businesses and, in turn, adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

We may not be able to protect our systems, technology and infrastructure from cyberattacks and cyberattacks 
experienced by third parties may adversely affect us. 

We may be attacked by perpetrators of malicious technology-related events, such as the use of botnets, malware or 
other destructive or disruptive software, distributed denial of service attacks, phishing, attempts to misappropriate user 
information and account login credentials, ransomware attempts, and other similar malicious activities. The incidence of 
events of this nature is on the rise worldwide. While we continuously develop and maintain systems designed to detect 
and prevent events of this nature from impacting our systems, technology, infrastructure, products, services and users, 
have invested and continue to invest in these efforts and related personnel and training, and deploy data minimization 
strategies where appropriate, our efforts may not be successful. These efforts, which include developing and maintaining 
the systems of recently acquired companies, are costly and require ongoing monitoring and updating as technologies 
change and efforts to overcome preventative security measures are becoming more sophisticated. Despite these efforts, 
some of our systems have experienced past security incidents, none of which had a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations, and we could experience significant events of this nature in the 
future. Any event of this nature that we experience could damage our systems, technology and infrastructure and/or 
those of our users, prevent us from providing our products and services, compromise the integrity of our products and 
services, damage our reputation, erode our brands and/or be costly to remedy, and may subject us to investigations by 
regulatory authorities, fines, claims for breach of contract or indemnity by third parties and/or litigation that could result 
in liability to third parties. Even if we do not experience such events firsthand, the impact of any such events 
experienced by third parties could have a similar effect. Our business model relies in large part on selling or otherwise 
providing certain consumer personal information to third parties. These third parties may be subject to similar 
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cyberattacks and there can be no assurance that such third parties have adequate cybersecurity infrastructure to prevent 
breaches of the personal data sold to them by us. 

We may not have adequate insurance coverage to compensate for losses resulting from any of the above events. 

If we or any third party with whom we do business or otherwise rely upon experience an event of this nature, our 
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. 

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and monetize versions of our products and services for mobile 
and other digital devices. 

As consumers increasingly access products and services through mobile and other digital devices, we will need to 
continue to devote significant time and resources to develop new applications and functionalities to ensure that our 
products and services are accessible across these platforms. If we do not keep pace with evolving online, market and 
industry trends, including the introduction of new and enhanced digital devices and changes in the preferences and needs 
of consumers and service providers generally, offer new and/or enhanced products and services in response to such 
trends that resonate with consumers and service providers, monetize products and services for mobile and other digital 
devices as effectively as our traditional products and services and/or maintain related systems, technology and 
infrastructure in an efficient and cost-effective manner, our business, financial condition and results of operations could 
be adversely affected. 

In addition, the success of future mobile and other digital products and services depends on their interoperability 
with various third-party operating systems, technology, infrastructure and standards, including rapidly evolving mobile 
data privacy standards, over which we have no control. Any changes to any of these things that compromise the quality 
or functionality of our mobile and other digital products and services could adversely affect their usage levels and/or our 
ability to attract consumers and service providers, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

Our ability to communicate with home services companies, consumers and service providers via telephone, text (SMS) 
messaging, email, direct mail or other sufficient means is critical to our success. 

Our primary means of facilitating contact among us, home services companies, consumers and service providers is 
the use of telephone calls, text (SMS) messages and email. We also communicate with these parties through direct mail 
messages. Through these channels, we provide consumers with service request updates and service providers with 
updates regarding consumer matches, jobs they take, subscriptions and memberships, as well as present or suggest new 
products and services (among other things) and market our products and services in a cost-effective manner to home 
services companies, consumers and service providers.  

As consumers increasingly communicate via mobile and other digital devices and messaging and social media apps, 
usage of certain channels such as telephone, email or direct mail has declined, particularly among younger consumers, 
and we expect this trend to continue. In addition, regulatory, deliverability and other restrictions could limit or prevent 
our ability to these channels to communicate with home services companies, consumers and service providers. The use 
of internet to reach consumers or service providers are subject to various laws and regulations governing digital 
commerce, the internet, mobile applications, search engine optimization, behavioral advertising, privacy and email 
marketing, and the enforcement of laws and regulations, including further development and adoption of new laws and 
regulations in this area may have a negative impact on our business. Furthermore, third-party operators of the channels 
we use to communicate with these groups may face pressure from regulators to give end users the ability to block, mute 
or otherwise disfavor certain types of marketing communications via such channels. We cannot assure you that any 
alternative means of communication will be as effective as our current messaging channels have been. A continued and 
significant erosion in our ability to communicate with these groups for any reason could adversely impact the overall 
user experience, consumer and service provider engagement levels and conversion rates, which could adversely affect 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
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The nature of our platform is complex and highly integrated, and if we fail to successfully manage releases or integrate 
new solutions, it could harm our revenues, operating income and reputation. 

We manage a complex platform of solutions that consists of our software and services for companies and products 
for consumers. Many of our solutions include a large number of product centers that are highly integrated and require 
interoperability with other Porch products, as well as products and services of third-party service providers. Due to this 
complexity and the development cycles under which we operate, we may experience errors in our software, corruption or 
loss of our data or unexpected performance issues from time to time. For example, our solutions may face 
interoperability difficulties with software operating systems or programs being used by our customers, or new releases, 
upgrades, fixes or the integration of acquired technologies may have unanticipated consequences on the operation and 
performance of our other solutions. If we encounter integration challenges or discover errors in our solutions late in our 
development cycle, it may cause us to delay our launch dates. Any major integration or interoperability issues or launch 
delays could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, operating income and reputation. 

Our success depends, in part, on the integrity, quality, efficiency and scalability of our systems, technology and 
infrastructure, and those of third parties. 

We rely on our proprietary systems, technology and infrastructure to perform well on a consistent basis. We also 
rely on third-party data center service providers and cloud-based, hosted web service providers, as well as third-party 
computer systems and a variety of communications systems and service providers in connection with the provision of 
our products and services generally, as well as to facilitate and process certain payment and other transactions with 
users. We have no control over any of these third parties or their operations. In the past, we have experienced rare but 
occasional interruptions that make some or all of our or our third-party framework and related information unavailable or 
that prevent us from providing products and services, and we may experience such interruptions in the future. 

The framework described above could be damaged or interrupted at any time for any number of reasons, such as 
fire, power loss, telecommunications failure, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, acts of God and other similar 
events or disruptions. Any event of this nature could prevent us from providing our products and services at all or result 
in the provision of our products and services on a delayed or intermittent basis and/or result in the loss of critical data. 
While we and the third parties upon whom we rely on have certain backup systems in place for certain aspects of our 
respective frameworks, none of our frameworks are fully redundant and disaster recovery planning is not sufficient for 
all eventualities. In addition, we may not have adequate insurance coverage to compensate us for losses from a major 
interruption. When such damages, interruptions or outages occur, our reputation could be harmed and the competitive 
positions of our various brands and businesses could be diminished, any or all of which could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We also continually work to expand and enhance the efficiency and scalability of our framework to improve the 
consumer and service provider experience, accommodate substantial increases in the number of visitors to our various 
platforms, ensure acceptable load times for our various products and services and keep up with changes in technology 
and user preferences. If we do not do so in a timely and cost-effective manner, the user experience and demand across 
our brands and businesses could be adversely affected, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

We may fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights or may be accused of infringing the intellectual 
property rights of third parties. 

We rely upon trademarks, trade dress, domain names and logos to market our brands and businesses and to build 
and maintain brand loyalty and recognition, as well as upon trade secrets. 

We rely on a combination of laws and contractual restrictions on access to and use of proprietary information with 
employees, independent contractors, home services companies, consumers, service providers, commercial partners, 
suppliers, affiliates and others to establish and protect our and their various intellectual property rights. No assurances 
can be given that these efforts will result in adequate trademark and service mark protection, adequate domain name 
rights and protections. Despite these measures, challenges to our intellectual property rights could still arise, third parties 
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could copy or otherwise obtain and use our intellectual property without authorization, and/or laws regarding the 
enforceability of existing intellectual property rights could change in an adverse manner. 

We may also be subject to claims from third parties in the future related to alleged intellectual property infringement 
by us. These claims, if resolved in a manner adverse to us, could result in significant liabilities and could restrict or 
prohibit our ability to use the technology on which we rely. Even if these claims are resolved in our favor, such claims 
could result in significant expenses and could distract our management until resolved. 

The occurrence of any of these events could result in the erosion of our various brands and limitations on our ability 
to operate our business, as well as impede our ability to effectively compete against competitors with similar 
technologies, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Risks Relating to Personnel and Service Providers 

We face risks associated with our independent contractors. 

We have personnel that we classify as independent contractors for U.S. federal, state and international employment 
law purposes in certain positions in our business. We are not in a position to directly provide the same direction, 
motivation and oversight to these independent contractors as we would if such personnel were our own employees. As a 
result, these independent contractors may not comply with applicable law or our policies and procedures, including, but 
not limited to, our information security policies, or reflect our culture or values. If these independent contractors violate 
applicable law or of our policies and procedures in dealing with home services companies, consumers, service providers 
or other third parties or failure to meet our standards or reflect our culture could adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. In addition, a court could hold us civilly or criminally accountable based on 
vicarious liability because of the actions of our independent contractors.  

We are subject to the Internal Revenue Service regulations and state laws regarding independent contractor 
classification in the United States, which are subject to changes in judicial and agency interpretation, and it could be 
determined that the independent contractor classification is inapplicable. Furthermore, the legal landscape with respect to 
the classification of gig economy independent contractors, such as our service providers, is subject to intense public 
scrutiny. If legal standards for classification of independent contractors change, it may be necessary to modify our 
compensation structure for these personnel, including by paying additional compensation and taxes and/or reimbursing 
expenses, or abandon certain types of services we provide that are performed by independent contractors. In addition, if 
we are determined to have misclassified such personnel as independent contractors, we would incur additional exposure 
under federal and state law, including workers’ compensation, unemployment benefits, labor, employment and tort laws, 
including for prior periods, as well as potential liability for employee benefits and tax withholdings. Any of these 
outcomes could result in significant costs to us, could impair our financial condition and our ability to conduct our 
business and could damage our reputation and our ability to attract and retain other personnel. 

As of January 2023, we have over 800 individual independent contractors in aggregate located across Mexico, Costa 
Rica, India, and Canada. As a result, we are subject to certain additional risks related to independent contractors in 
foreign jurisdictions, including risks related to misclassification of such independent contractors under local law, 
compliance with other applicable local labor laws, resistance of commercial partners to off-shoring of customer service 
functions and related consumer data, fluctuations in foreign currencies, changes in the economic strength of Mexico, 
Costa Rica, India and Canada, difficulties in enforcing contractual obligations and intellectual property rights, economic 
sanctions and social, political and economic instability. In particular, the Mexican Congress of the Union has recently 
considered a bill which would impose additional restrictions on independent contracting practices, which could make it 
more expensive or difficult to retain the services of independent contractors in Mexico.  

In addition, many U.S.-based companies are seeking to hire talented information technology personnel and other 
skilled personnel located in other jurisdictions, leading to additional competition for the services of independent 
contractors in the jurisdictions in which we retain independent contractors. 
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The remote work by independent contractors and the use of their own equipment makes compliance with and 
enforcement of our information security policies and procedures more difficult. We must also comply with applicable 
anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and local laws prohibiting corrupt 
payments to government officials, which may present significant challenges in the jurisdictions in which we operate. We 
cannot guarantee compliance with all applicable laws, and violations could result in substantial fines, sanctions, civil or 
criminal penalties, competitive or reputational harm, litigation or regulatory action and other consequences that might 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We depend on key personnel to operate our business, and if we are unable to retain, attract and integrate qualified 
personnel, our ability to develop and successfully grow our business could be harmed. 

We believe our success has depended, and continues to depend, on the efforts and talents of our executives and 
employees. Our future success depends on our continuing ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain highly qualified 
and skilled employees. Qualified individuals are in high demand, and we may incur significant costs to attract and retain 
them. Experienced information technology personnel, who are critical to the success of our business, are in particularly 
high demand.  The loss or disability of executive officers or key employees could materially adversely affect our ability 
to execute our business plan and strategy, and we may not be able to find adequate replacements on a timely basis, or at 
all. Our executive officers and other employees are at-will employees, which means they may terminate their 
employment relationships with us at any time, and their knowledge of our business and industry would be extremely 
difficult to replace. 

Although our current remote work environment facilitates our ability to attract talent across a wider geographic 
base, we must adopt new techniques and tools to effectively train and integrate new hires and preserve our culture. 
Failure to effectively train our employees could create challenges for us in maintaining high levels of employee 
awareness of, and compliance with, our internal procedures and external regulatory compliance requirements, in addition 
to increasing our recruiting, training and supervisory costs, while failure to preserve our culture for any reason could 
harm our future success, including our ability to retain and recruit personnel, innovate and operate effectively and 
execute on our business strategy. 

In addition, job candidates and existing employees often consider the value of the equity awards they receive in 
connection with their employment. Volatility or lack of performance in our stock price may also affect our ability to 
attract and retain key employees.  Any failure to successfully attract, integrate or retain qualified personnel to fulfill our 
current or future needs could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

Our corporate culture has contributed to our success and, if we cannot continue to foster this culture as we grow, we 
could lose the passion, creativity, teamwork, focus and innovation fostered by our culture. 

We believe that our culture has been and will continue to be a key contributor to our success. As we grow and 
mature as a public company, we may find it difficult to maintain our corporate culture. If we do not continue to foster 
our corporate culture or maintain our core values as we grow and evolve, we may be unable to support the passion, 
creativity, teamwork, focus and innovation we believe we need to support our growth. Any failure to preserve our 
culture could negatively affect our ability to recruit and retain personnel and to effectively focus on and pursue our 
strategic objectives, which could, in turn, have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial 
condition. 

Risks Relating to Financial Reporting and Results of Operations 

We identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to remediate these 
material weaknesses, or if we identify additional material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an 
effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately or timely report our financial condition or results 
of operations, which may adversely affect our business and stock price. 

In connection with the audits of our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 
2022, management identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness 
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is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected on a timely basis.  

As of December 31, 2022, the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to the 
ineffective design and operation of information technology (IT) general controls over the IT systems supporting the 
Company’s subsidiary, Homeowners of America (HOA). Business process controls (automated and manual) that are 
dependent on the ineffective IT systems, or that rely on data produced from systems impacted by the ineffective IT 
general controls, are also deemed ineffective. We acquired HOA on April 5, 2021 and HOA was excluded from our 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting in 2021. 

Our planned remediation efforts related to the above identified material weakness include: 

• Reassess the existing IT general controls to determine if they are appropriately designed to meet the control 
objectives; 

• Perform ongoing trainings with control performers to improve documentation that supports effective control 
activities, including IT general controls over logical user access; 

• Design and implement additional monitoring controls necessary to detect misstatements over data produced by 
relevant financial systems at HOA;  

• Determine if additional investments are needed to upgrade or replace existing systems which do not have the 
appropriate infrastructure to meet the requirements of our internal control framework; and 

• Expand the available resources at the Company with experience in designing and implementing control 
activities, including information technology general controls and automated controls. 

The material weakness that the Company had in 2021 related to the following areas, which weaknesses were 
remediated during 2022: (i) the design and implementation of information technology general controls in the areas of 
user access and program change-management for systems, and related process-level automated controls, supporting the 
Company’s internal control processes (ii)  the identification, design, implementation, and retention of evidence of 
control activities, including controls over the completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity that is 
used in the operation of its control activities; and, (iii) the quantity of personnel across the organization to design and 
operate internal controls commensurate with the nature, growth, and complexity of our business. For more information, 
see Part I, Item 9A. Controls and Procedures in this Form 10-K. 

We plan to continue to assess our internal controls and procedures and intend to take further action as necessary or 
appropriate to address any other matters we identify. We cannot assure you that the measures we have taken to date and 
may take in the future, will be sufficient to remediate the control deficiencies that led to our material weaknesses in 
internal control over financial reporting or that we will prevent or avoid potential future material weaknesses. The 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting is subject to various inherent limitations, including cost 
limitations, judgments used in decision making, assumptions about the likelihood of future events, the possibility of 
human error and the risk of fraud. If our efforts to remediate the material weakness fail, our ability to record, process and 
report financial information accurately, and to prepare financial statements within the time periods specified by the 
forms of the SEC, could be adversely affected which, in turn, to may adversely affect our reputation and business and the 
market price of our common stock. In addition, the material weaknesses and our failure to remediate them could result in 
litigation or regulatory actions by the SEC or other regulatory authorities or other disputes involving federal and state 
securities laws, loss of investor confidence, delisting of our securities and harm to our reputation and financial condition, 
or diversion of financial and management resources from the operation of our business. 

In addition, it is possible that control deficiencies could be identified by our management or by our independent 
registered public accounting firm in the future or may occur without being identified. Such a failure could result in 
regulatory scrutiny and cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial condition, lead to a default under our 
current or future indebtedness and otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash 
flow or results of operations. 
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Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate in the future. As a result, we may fail to meet or exceed the expectations of 
research analysts or investors, which could cause our stock price to decline. 

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our 
control. If our quarterly operating results or guidance fall below the expectations of research analysts or investors, the 
price of our common stock could decline substantially. Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results or guidance may 
be due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, those listed below: 

• economic trends related to high growth software companies, companies not yet profitable, home-related 
companies, companies that went public through a special purpose acquisition company (SPAC) transaction, the 
home services and insurance industries, and general economic, industry and market conditions; 

• seasonality; 
• the extent to which home services companies, service providers and consumers employ our platform; 
• the extent to which new home services companies, consumers, service providers, and commercial partners are 

attracted to our solutions to satisfy their (and in the case of home services companies and commercial partners, 
their customers’) needs; 

• the timing, commitment levels, and revenue share rates at which we enter into agreement for our solutions with 
home services companies and service providers, along with their ongoing capacity and fulfillment performance 
to handle volume and the effectiveness of our marketing and affiliate channels to drive volume to our network; 

• the volume of consumer referrals that home services companies and commercial partners send to us, and the 
addition or loss of large home services companies or commercial partners, including through acquisitions or 
consolidations; 

• the mix of home services companies and commercial partners across small, mid-sized and large organizations; 
• changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors, including loss of customers due to increased price of 

our policies; 
• volatility in commissions from our insurance business; 
• severe weather events, extensive wildfires and other catastrophes, and the frequency of any of the foregoing, 

including the effects of climate change and global pandemics; 
• volatility, as well as severity, in claims from our insurance business; 
• widespread claim costs associated with P&C claims; 
• losses resulting from actual policy experience that is adverse to assumptions made in product pricing; 
• the timing and delay in introducing new policy pricing due to seeking regulatory approval for price changes 
• losses resulting from a decline in the value of our invested assets; 
• declines in value and/or losses with respect to companies and other entities whose securities we hold and 

counterparties with whom we transact business or to whom we have credit exposure, including reinsurers, and 
declines in the value of investments; 

• the financial health of our home services companies, consumers, service providers, and commercial partners; 
• the amount and timing of operating expenses, including those related to the maintenance and expansion of our 

business, operations and infrastructure; 
• the timing and success of new solutions introduced by us; 
• the timing and success of current and new products and services introduced by our competitors; 
• other changes in the competitive dynamics of our industry, including consolidation among competitors, 

customers or strategic partners; 
• our ability to manage our existing business and future growth, including increases in the number of customers 

on our platform and new geographic regions; and 
• various other factors, including those related to significant disruptions in our systems and platform 

infrastructure risks related to independent contractors, and privacy and data security breaches, each of which is 
described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section. 

 
Our earnings guidance and resulting external analyst estimates are largely based on our view of our business and the 

broader housing, housing services and insurance markets. Further, there is additional risk in our ability to accurately 
forecast our operational and financial performance and provide earnings guidance as a result of evolving economic 
downturn, continued inflationary cost increases and uncertainty of frequency and severity of weather events and related 
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claims. Failure to meet our guidance or analyst expectations for earnings would have an adverse impact on the market 
price of our common stock. 

We may be unable to access the capital markets when needed, which could adversely affect the ability to take advantage 
of business opportunities as they arise and to fund operations in a cost-effective manner. 

Our ability to grow our business depends, in part on the ability to access capital when needed to provide statutory 
surplus. Capital markets may become illiquid from time to time, and we cannot predict the extent and duration of future 
economic and market disruptions or the impact of any government interventions. We may not be able to obtain financing 
on acceptable terms, or at all. If we require capital but cannot raise it or cannot obtain financing on acceptable terms, our 
business, financial condition, and results of operations may be materially adversely affected, and we may be unable to 
execute our long-term growth strategy. 

Our quarterly results of operations fluctuate due to seasonality and other factors associated with our industry. 

Our businesses are seasonal, and our results of operations and cash flows fluctuate significantly from quarter to 
quarter. Historically, our revenues have been strongest in the second and third fiscal quarters due to peak real estate 
transaction activity occurring during the summer months. The first and fourth fiscal quarters are generally weakest, due 
to lower real estate transaction activity during the winter months. As a result, our operating results for any given 
quarterly period are not necessarily indicative of operating results for an entire year. In addition, we are rapidly evolving 
our partnerships and capabilities, which makes comparisons to previous seasons difficult. 

We have a history of losses, and we may be unable to achieve or sustain profitability. 

We have experienced net losses in each year since our inception. We incurred operating losses of $177.0 million, 
$83.1 million and $42.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and as of 
December 31, 2022, we had an accumulated deficit of $585.0 million. We will need to generate and sustain increased 
revenue levels and decrease proportionate expenses in future periods to achieve profitability, and even if we do, we may 
not be able to maintain or increase profitability. While we are undertaking efforts that we believe will increase our 
revenue, these efforts may not be sufficiently successful in order to offset these expenses. Many of our efforts to 
generate additional revenue are new and unproven, and any failure to adequately increase revenue or contain the related 
costs could prevent us from attaining or increasing profitability. Our recent growth in revenue and number of home 
services companies, consumers, service providers and commercial partners may not be sustainable, and we may not 
achieve sufficient revenue to achieve or maintain profitability. We may incur significant losses in the future for a number 
of reasons, including the other risks described in this “Risk Factors” section, and we may encounter unforeseen 
expenses, difficulties, complications and delays and other unknown events. Accordingly, we may not be able to achieve 
or maintain profitability and we may incur significant losses for the foreseeable future. 

Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects. 

We have been in existence since 2011, and much of our growth has occurred in recent periods. Our limited 
operating history may make it difficult for you to evaluate our current business and our future prospects. We have 
encountered and will continue to encounter risks and difficulties frequently experienced by growing companies in 
rapidly changing industries, including increasing and unforeseen expenses as we continue to grow our business. If we do 
not manage these risks successfully, our business will be harmed. 

We have incurred and will continue to incur increased costs as a result of being a public company that reports to the SEC 
and our management will be required to devote substantial time to meet compliance obligations.  

As a public company reporting to the SEC, we incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not 
incur as a private company. We are subject to reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002, as well as rules subsequently implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission that impose significant 
requirements on public companies, including requiring establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and 
financial controls and changes in corporate governance practices. In addition, on July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall 
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Street Reform and Protection Act was enacted. There are significant corporate governance and executive compensation-
related provisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that increased our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities 
more difficult, time-consuming or costly and may also place undue strain on our personnel, systems and resources. Our 
management and other personnel devote a substantial amount of time to these compliance initiatives. 

Compliance with public company requirements is costly and makes certain activities more time-consuming 
generally, and those costs will increase if we continue to acquire new companies, in particular. A number of those 
requirements will require us to carry out activities we, or an acquired company, have not done previously. For example, 
we have adopted and will continue to adopt new internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures. In addition, 
expenses associated with SEC reporting requirements will be incurred. Furthermore, if any issues in complying with 
those requirements are identified (for example, if the auditors identify a material weakness or significant deficiency in 
the internal control over financial reporting), we could incur additional costs rectifying those issues, and the existence of 
those issues could adversely affect our reputation or investor perceptions of it. 

Companies are also facing increasing scrutiny from customers, regulators, investors, and other stakeholders related 
to their environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) practices and disclosures.  Failure to adapt to or comply with 
regulatory requirements or investor or stakeholder expectations and standards could negatively impact our reputation, 
ability to do business with certain partners, and harm our business. New government regulations could also result in new 
or more stringent forms of ESG oversight and expanding mandatory and voluntary reporting, diligence, and disclosure. 
Increased ESG related compliance costs could impact our operations and business. 

Our risk management policies and procedures may prove to be ineffective and leave us exposed to unidentified or 
unanticipated risk. 

We have identified and continue to develop enterprise-wide risk management policies and procedures to mitigate 
risk and loss to which we are exposed. There are inherent limitations to our risk management strategies because there 
may be existing or future risks that have not been fully identified. If internal risk management policies and procedures 
are ineffective, we may suffer unexpected losses which could be material and adversely affect our financial results and 
operations. Our risk management framework may not evolve at the same pace as we expand our business. As a result, 
there is a risk that new products or new business strategies may present risks that are not fully identified, effectively 
monitored, or thoroughly managed. 

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards and certain other tax attributes may be limited. 

As of December 31, 2022, we had net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes and state 
income tax purposes of $410.9 million and $250.1 million, respectively, available to offset future taxable income. If not 
utilized, the federal net operating loss carryforward amounts generated prior to January 1, 2018 will begin to expire in 
2031, and the state net operating loss carryforward amounts will begin to expire in 2023. Realization of these net 
operating loss carryforwards depends on our future taxable income, and there is a risk that our existing carryforwards 
subject to expiration could expire unused and be unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities, which could 
materially and adversely affect our operating results. In addition, under Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, if a corporation undergoes an “ownership change,” generally defined as a greater than 50% 
change (by value) in its equity ownership over a three-year period, the corporation’s ability to use its pre-change net 
operating loss carryforwards and other pre-change tax attributes, such as research tax credits, to offset its post-change 
income may be limited. The Company has determined that it has experienced a limited number of ownership changes in 
its history, but have concluded that the resulting limitation does not impose any significant constraints on the benefit of 
its tax attributes. Additional ownership changes may occur in the future. 

Risks Relating to Our Insurance Business 

We face a variety of risks through our expansion into the insurance business. 

In 2020, we expanded our lines of business to include home, auto, flood and umbrella insurance through the 
formation and licensure of EIG, our wholly owned licensed insurance agency. In addition, in 2021, we expanded our 
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insurance operations through the acquisition of HOA, a leading property and casualty insurance company focused on 
products in the residential homeowner space.  We are a full-service insurance company operating in 21 states exposing 
us to the additional risks of underwriting and of handling and managing insurance claims. Other risks of our entry into 
the insurance business include, without limitation, difficulties integrating the new insurance business with our ongoing 
operations, potential diversion of management’s time and other resources from our previously-established lines of 
business, the need for additional capital and other resources to expand into this new line of business, and inefficient 
integration of operational and management systems and controls. 

Claims by consumers against an agency’s errors and omissions (E&O) insurance coverage are common in the 
insurance industry. If a carrier denies a consumer’s claim under an insurance policy or the consumer has insufficient 
coverage and the consumer therefore has to pay out of pocket for a loss, the consumer often seeks relief from agency that 
sold the policy. While we maintain E&O coverage, we could experience losses if claims by consumers exceed our 
coverage limitations. In addition, if we were to experience a significant number of claims or if our E&O coverage were 
to lapse, insurance providers could elect to terminate their relationships with us, and we could face challenges in finding 
replacement coverage. 

Furthermore, we bear the cost of paying insured claims. As a result, the likelihood of being significantly affected by 
the risks inherent to the insurance industry, and the magnitude of such risks, are increased. Although we follow the 
industry practice of transferring, or ceding, part of the risk we have assumed to a reinsurance company in exchange for 
part of the premium we receive in connection with the risk or securing excess of loss reinsurance coverage, we may not 
be able to successfully mitigate our risk through such reinsurance arrangements. Although reinsurance would make the 
reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred to the reinsurer or we have coverage under an excess of loss 
reinsurance arrangement, it will not relieve us of our liability to our policyholders. If any of our reinsurers are unable or 
unwilling to pay amounts they owe us in a timely fashion, we could suffer a significant loss or a shortage of liquidity, 
which would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. In addition, reinsurance may not 
be available for an acceptable cost or at all. Failure to successfully mitigate an acceptable portion of our risk could 
materially and adversely affect our ability to write insurance business and harm our business. If our actual losses from 
insured claims were to exceed our loss reserves, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be 
adversely affected. 

The Company has implemented a reinsurance program, which includes the use of a captive reinsurer. Under this 
arrangement, the captive owned by the Company serves as the reinsurer, and the consolidated books and tax returns of 
the Company reflect a liability consisting of the full reserve amount attributable to the reinsured business. The success of 
the Company’s captive reinsurance program is dependent on a number of factors outside the control of the Company, 
including, but not limited to, continued access to financial solutions, a favorable regulatory environment, and the overall 
tax position of the Company. If the captive reinsurance program is not successful, the Company’s financial condition 
could be adversely impacted. 

HOA is highly dependent on maintaining successful relationships with third-party independent agents and agencies. 
Negative changes in such relationships could adversely affect HOA’s insurance business, including, but not limited to, 
reduced sales, the loss of existing policies, the need to lower prices, or the need to pay higher commissions. In addition, 
although such agents/agencies are appointed as independent contractors with the authority to solicit and bind insurance 
policies on HOA’s behalf any misconduct on their part could have an adverse effect on our business, financial 
conditions, reputation and results of operations. 

The financial strength ratings of our insurance subsidiaries could be downgraded. 

Financial strength ratings reflect a rating agency’s opinion of our insurance subsidiaries’ financial strength, 
operating performance, strategic position and ability to meet obligations to policyholders. Our ratings are subject to 
periodic review and there is no assurance that our ratings will not be changed. Rating agencies could change or expand 
their requirements or could find that our insurance subsidiaries no longer meet the criteria established for current ratings. 
If our insurer financial strength ratings were to be downgraded, our agents might find it more difficult to market our 
products or might choose to emphasize the products of other carriers and lenders would be likely to not accept our 
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insurance as sufficient to protect their collateral. Either or both could have severe financial consequences for our 
insurance subsidiaries. 

Increases in parts, appliance and home system prices and other operating costs could adversely impact our business, 
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Our home warranty business line may be adversely affected by increases in the level of our operating expenses, such 
as refrigerants, appliances and equipment, parts, raw materials, wages and salaries, employee benefits, healthcare, 
contractor costs, self-insurance costs and other insurance premiums, as well as various regulatory compliance costs, all 
of which may be subject to inflationary and other pressures. Such increase in operating expenses, including contract 
claims costs, could have a material adverse impact on our consolidated business, financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows. 

Prices for raw materials, such as steel and fuel, are subject to market volatility. We cannot predict the extent to 
which our home warranty business line may experience future increases in costs of refrigerants, appliances and 
equipment, parts, raw materials, wages and salaries, employee benefits, healthcare, contractor costs, self-insurance costs 
and other insurance premiums, as well as various regulatory compliance costs and other operating costs. To the extent 
such costs increase, we may be prevented, in whole or in part, from passing these cost increases through to our existing 
and prospective customers, which could have a material adverse impact on our consolidated business, financial position, 
results of operations and cash flows. 

Our insurance businesses are dependent in part or wholly on commissions, from insurance carriers or reinsurers and 
depend on our relationships with insurance providers with no long-term contractual commitments.  

We sell insurance policies to consumers as the insurance agency and then receive commissions from the insurance 
carriers. As we continue our growth in the insurance space and expansion from an insurance agency to a managed 
general agency or insurance carrier, we expect to derive a greater percentage of our insurance revenue from insurance 
policies and reinsurance policies. Our agreements with insurance carriers are short-term agreements, and many of the 
insurance carriers can end their business with us at any time with no notice. We expect any future agreements with 
reinsurers will typically have annual terms. As a result, we cannot guarantee that insurance carriers or reinsurers will 
continue to work with us, or, if they do, we cannot guarantee the commissions they will pay in the first year of the policy 
as well as each additional year. The commissions we earn are based on premiums and commission rates set by the 
carriers, and any decreases in these premiums or commission rates, including as a result of adverse trends in the 
insurance industry, would decrease our revenue. In addition, we may not be able to attract new insurance carriers or 
reinsurers to our services or increase the amount of revenue we earn from our insurance business over time. The 
insurance business is historically cyclical in nature, and we may experience periods with excess underwriting capacity 
and unfavorable premium rates, which could adversely affect our business. 

If we are unable to maintain in good standing existing relationships with insurance carriers, or unable to add new 
insurance carriers or reinsurers, or if we become dependent on a limited number of carriers or reinsurers, we may be 
unable to meet the expectations of consumers and other counterparties in our insurance businesses. This deficiency could 
reduce confidence in our ability to offer competitive rates and terms, making us less popular with such consumers and 
counterparties. As a result, our insurance businesses could be materially impacted, which could have an adverse impact 
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

If insurance providers stop working with us or pay us lower amounts for new customers, or if we are unable to 
establish and maintain new relationships with other insurance providers, our insurance businesses could be materially 
affected, which in turn could impact our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
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Our insurance businesses compete with a large number of companies in the insurance industry for underwriting 
premium. 

During periods of intense competition for premium, our insurance businesses are exposed to the actions of other 
companies that may seek to write policies without the appropriate regard for risk and profitability. During these times, it 
is very challenging to grow or maintain premium volume without sacrificing underwriting discipline and income. 

The effects of emerging claim and coverage issues in the insurance industry are uncertain. 

As industry practices, economic, legal, judicial, social, and other environmental conditions change, unexpected 
issues related to claims and coverage may emerge. These issues may adversely affect our insurance businesses by either 
extending coverage beyond the underwriting intent or by increasing the number and size of claims. Examples of 
emerging claims and coverage issues include, but are not limited to: 

• Judicial expansion of policy coverage and the impact of new theories of liability; 

• Plaintiffs targeting property and casualty (“P&C”) insurers in class action litigation relating to claims-handling 
and other practices; 

• Medical developments linking health issues to particular cases, resulting in liability claims; and 

• Claims related to unanticipated consequences of current or new technologies, including cyber-security related 
risks and claims relating to potentially changing climate conditions. 

In some instances, these emerging issues may not become apparent for some time after affected insurance policies 
have been issued. As a result, the full extent of liability may not be immediately known, nor their financial impacts 
adequately provided for in premium charges. 

In addition, potential passage of new legislation designed to expand the right to sue, to remove limitations on 
recovery, to extend statutes of limitations or otherwise repeal or weaken tort reforms could have an adverse impact on 
our insurance businesses. 

The effects of these and other unforeseen emerging claim and coverage issues are difficult to predict and could harm 
our insurance businesses and materially adversely affect their results and operations. 

Our insurance subsidiaries are dependent on the use of reinsurance. 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements reflect the effects of reinsurance transactions. The primary 
purpose of reinsurance is to protect the Company, at a cost, from losses in excess of the amount it is prepared to accept 
and to protect the Company’s capital. Reinsurance is placed on both a quota-share and excess-of-loss basis.  Ceded 
reinsurance arrangements do not discharge the Company as the primary insurer and if reinsurers are unable or unwilling 
to pay or if we do not purchase sufficient reinsurance, it could seriously impact our insurance subsidiaries.   

Additionally, our net premiums written and earned will be impacted by the amount of premiums we cede under our 
reinsurance transactions. The amount of profit commission we receive, which reduces the amount of premiums we cede, 
is variable year-to-year and is dependent on the amount of losses ceded. Changes from one year to the next or within a 
year could substantially change the financial performance of our insurance subsidiaries, the amount of capital available 
for our insurance subsidiaries or both. 

The failure to accurately and timely pay claims could harm our insurance businesses. 

Though our insurance businesses historically evaluated and paid claims timely and in accordance with its policies 
and statutory obligations, they must continue to manage costs and close claims expeditiously. Many factors affect the 
ability to evaluate and pay claims accurately and timely, including training and experience of claims staff, claims 
department’ s culture and the effectiveness of management, the ability to develop or select and implement appropriate 
procedures and systems to support claims functions and other factors. The failure to accurately and timely pay claims 
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could lead to regulatory and administrative actions or material litigation, undermine our insurance businesses’ reputation 
in the marketplace and materially and adversely affect their businesses, financial conditions and results of operations. 

If our insurance businesses are unable to hire, train and retain claims staff, their claims departments may be required 
to handle an increasing workload, which could adversely affect the quality of their claims administration, and could 
materially and adversely impact our business. 

Reinsurance may be unavailable at current levels and prices, which may limit our ability to write new business. 
Furthermore, reinsurance subjects us to counterparty risk and may not be adequate to protect us against losses, which 
could have a material effect on results of our operations and financial condition. 

Reinsurance is a contract by which an insurer, which may be referred to as the ceding insurer, agrees with a second 
insurer, called a reinsurer, that the reinsurer will cover a portion of the losses incurred by the ceding insurer in the event 
a claim is made under a policy issued by the ceding insurer, in exchange for a premium. HOA obtains reinsurance to 
help manage its exposure to property and casualty insurance risks. Although our reinsurance counterparties are liable to 
us according to the terms of the reinsurance policies, we remain primarily liable to our policyholders as the direct 
insurers on all risks reinsured. As a result, reinsurance does not eliminate the obligation of our insurance subsidiaries to 
pay all claims, and we are subject to the risk that one or more of our reinsurers will be unable or unwilling to honor its 
obligations, that the reinsurers will not pay in a timely fashion, or that our losses are so large that they exceed the limits 
specified in our reinsurance contracts, limiting recovery. Reinsurers may become financially unsound by the time that 
they are called upon to pay amounts due, which may not occur for many years, in which case we may have no legal 
ability to recover what is due to us under our agreement with such reinsurer. Any disputes with reinsurers regarding 
coverage under reinsurance contracts could be time consuming, costly, and uncertain of success. 

We may change the structure of our reinsurance arrangement in the future, which may impact our overall risk profile and 
financial and capital condition. 

We may be unable to negotiate new reinsurance contracts to provide continuous coverage or negotiate reinsurance 
on the same terms and rates as are currently available, as such availability depends in part on factors outside of our 
control. A new contract may cost more, or may not provide sufficient reinsurance protection. Market forces and external 
factors, such as significant losses from hurricanes or terrorist attacks or an increase in capital requirements, has 
impacted, and likely to continue to impact, the availability and cost of the reinsurance we purchase. If we were unable to 
maintain our current level of reinsurance, extend our reinsurance contracts or purchase new reinsurance protection in 
amounts that we consider sufficient at current or acceptable prices, we would have to either accept an increase in our 
exposure, reduce our insurance writings or develop or seek other alternatives. 

The unavailability of acceptable reinsurance protection would have an adverse impact on our business model, which 
depends on reinsurance companies to absorb any unfavorable variance from the level of losses anticipated at 
underwriting. If we are unable to obtain adequate reinsurance at reasonable rates, we would have to increase our risk 
exposure or reduce the level of our underwriting commitments, each of which could have a material adverse effect upon 
our business volume and profitability. Alternatively, we could elect to pay higher than reasonable rates for reinsurance 
coverage, which could have a material adverse effect upon our profitability until policy premium rates could be raised, in 
most cases subject to approval by state regulators, which could cause long delays to offset this additional cost. 

Failure to maintain our insurance carriers’ risk-based capital at the required levels could adversely affect the ability of 
our insurance subsidiary to maintain regulatory authority to conduct our business. 

We must have sufficient capital to comply with insurance regulatory requirements and maintain authority to conduct 
our business. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners has developed a system to test the adequacy of 
statutory capital of U.S.-based insurers, known as risk-based capital that all states have adopted. This system establishes 
the minimum amount of capital necessary for an insurance company to support its overall business operations. It 
identifies insurers, including property-casualty insurers, that may be inadequately capitalized by looking at certain 
inherent risks of each insurer’s assets and liabilities and its mix of net written premiums. Insurers falling below a 
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calculated threshold may be subject to varying degrees of regulatory action, including supervision, rehabilitation or 
liquidation.  

Similarly, our wholly-owned, Cayman Islands-based captive reinsurer, Porticus Re, is subject to additional capital 
and other regulatory requirements imposed by the CIMA. Although these capital requirements are generally less 
constraining than U.S. capital requirements, failure to satisfy these requirements could result in regulatory actions from 
the CIMA or loss of or modification of Porticus Re’s Class B(iii) insurer license, which could adversely impact our 
ability to improve our overall capital efficiency and support our “capital-light” model. 

As an emerging entrant to the insurance industry, we may face additional capital and surplus requirements as 
compared to those of our larger and more established competitors. Failure to maintain adequate risk-based capital at the 
required levels could result in increasingly onerous reporting and examination requirements and could adversely affect 
our ability to maintain regulatory authority to conduct our business. 

Our insurance businesses’ loss reserves may be inadequate to cover actual losses. 

Loss reserves are estimates of the ultimate cost of claims and do not represent a precise calculation of any ultimate 
liability. These estimates are based on historical information and on estimates of future trends that may affect the 
frequency and severity of claims that may be reported in the future. Estimating loss reserves is a difficult, complex, and 
inherently uncertain process involving many variables and subjective judgments, Significant periods of time can elapse 
between the occurrence of an insured loss, the reporting of a claim, and payment of that claim. Loss reserves are 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims and do not represent a precise calculation of any ultimate liability of our 
insurance businesses. These estimates are based on the analysis of historical loss development patterns and on estimates 
of current labor and material costs. The various factors reviewed include: 

• loss emergence, reporting and development patterns; 

• underlying policy terms and conditions; 

• business and exposure mix; 

• trends in claims frequency and severity; 

• changes in operations; 

• emerging economic and social trends; 

• inflation; and 

• changes in the regulatory and litigation environments. 

This process assumes that past experience, adjusted for the effects of current developments and anticipated trends, is 
an appropriate basis for predicting future events. It also assumes that adequate historical or other data exists upon which 
to make these judgments. There is no precise method for evaluating the impact of variances in estimates. If the actual 
amount of insured losses is greater than the amount reserved for these losses, our insurance businesses’ profitability 
could suffer. 

The performance of our insurance businesses’ investment portfolios is subject to a variety of investment risks. 

The results of operations of our insurance businesses depend, in part, on the performance of their investment 
portfolios. Our insurance businesses seek to hold a high-quality portfolio managed by a provider investment advisory 
firm in accordance with its investment policy and routinely reviewed by the internal management team. Investments, 
however, are subject to general economic conditions and market risks as well as risks inherent to particular securities. 

The values of our insurance businesses’ investment portfolios are subject to the risk that certain investments may 
default or become impaired due to deterioration in the financial condition of an issuer’s payments on such investments. 
Downgrades in the credit ratings of fixed income securities could also have a significant negative effect on the market 
valuation of such securities. 
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Such factors could reduce our insurance businesses’ net investment incomes and result in realized investment losses, 
as well as negatively impact its statutory capital. Our insurance businesses’ investment portfolios are subject to increased 
valuation uncertainties when investment markets are illiquid, thereby increasing the risk that the estimated fair value (i.e. 
carrying amount) of the securities our insurance businesses hold in their portfolio does not reflect prices at which accrual 
transactions would occur. 

Risks for all types of securities are managed through the application of our insurance businesses’ investment 
policies, which establish investment parameters that include maximum percentages of investment in certain types of 
securities and minimum levels of credit quality, which they believe are within applicable guidelines established by the 
National Association of Insurance Commissioners. In addition, our insurance businesses seek to employ investment 
strategies that are not correlated with its insurance and reinsurance exposures, however, losses in their investment 
portfolios may occur at the same time as underwriting losses. 

Our insurance businesses could be forced to sell investments to meet liquidity requirements. 

Our insurance businesses invest premiums until they are needed to pay policyholder claims. Consequently, our 
insurance businesses seek to manage the duration of their investment portfolios based on the duration of their losses and 
loss adjustment expenses payment cycles in order to ensure sufficient liquidity and to avoid having to unexpectedly 
liquidate investments to fund claims. In addition, unfavorable trends in litigation could potentially result in the need to 
sell investments to fund these liabilities. Our insurance businesses may not be able to sell their investments at favorable 
prices or at all. Sales of invested assets could result in significant realized losses depending on the conditions of the 
general market, interest rates, and credit issues with individual securities. 

Our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected due to limitations in the analytical models 
used to assess and predict our exposure to catastrophic losses. 

Models developed internally and by third-party vendors are used along with our own historical data in assessing 
property insurance exposure to catastrophic losses. These models assume various conditions and probability scenarios; 
however, they do not necessarily accurately predict future losses or measure losses currently incurred. Further, the 
accuracy of such models may be negatively impacted by changing climate conditions. Catastrophe models use historical 
information and scientific research about natural events, such as hurricanes and earthquakes, as well as detailed 
information about our in-force business. This information is used in connection with pricing and risk management 
activities. However, since actual catastrophic events vary considerably, there are limitations with respect to its usefulness 
in predicting losses in any reporting period. Other limitations are evident in significant variations in estimates between 
models, material increases and decreases in results due to model changes and refinements of the underlying data 
elements and actual conditions that are not yet well understood or may not be properly incorporated into the models. 

Our business may also be adversely affected by downturns in the home, auto, flood and umbrella insurance industries, 
and the cyclical nature of the insurance industry. 

Through our wholly owned subsidiary and licensed insurance agency EIG, we primarily serve customers in the 
homeowners’ insurance market. We also sell auto, flood and umbrella insurance and we expect sales in those markets to 
increase in the future. Decreases in consumer demand in the home and automotive industries in general could adversely 
affect the demand for insurance and, in turn, the number of consumers we provide insurance quotes and corresponding 
sales. For example, negative trends in the real estate industry, such as decreases rental payments and increases in home 
values have the potential to adversely affect home purchases and to decrease the demand for homeowners, flood and 
umbrella insurance. In addition, consumer purchases of homes and new and used automobiles generally decline during 
recessionary periods and other periods in which income is adversely affected and may be affected by negative trends in 
the broader economy, including the availability and cost of credit, reductions in business and consumer confidence, stock 
market volatility and increased unemployment. 

We are also subject to the cyclical nature of the insurance industry. The financial performance of the insurance 
industry has historically fluctuated with periods of lower premium rates and excess underwriting capacity resulting from 
increased competition followed by periods of higher premium rates and reduced underwriting capacity resulting from 
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decreased competition. Although the financial performance of an insurance company depends on its own specific 
business characteristics, the profitability of many insurance companies tends to follow this cyclical market pattern. 
Because market cyclability is due in large part to the actions of competitors and general economic factors, we cannot 
predict the timing or duration of changes in the market cycle. 

Insurance commission revenue recognition and changes within our insurance business may create a fluctuation of our 
business results and expose us to additional risks. 

Current accounting standards allow an insurance agency like EIG to recognize the full lifetime value of each 
insurance sale up front, because EIG does not service the customer or have any other responsibilities after the initial sale. 
EIG then collects the ongoing commission payments from the insurance carriers on an ongoing basis each year so long 
as the customer does not cancel the insurance. In the future, EIG may begin to provide ongoing services to the 
policyholder or customer in order to receive higher commission amounts and a higher overall lifetime value. We would 
expect any such change to result in a shift in revenue recognition from the first year to ongoing years, which could 
increase long-term growth rates but negatively impact our short-term results. 

There can be no assurance that our planned formation of a reciprocal exchange will receive regulatory approval, and if 
obtained, that the approval would be based on terms as proposed or subject to additional requirements that may not be 
acceptable to the Company. 

There can be no assurance that the Texas reciprocal exchange (the “Reciprocal”) will commence business. Porch has 
announced plans to file an application with the Texas Department of Insurance (“TDI”) to form and license the 
Reciprocal.  Applications of this nature involve intensive dialog with regulators that can result in material changes to all 
aspects of the business plan originally presented, including changes that could cause Porch to terminate and not proceed 
with its plans to form the Reciprocal.  Matters within the scope of the TDI’s review include but are not limited to those 
listed below:  

• the adequacy of the Reciprocal's and HOAIC’s capitalization and methods used to capitalize it;  

• the terms of the Reciprocal's governing documents, including the compensation paid to the attorney-in-fact;  

• the premiums to be charged by the Reciprocal and the benefits offered to its subscribers; 

• the amount and duration of the subscriber contribution paid by its subscribers  

• the Reciprocal’s relationship with Porticus Re, HOA’s managing general agency and EIG, including 
reinsurance premium, commissions and fees charged by them for services as general agent;  

• the powers and composition of the Reciprocal’s subscribers' committee; and  

• the terms of sale of HOAIC to the Reciprocal. 

Insurance is regulated on a state-by-state basis.  Approval by the TDI, if obtained, applies only to the Reciprocal's 
ability to operate in Texas.  Expansion outside of Texas will require additional state-by-state applications, with each 
application subject to dialog with state regulators that can result in changes unfavorable the Reciprocal, including 
changes that could cause Porch to terminate plans to expand the Reciprocal into specific states. 

Under existing GAAP, we expect the Reciprocal will consolidate with Porch for financial reporting purposes.  
While deconsolidation of the Reciprocal from Porch is a goal, there is no assurance that our plan for achieving 
deconsolidation will be successful, nor can there be any assurance that deconsolidation will be achieved in the future.  
Accordingly, all the risk factors identified in this section that currently adversely affect our existing insurance business 
will continue to adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations if the Reciprocal 
successfully commences business. 

If Porch’s plans are implemented, the sole sources of insurance income available to Porch will be (a) the 
management fee received by its subsidiary that will serve as the attorney-in-fact of the Reciprocal, (b) commissions and 
fees charged by HOA’s managing general agency and EIF for services as general agent and (c) reinsurance premiums 
paid by the Reciprocal to Porticus Re, our Cayman Islands captive reinsurance company. 
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An attorney-in-fact's income is the product of two factors: (a) the gross written premium paid to the reciprocal 
exchange by subscribers plus reinsurance premiums paid to the reciprocal exchange by affiliated insurers, multiplied by 
(b) the percentage of gross written premium set by the reciprocal exchange's governing documents.  Porch has proposed 
governing documents that set a maximum fee, but allow the attorney-in-fact to set a lower fee.  There are various factors 
that can influence the attorney-in-fact’s decision to set the fee at a specific level including, but not limited to, the 
reciprocal exchange's financial strength, capital position, projected revenue and expenses and competitive position in the 
market. 

If the amount of gross written premiums paid to the Reciprocal decreases for any reason, the fee revenue of the 
attorney-in-fact will correspondingly decrease.  The risk factors that adversely affect insurance sales within our existing 
insurance businesses will apply to insurance sales by the Reciprocal.  As an entirely new entity, there can be no 
assurance how the Reciprocal will be received by consumers, regulators, rating agencies, and entities that historically 
refer business to HOA.  Our efforts to encourage a transition of policyholders from HOAIC to the Reciprocal may result 
in a number of existing HOAIC policyholders shifting their business to other insurers, leading to a decrease in the 
overall level of premium currently written in the insurance segment of our business. 

Likewise, if the fee percentage decreases, the fee revenue to the attorney-in-fact will correspondingly decrease.  
Events that may result in a decrease in an attorney-in-fact's fee include, but are not limited to price competition, 
regulatory disapproval of our rates or the AIF fee.   

An attorney-in-fact is a separate legal entity from a reciprocal exchange.  Porch will be the owner of the attorney-in-
fact and will not possess any legal ownership in the reciprocal exchange.  If the Reciprocal terminates Porch as its 
attorney-in-fact, it will no longer have access to the attorney-in-fact fees or reinsurance premiums as sources of revenue.   

A reciprocal exchange has no mechanism by which dividends or distributions of profits can be paid to an attorney-
in-fact.  The sale of HOAIC to the Reciprocal will result in Porch no longer having access to dividends from HOAIC.  
Except for the fees and commissions paid to the AIF, [MGA] and EIG, Porch will derive no cash flow benefit from 
profitable operating results in the Reciprocal or HOAIC. 

Nothing in the laws governing Texas reciprocal exchanges makes an attorney-in-fact liable for losses incurred by a 
reciprocal exchange.  Nevertheless, Porch, through its ownership of the AIF, will have an interest in the financial 
condition of the Reciprocal.  If the Reciprocal fails to maintain acceptable levels of financial strength and ratings, its 
competitive position in the market would be adversely affected.  Anything that adversely affects premium income to the 
Reciprocal results in decreased fee revenue to the AIF.  Porch may, for various business reasons impossible at present to 
predict, decide to provide additional surplus to the Reciprocal in response to future adverse financial developments in the 
Reciprocal's business.  Nothing herein, however, constitutes a commitment by Porch to make contributions to the surplus 
of the Reciprocal under any circumstances. 

In the unlikely event that the Reciprocal were to become insolvent, existing law allows the TDI to commence a 
receivership proceeding over the Reciprocal.  An exchange cannot be a debtor under the Federal Bankruptcy Code.  A 
Texas receiver may be able to compel the attorney-in-fact to continue providing services to a reciprocal exchange that is 
involved in a receivership proceeding.  A Texas receiver may also bring action against an attorney-in-fact within a 
receivership proceeding based on available theories of damages arising from the attorney-in-fact's management of the 
reciprocal exchange.  While various single business enterprise theories may also be asserted by a Texas receiver to 
obtain jurisdiction over the assets of an attorney-in-fact, the success of any such assertion of jurisdiction is uncertain 
under existing law and would be highly dependent upon the facts and circumstances existing at the time. 

The material risks to Porch from operating its insurance business through a reciprocal exchange may differ 
considerably from risks described herein due to requirements imposed on Porch and the Reciprocal by the TDI as 
conditions for approving the formation and licensing of the Reciprocal, or by insurance regulators in other states as 
conditions for granting insurance licenses to the Reciprocal, which requirements cannot be known at this time. 
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Risks Relating to Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Litigation 

Our insurance businesses are subject to state governmental regulation, which could limit the growth of our insurance 
businesses and impose additional costs on us. 

Our insurance businesses are subject to extensive regulation and supervision by individual state insurance 
departments in the states where they transact business.  This regulation is generally designed to protect the interests of 
customers, and not necessarily the interests of insurers or agents, their shareholders, or other investors. Numerous 
aspects of our insurance  businesses are subject to regulation, including premium rates, mandatory covered risks, 
limitations on the ability to renew or elect not to renew business, prohibited exclusions, licensing and appointment of 
agents, restrictions on the size of risks that may be insured under a single policy, policy forms and coverages, advertising 
and other conduct, including restrictions on the use of credit information and other underwriting factors, as well as other 
underwriting and claims practices. To the extent our insurance businesses decide to expand product offerings to include 
other insurance products, such as pet, auto, or life insurance, this would subject them to additional regulatory 
requirements and scrutiny in each state where it elects to offer such products. States may also regulate various aspects of 
the contractual relationships between insurers and independent agents. 

Such laws and regulations are usually overseen and enforced by various insurance departments, as well as through 
private rights of action and by state attorneys general. Such regulations or enforcement actions may result in rate 
suppression, limit the ability of our insurance businesses to manage exposure to unprofitable or volatile risks, or lead to 
fines, premium refunds, or other adverse consequences. As a result of noncompliance, regulators could impose fines or 
other penalties, including cease-and-desist orders for an individual state, or all states, until the identified noncompliance 
is rectified. 

Our insurance businesses are also subject to examinations by the insurance departments of corresponding to the state 
where domiciled. The insurance department may, at any time, conduct special or targeted examinations to address 
concerns or perceived deficiencies. Insurance regulators of other states in which our insurance businesses are licensed to 
sell insurance may also conduct examinations. The results of these examinations can give rise to regulatory orders 
requiring remedial, injunctive, or other corrective action. 

Our insurance businesses maintain licenses with a number of individual state insurance departments. If we are 
unable to comply with such regulations, we may be precluded or temporarily suspended from carrying on some or all of 
the activities of our insurance businesses or otherwise be fined or penalized in a given jurisdiction. Additionally, actual 
or perceived failure to comply with such state regulation may give rise to a right to terminate under arrangements with 
the insurance providers. Our continued ability to maintain our insurance licenses in the jurisdictions in which we are 
licensed or to expand to new operations or new jurisdictions depends on our compliance with the rules and regulations 
promulgated from time to time by the regulatory authorities in each of these jurisdictions. Furthermore, state insurance 
departments conduct periodic examinations, audits and investigations of the affairs of insurance companies and agencies, 
any of which could result in the expenditure of significant management time or financial resources. 

In all jurisdictions, the applicable laws and regulations are subject to amendment and interpretation by regulatory 
authorities. Generally, such authorities are vested with relatively broad discretion to grant, renew and revoke licenses 
and approvals and to implement and interpret rules and regulations. No assurances can be given that our insurance 
businesses can continue to be conducted in any given jurisdiction as it has been conducted in the past or that we will be 
able to expand our insurance business in the future. 

Certain states require insurers, such as HOA, to participate in various pools or risk sharing mechanisms or to accept 
certain classes of risk, regardless of whether such risks meet underwriting guidelines for voluntary business. Some states 
also limit or impose restrictions on the ability of an insurer to withdraw from certain classes of business. State insurance 
departments can impose significant charges on an insurer in connection with a market withdrawal or refuse to approve 
withdrawal plans on the ground that this could lead to market disruption. Laws and regulations that limit cancellations 
and non-renewals of policies or that subject withdrawal plans prior to approval requirements may significantly restrict 
our insurance businesses’ ability to exit unprofitable markets. Such actions and related regulatory restrictions may limit 
their ability to reduce potential exposure to hurricane-related losses. 
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Furthermore, certain states have enacted laws requiring an insurer conducting business in that state to participate in 
assigned risk and/or shared market plans. For example, state law requires all companies licensed to write property 
insurance in Texas to be a member of the Texas Windstorm Insurance Association (TWIA). TWIA provides basic 
property coverage to applicants in certain designated catastrophe areas who are unable to obtain insurance in the private 
market. Carrier participation is based on the amount of a company’s voluntary market share. In these markets, our 
insurance business, Homeowners of America Insurance Company (HOAIC), may be compelled to underwrite significant 
amounts of business at lower-than-desired rates, possibly leading to an unacceptable return on equity. Alternatively, as 
TWIA recognizes a financial deficit, it has the ability to assess participating insurers, adversely affecting our results of 
operations and financial condition.  Furthermore, certain states require insurers to participate in guaranty funds for 
impaired or insolvent companies. These funds periodically assess losses against all insurance companies doing business 
in the state. During 2022, HOAIC was subject to guaranty fund assessments in Texas and South Carolina. Our results of 
operations and financial condition could be adversely affected by any of these factors. 

Certain of our business customers (namely, including loan officers, mortgage companies, financial institutions and other 
companies’ business customers that may be involved in the home purchase, mortgage and settlement process) are or may 
be, and in some cases we are or may be, subject to, and/or we may facilitate compliance with, a variety of federal, state, 
and local laws, including those related to consumer protection and financial services. 

Many of our customers and prospective customers are highly regulated and, of that group, may be required to 
comply with stringent regulations in connection with performing business functions that our products and services 
address. In some cases, we facilitate (directly or indirectly) compliance with these regulatory requirements. While we 
currently operate our business in an effort to ensure our business itself is not subject to extensive regulation, there is a 
risk that certain regulations could become applicable to us, including as we expand the functionality of, and services 
offered through our platforms. In addition, we and our partners, vendors, and other service providers must comply with 
laws and regulatory regimes that apply to us directly and our partners, vendors, and other service providers indirectly, 
such as through certain of our products and/or our contractual relationships with our customers. 

In particular, certain laws, regulations, and rules our customers are subject to, and with which may or do facilitate 
compliance, directly or indirectly, include: 

• the Truth in Lending Act, or TILA, and Regulation Z promulgated thereunder, and similar state laws, which 
require certain disclosures to borrowers regarding the terms and conditions of their loans and credit 
transactions, and require creditors to comply with certain lending practice restrictions as well as the TILA-
RESPA Integrated Disclosure rule, or TRID, which imposes specific requirements around the collection of 
information, charging of fees, and disclosure of specific loan terms and costs upon receipt of an application for 
credit; 

• the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, or RESPA, and Regulation X, which, among other matters, prohibits 
giving or accepting any fee, kickback or a thing of value for the referral of real estate settlement services or 
accepting a portion or split of a settlement fee other than for services actually provided; for affiliated business 
relationships, prohibits receiving anything other than a legitimate return on ownership, requiring use of an 
affiliate, and failing to provide a disclosure of the affiliate relationship; 

• the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, or ECOA, and Regulation B promulgated thereunder, and similar state fair 
lending laws, which prohibit creditors from discouraging or discriminating against credit applicants on the basis 
of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, marital status, the fact that all or part of the applicant’s income 
derives from any public assistance program or the fact that the applicant has in good faith exercised any right 
under the federal Consumer Credit Protection Act; 

• the Fair Credit Reporting Act, or FCRA, and Regulation V promulgated thereunder, which impose certain 
obligations on consumer reporting agencies, users of consumer reports and those that furnish information to 
consumer reporting agencies, including obligations relating to obtaining consumer reports, marketing using 
consumer reports, taking adverse action on the basis of information from consumer reports and protecting the 
privacy and security of consumer reports and consumer report information; 

• Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, or the FTC Act, which prohibits unfair and deceptive acts or 
practices in or affecting commerce, and Section 1031 of the Dodd-Frank Act, which prohibits unfair, deceptive 
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or abusive acts or practices in connection with any consumer financial product, warranty contract or service, 
and analogous state laws prohibiting unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices; 

• the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, or GLBA, and Regulation P promulgated thereunder, which include limitations 
on financial services firms’ disclosure of nonpublic personal information about a consumer to nonaffiliated 
third parties, in certain circumstances requires financial services firms to limit the use and further disclosure of 
nonpublic personal information by nonaffiliated third parties to whom they disclose such information, and 
requires financial services firms to disclose certain privacy notices and practices with respect to information 
sharing with affiliated and unaffiliated entities as well as to safeguard personal borrower information, and other 
privacy laws and regulations; 

• the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, or HMDA, and Regulation C, which require reporting of loan origination 
data, including the number of loan applications taken, approved, denied and withdrawn; 

• the Fair Housing Act, or FHA, which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, sex, national 
origin, and certain other characteristics; 

• the Secure and Fair Enforcement for Mortgage Licensing, or the SAFE Act, which imposes state licensing 
requirements on mortgage loan originators; 

• the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, or ESIGN Act, and similar state laws, 
particularly the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, or UETA, which authorize the creation of legally binding 
and enforceable agreements utilizing electronic records and signatures and which require financial services 
firms to obtain a consumer’s consent to electronically receive disclosures required under federal and state laws 
and regulations; 

• the Americans with Disabilities Act, or ADA, which has been interpreted to include websites as “places of 
public accommodations” that must meet certain federal requirements related to access and use; 

• the Bank Secrecy Act, or BSA, and the USA PATRIOT Act, which relate to compliance with anti-money 
laundering, borrower due diligence and record-keeping policies and procedures; 

• the regulations promulgated by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, or OFAC, under the U.S. Treasury 
Department related to the administration and enforcement of sanctions against foreign jurisdictions and persons 
that threaten U.S. foreign policy and national security goals, primarily to prevent targeted jurisdictions and 
persons from accessing the U.S. financial system; and 

• other federal, state-specific and local laws and regulations. 
 

In addition to the laws, regulations, and rules that apply to our customers and others, and that we facilitate 
compliance with, we may be deemed to be subject to certain laws, regulations, and rules through our relationships with 
our customers or others including RESPA, FCRA, FTC Act, GLBA, FHA, TSR, ESIGN Act, ADA, OFAC, and other 
federal and state-specific laws and regulations, including those that impose requirements related to unfair or deceptive 
business practices and consumer protection, as well as other state laws relating to privacy, information security, and 
conduct in connection with data breaches. We may also be examined on a periodic basis by various regulatory agencies 
and may be required to review certain of our partners, vendors, or other service providers. These potential examinations 
may lead to increased regulatory compliance efforts that are time-consuming and expensive operationally. Matters 
subject to review and examination by federal and state regulatory agencies and external auditors include our internal 
information technology controls in connection with our performance of services, the agreements giving rise to these 
activities, and the design of our products and services. Any inability to satisfy these examinations and maintain 
compliance with applicable regulations could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business, including attracting 
and maintaining customers. 

Furthermore, federal and state officials are discussing various potential changes to laws and regulations that could 
impact us, including additional data privacy regulations, among others. Changes in these areas, generally in the 
regulatory environment in which we and our customers operate, could adversely impact our competitive position and 
results of operations. 

While we have developed policies and procedures designed to assist in compliance with these laws and regulations, 
no assurance can be given that our compliance policies and procedures will be effective. Compliance with these 
requirements is also costly, time-consuming and limits our operational flexibility. Additionally, Congress, states’ 
regulatory agencies, as well as local municipalities, could further regulate the relevant industries in ways that make it 
more difficult or costly for us to offer our products and related services. These laws also are often subject to changes that 
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could severely limit the operations of our business model. Further, changes in the regulatory application and/or judicial 
interpretation of the laws and regulations applicable to our businesses could also impact the manner in which we conduct 
our business. If we or our partners, vendors or other service providers are found to be in non-compliance with applicable 
laws, we could become subject to greater scrutiny by federal and/or state regulatory agencies, and/or face other 
sanctions, which may have an adverse effect on our ability to continue to provide our services or make our products and 
related services available in particular states, or utilize the services of third-party providers, which may harm our 
business. In addition, non-compliance could subject us to damages, class action lawsuits, administrative enforcement 
actions, rescission rights held by investors in securities offerings and civil and criminal liability, all of which would 
adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 

The processing, storage, use and disclosure of personal data is subject to a variety of federal and state laws and 
regulations and could give rise to liabilities and increased costs. 

We receive, process, store and transmit a significant amount of personally confidential or sensitive personal 
information about consumers that use our products and services. In addition, we accept payments (including recurring 
payments) from home services companies, consumers and service providers. The manner in which we share, store, use, 
disclose and protect this information is determined by the respective privacy and data security policies of our various 
businesses, as well as federal and state laws and regulations and evolving industry standards and practices. These laws, 
regulations, standards and practices are continually evolving, and in some cases, may subject us to inconsistent and 
conflicting obligations and may be subject to differing interpretations. In addition, new laws, regulations, standards and 
practices of this nature are proposed and adopted from time to time. 

Moreover, multiple legislative proposals concerning privacy and the protection of user information are being 
considered by the U.S. Congress and various state legislatures (including those in Illinois, New York, Virginia and 
Washington). Other U.S. state legislatures have already enacted privacy legislation, one of the strictest and most 
comprehensive of which is the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 (the “CCPA”). The CCPA became effective 
January 1, 2020, and imposes strict requirements and restrictions on the use of personal information with respect to 
California consumers, including mandating that companies provide consumers with information with respect to personal 
information being collected about them and how it is being used upon request, as well granting consumers significant 
control over the use of their personal information (including the right to have such information deleted and the right to 
object to the “sale” (as defined in the CCPA) of such information) and mandating new operational requirements for 
businesses (primarily providing consumers with enhanced privacy-related disclosures). The CCPA imposes strict 
requirements on the ability of our businesses to use personal California user and subscriber information in connection 
with our various products, services and operations, such as retargeting users with advertisements online, which could 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. The CCPA also provides consumers with a 
private right of action for security breaches, as well as statutory damages of up to $750 per violation, with the California 
Attorney General maintaining authority to enforce the CCPA and seek civil penalties for intentional violations of the 
CCPA of up to $7,500 per violation. Further, the California Privacy Rights Act, or CPRA, expanded the CCPA when it 
took effect on January 1, 2023. Among other things, the CPRA introduced data minimization and storage limitation 
requirements and created a new regulatory agency to implement and enforce the law. Virginia and Colorado have 
similarly enacted comprehensive privacy laws, the Virginia Consumer Data Protection Act and the Colorado Privacy 
Act, which are similar to the CCPA and CPRA in many respects and became effective on January 1, 2023. Legislative 
proposals to adopt comprehensive privacy laws in other states are under consideration. 

While we continue to invest heavily in compliance efforts with respect to applicable privacy and data protection 
policies, law and regulation and industry standards and practices, we could still be subject to claims of non-compliance 
that we may not be able to successfully defend, and/or to significant fines and penalties. Moreover, any non-compliance 
or perceived non-compliance by us or any third party we engage to store or process information, or any compromise of 
security that results in unauthorized access to (or use or transmission of) personal information could result in a variety of 
claims against us, including governmental enforcement actions, significant fines, litigation (including consumer 
class actions), claims for breach of contract and indemnity by third parties and adverse publicity. When such events 
occur, our reputation could be harmed and the competitive positions of our various brands and businesses could be 
diminished, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, to the 
extent multiple U.S. state-level laws are introduced with inconsistent or conflicting standards and there is no federal 
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preemption of such laws, compliance could be even more difficult to achieve and our potential exposure to the risks 
discussed above could increase. 

Furthermore, our ability to comply with all applicable privacy and data protection policies, law and regulation and 
industry standards and practices may affect our ability to do business with our commercial partners. Some commercial 
partners have imposed significant data protection requirements in the past, and commercial partners may in the future 
impose requirements that, particularly given our relative size and resources, result in burdensome compliance obligations 
to us. These obligations and ongoing compliance with existing and future privacy and data protection laws worldwide 
could be costly, and if we cannot fully comply, we could face liability, reputational harm or loss of relationships with 
customers or commercial partners. The devotion of significant costs to compliance (versus the development of products 
and services) could result in delays in the development of new products and services, decreases in or loss of business 
with commercial partners, abandonment of problematic products and services in existing jurisdictions and an inability to 
introduce new products and services in certain new and existing jurisdictions, each of which could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

We are subject to payment network rules and any material modification of our payment card acceptance privileges could 
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.  

The loss of our credit and debit card acceptance privileges or the significant modification of the terms under which 
we obtain card acceptance privileges would significantly limit our business model since a substantial number of our 
customers and commercial partners pay using credit or debit cards. We are required by our payment processors to 
comply with payment card network operating rules, including the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (the 
“PCI DSS”). Under the PCI DSS, we are required to adopt and implement internal controls over the use, storage, and 
transmission of card data to help prevent credit card fraud. If we fail to comply with the rules and regulations adopted by 
the payment card networks, including the PCI DSS, we would be in breach of our contractual obligations to payment 
processors and merchant banks. Such failure to comply may damage our relationship with payment card networks, 
subject us to restrictions, fines, penalties, damages, and civil liability, and could eventually prevent us from processing 
or accepting payment cards, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and 
financial condition. Moreover, the payment card networks could adopt new operating rules or interpret or reinterpret 
existing rules that we or our payment processors might find difficult or even impossible to comply with, or costly to 
implement. As a result, we could lose our ability to give consumers the option of using payment cards to make their 
payments. Further, there is no guarantee that, even if we comply with the rules and regulations adopted by the payment 
card networks, we will be able to maintain our payment card acceptance privileges. We also cannot guarantee that our 
compliance with network rules or the PCI DSS will prevent illegal or improper use of our payments platform or the theft, 
loss, or misuse of the credit card data of customers or participants, or a security breach. We are also required to submit to 
periodic audits, self-assessments, and other assessments of our compliance with the PCI DSS. If an audit, self-
assessment, or other assessment indicates that we need to take steps to remediate any deficiencies, such remediation 
efforts may distract our management team and require us to undertake costly and time-consuming remediation efforts, 
and we could lose our payment card acceptance privileges. 

Our marketing efforts are subject to a variety of federal and state regulations. 

We conduct marketing activities, directly and indirectly, via telephone, text (SMS) messages, email, direct mail 
and/or through other online and offline marketing channels. Such general marketing activities are governed by numerous 
federal and state regulations, including the Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), the TCPA, state and federal Do-Not-Call 
regulations and other state telemarketing laws, federal and state privacy laws, the CAN-SPAM Act, and the FTC Act and 
its accompanying regulations and guidelines, among others. In addition to being subject to action by regulatory agencies, 
some of these laws, like the TCPA, allow private individuals to bring litigation against companies for breach of these 
laws. We are also dependent on our third-party partners to comply with applicable laws. Any lawsuit or action by a 
regulatory agency for an actual or alleged violation of applicable law or regulation by us or our third-party partners may 
have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

All US jurisdictions require insurers to maintain control of their marketing materials. States have adopted legislation 
defining and prohibiting unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive practices in the business of insurance. 
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Prohibited practices include but are not limited to, misrepresentations, false advertising, coercion, disparaging other 
insurers, unfair claims settlement practices and procedures, and discrimination in the business of insurance. 
Noncompliance with any such state statute may subject our insurance businesses to regulatory action by the relevant 
state insurance regulator, and in certain states, private litigation. 

The federal government may also regulate aspects of our insurance businesses, such as protection of consumer 
confidential information, or the use of consumer credit scores to underwrite and assess the risk of customers under the 
Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”). Among other things, the FCRA requires insurance companies to have a 
permissible purpose prior to obtaining and using a consumer report for underwriting purposes as well as comply with 
notice and recordkeeping requirements. Failure to comply with federal requirements under the FCRA or any other 
applicable federal laws would subject our insurance businesses to regulatory fines and other sanctions. 

Litigation and regulatory actions could distract management, increase our expenses or subject us to material monetary 
damages and other remedies. 

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims that have arisen out of the conduct of our business and are 
not yet resolved, including claims alleging violations of the automated calling and/or Do Not Call restrictions of the 
TCPA,  and putative class action claims for failure to pay overtime, failure to pay compensation at the time of separation 
and unfair business practices in violation of California law. In the future, we may be involved from time to time in 
various additional legal proceedings, including, but not limited to, actions relating to breach of contract, breach of 
federal and state privacy laws, and intellectual property infringement, as well as regulatory investigations or civil and 
criminal enforcement actions that might necessitate changes to our business or operations. Regardless of whether any 
claims, investigations or actions against us have merit, or whether we are ultimately held liable or subject to payment of 
damages or penalties, claims, investigations and enforcement actions may be expensive to defend or comply with, and 
may divert management’s time away from our operations. If any legal proceeding, regulatory investigation or regulatory 
enforcement action were to result in an unfavorable outcome, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial position and results of operations. Any adverse publicity resulting from actual or potential litigation, regulatory 
enforcement actions or regulatory investigations may also materially and adversely affect our reputation, which in turn 
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” for 
additional information with respect to material litigation and other proceedings to which we are party. 

Our moving services business is subject to state regulations and certain state regulatory structures do not address our 
business model for moving services. Compliance with required licensure and other regulatory requirements could be 
costly and any inability to comply could harm our business. 

Our moving services business is subject to licensure and bonding requirements that various states impose in 
connection with the performance of certain services and trades. Additionally, in some jurisdictions, the existing 
regulatory structures do not contemplate our hybrid business model of marketplace (where consumers search for 
providers on our platform and book moving services themselves) and managed services (where we manage moving 
services on consumers’ behalf). Furthermore, interest groups in certain jurisdictions have lobbied and may in the future 
lobby for regulations that make our hybrid model more difficult or impossible to maintain in those jurisdictions. Any 
future changes to (or judicial or regulatory interpretations of) these regulations, whether due to lobbying efforts or 
otherwise, could impose significant compliance costs. Any failure to obtain or maintain required licensure and otherwise 
comply with applicable regulations in relevant jurisdictions could inhibit or prohibit our ability to operate our moving 
services business in those jurisdictions. Additionally, we may be deemed, correctly or incorrectly, a contractor with 
respect to our service providers, which may subject us to licensure and/or bonding requirements and may subject us to 
penalties for past operations. Any of the foregoing could have a negative impact on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

Moreover, any failures by us, contracted operators, or third-party carriers, to comply with the various applicable 
federal safety laws and regulations, or downgrades in our safety rating, could have a material adverse impact on our 
operations or financial condition, and could cause us to lose customers, as well as the ability to obtain insurance 
coverage for certain moving services. 
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Our primary operating subsidiary may not be qualified to do business in all jurisdictions in which we have sufficient 
nexus of operations to require qualification. 

While we offer products and services to home services companies, service providers and consumers in all 50 states, 
Porch.com, Inc., our primary operating subsidiary, is qualified to do business only in Washington, Texas and Delaware. 
Failure by us or any of our subsidiaries to qualify as a foreign corporation in a jurisdiction where we are required to do 
so could subject us to penalties and the obligation to pay taxes for prior periods, and could result in our inability to 
enforce contracts in such jurisdictions. Any such failure could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations and financial condition. 

Risks Relating to Our Acquisition Strategy 

The Company’s earnings growth strategy is partially dependent on the acquisition and successful integration of other 
businesses. 

The Company has a history of acquiring businesses as part of its earnings growth strategy. Typically, the Company 
considers acquiring companies that can be integrated within an existing business. Acquisitions of this type involve 
numerous risks, which may include a failure to realize expected revenue growth and operating and cost synergies from 
integration initiatives, increasing dependency on the markets served by the combined businesses or increased debt to 
finance the acquisitions. 

The Company also considers the acquisition of businesses that may operate independent of existing businesses. 
Acquisitions of this type involve risks similar to those encountered when acquiring companies that can be integrated 
within an existing business, including a failure to realize expected revenue growth or operating and cost reductions 
within the acquired business, and could increase the possibility of diverting corporate management’s attention from its 
existing operations. 

The successful realization of revenue growth, cost reductions and synergies with our existing businesses, and within 
acquired stand-alone businesses, and increases in profitability overall, are dependent upon successful integration 
initiatives. If these integration initiatives are not fully realized, there may be a negative effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

We may experience risks related to acquisitions. 

We have made acquisitions in the past and we continue to seek to identify potential acquisition candidates to expand 
our business generally in the future. If we do not identify suitable acquisition candidates or complete acquisitions with 
satisfactory pricing and other terms, our growth could be adversely affected. Even if we complete what we believe to be 
suitable acquisitions, we may experience related operational and financial risks. As a result, to the extent that we 
continue to grow through acquisitions, we will need to: 

• properly identify, value, and complete prospective acquisitions, especially those of companies with limited 
operating histories; 

• successfully integrate acquired businesses to the extent and in a manner that aligns with our strategy; 

• successfully identify and realize potential synergies among acquired and existing business; 

• retain or hire senior management and other key personnel at acquired businesses; and 

• successfully manage acquisition-related strain on our management, operations and financial resources. 

We may not be successful in addressing these challenges or any other problems encountered in connection with 
historical and future acquisitions. Adverse reactions by potential acquisition targets could frustrate our ability to execute 
on our acquisition strategy as could the failure of our due diligence process to uncover material risks, legal or otherwise. 
We may also be negatively impacted by adverse reactions of home services companies, consumers, service providers 
and business partners to the disclosure or consummation of any acquisition. In addition, the anticipated benefits of one or 
more acquisitions may not be realized. Also, future acquisitions could result in increased operating losses, dilutive 
issuances of equity securities and/or the assumption of contingent liabilities. Additionally, acquisitions may be 
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compensated in part with future or contingent payments that will create future liabilities or dilution for us upon the 
consummation of such acquisitions. Lastly, the value of goodwill and other intangible assets acquired could be impacted 
by one or more continuing unfavorable events and/or trends, which could result in significant impairment charges. The 
occurrence of any of these events could have an adverse effects on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations.  

The success of any acquisition depends on achieving anticipated synergies, benefits and cost savings, and further 
depends, in part, on our ability to successfully combine and integrate our culture and current operations with the 
acquired company’s culture and business. It is possible that the integration process could result in higher than expected 
costs, diversion of management attention, the disruption of either company’s ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in 
standards, controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect the combined company’s ability to maintain 
relationships with customers, suppliers, vendors and employees, operating in a decentralized environment for longer than 
expected, or to achieve the anticipated benefits and cost savings of any particular acquisition. If we experience 
difficulties with the integration process or other unforeseen costs, the anticipated benefits and cost savings of any 
acquisition may not be realized fully or at all, or may take longer to realize than expected. Management continues to 
refine its integration plan. The integration planning and implementation process will result in significant costs and divert 
management attention and resources. These integration matters could have an adverse effect on our combined company 
for an undetermined period. Any of the foregoing may have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations and financial condition. 

We may not be able to effectively manage our growth. 

Our future growth, if any, may cause a significant strain on our management and our operational, financial, and 
other resources. Our ability to manage our growth effectively will require us to implement and improve our operational, 
financial, and management systems and to expand, train, manage, and motivate our employees. These demands may 
require the hiring of additional management personnel and the development of additional expertise by our management. 
Any increase in resources used without a corresponding increase in our operational, financial, and management systems 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 

Risks Relating to our Convertible Notes due 2026 (the “2026 Notes”) and Indebtedness 

The conditional conversion feature of the 2026 Notes, if triggered, may adversely affect our financial condition and 
operating results. 

We completed an offering of the 2026 Notes in September 2021. In the event the conditional conversion feature of 
the notes is triggered, holders of notes will be entitled to convert the notes at any time during specified periods at their 
option. If one or more holders elect to convert their notes, unless we elect to satisfy our conversion obligation by 
delivering solely shares of our common stock (other than paying cash in lieu of delivering any fractional share), we 
would be required to settle a portion or all of our conversion obligation through the payment of cash, which could 
adversely affect our liquidity. In addition, even if holders do not elect to convert their notes, we could be required under 
applicable accounting rules to reclassify all or a portion of the outstanding principal of the notes as a current rather than 
long-term liability, which would result in a material reduction of our net working capital. 

Conversion of our 2026 Notes may dilute the ownership interest of our stockholders or may otherwise depress the price 
of our common stock. 

The conversion of some or all of our 2026 Notes may dilute the ownership interests of our stockholders. Upon 
conversion of the notes, we have the option to pay or deliver, as the case may be, cash, shares of our common stock, or a 
combination of cash and shares of our common stock. If we elect to settle our conversion obligation in shares of our 
common stock or a combination of cash and shares of our common stock, any sales in the public market of our common 
stock issuable upon such conversion could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our common stock. However, in 
connection with the pricing of the 2026 Notes, we entered into capped call transactions with certain option 
counterparties. The capped call transactions are expected generally to reduce (but not eliminate) potential dilution to our 
common stock upon conversion of any notes and/or offset any cash payments we are required to make in excess of the 
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principal amount of converted notes, as the case may be, with such reduction and/or offset subject to a cap. Finally, the 
existence of the 2026 Notes may encourage short selling by market participants that engage in hedging or arbitrage 
activity, and anticipated conversion of the notes into shares of our common stock could depress the price of our common 
stock. 

Certain provisions in the indenture governing the 2026 Notes may delay or prevent an otherwise beneficial takeover 
attempt of us. 

Certain provisions in the indenture governing the 2026 Notes may make it more difficult or expensive for a third 
party to acquire us. For example, the indenture governing the notes requires us to repurchase the notes for cash upon the 
occurrence of a fundamental change (as defined in the indenture governing the notes) of us and, in certain circumstances, 
to increase the conversion rate for a holder that converts their notes in connection with a make-whole fundamental 
change (as defined in the indenture governing the notes). A takeover of us may trigger the requirement that we 
repurchase the notes and/or increase the conversion rate, which could make it more costly for a potential acquirer to 
engage in such takeover. Such additional costs may have the effect of delaying or preventing a takeover of us that would 
otherwise be beneficial to investors. 

Servicing our indebtedness requires a significant amount of cash, and we may not have sufficient cash flow from our 
business to make such payments. 

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the principal of, to pay interest on or to refinance our indebtedness now 
or in the future (including the 2026 Notes), depends on our future performance, which is subject to economic, financial, 
competitive and other factors beyond our control. In addition, our ability to repurchase the 2026 Notes or to pay cash 
upon conversions of the notes may be limited by law, by regulatory authority or by agreements governing our future 
indebtedness. Our business may not continue to generate cash flow from operations in the future sufficient to service our 
indebtedness and make necessary capital expenditures. If we are unable to generate such cash flow, we may be required 
to adopt one or more alternatives, such as selling assets, restructuring debt or obtaining additional equity capital on terms 
that may be onerous or highly dilutive. Our ability to refinance indebtedness (including the 2026 Notes) will depend on 
the capital markets and our financial condition at such time. Our failure to repurchase notes at a time when the 
repurchase is required by the indenture or to pay any cash payable on future conversions of the notes as required by the 
indenture would constitute a default under the indenture. A default under the indenture or the fundamental change itself 
could also lead to a default under agreements governing our future indebtedness. If the repayment of the related 
indebtedness were to be accelerated after any applicable notice or grace periods, we may not have sufficient funds to 
repay the indebtedness and repurchase the notes or make cash payments upon conversions thereof. We may not be able 
to engage in any of these activities or engage in these activities on desirable terms, which could result in a default the 
notes. 

The accounting method for the 2026 Notes could adversely affect our reported financial condition and results. 

The accounting method for reflecting the 2026 Notes on our balance sheet, accruing interest expense for the notes 
and reflecting the underlying shares of our common stock in our reported diluted earnings per share may adversely affect 
our reported earnings and financial condition. We expect that the notes will be reflected as a liability on our balance 
sheets, with the initial carrying amount equal to the principal amount of the notes, net of issuance costs. The issuance 
costs attributable to the notes will be treated as a debt discount for accounting purposes, which will be amortized into 
interest expense over the term of the notes. As a result of this amortization, the interest expense that we expect to 
recognize for the notes for accounting purposes will be greater than the cash interest payments we will pay on the notes, 
which will result in lower reported income. In addition, we expect that the shares underlying the notes will be reflected 
in our diluted earnings per share using the “if converted” method. However, if reflecting the notes in diluted earnings per 
share is anti-dilutive, then the shares underlying the notes will not be reflected in our diluted earnings per share. 
Accounting standards may change in the future in a manner that may adversely affect our diluted earnings per share. 
Furthermore, if any of the conditions to the convertibility of the notes is satisfied, then we may be required under 
applicable accounting standards to reclassify the liability carrying value of the notes as current, rather than a long-term, 
liability. This reclassification could be required even if no noteholders convert their notes and could materially reduce 
our reported working capital. 
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The capped call transactions may affect the value of the 2026 Notes and our common stock. 

In connection with the pricing of the 2026 Notes, we entered into capped call transactions with certain option 
counterparties. The capped call transactions are expected generally to reduce potential dilution to our common stock 
upon conversion of any notes and/or offset any cash payments we are required to make in excess of the principal amount 
of converted notes, as the case may be, with such reduction and/or offset subject to a cap. In connection with establishing 
their initial hedges of the capped call transactions, the option counterparties or their respective affiliates purchased shares 
of our common stock and/or entered into various derivative transactions with respect to our common stock concurrently 
with or shortly after the pricing of the notes. In addition, the option counterparties and/or their respective affiliates may 
modify their hedge positions by entering into or unwinding various derivatives with respect to our common stock and/or 
purchasing or selling our common stock or other securities of ours in secondary market transactions following the 
pricing of the notes and prior to the maturity of the notes (and are likely to do so during any observation period related to 
a conversion of notes). This activity could cause or avoid an increase or a decrease in the market price of our common 
stock or the notes, which could affect your ability to convert the notes and, to the extent the activity occurs following 
conversion or during any observation period related to a conversion of notes, it could affect the number of shares and 
value of the consideration that you will receive upon conversion of such notes. Finally, if any such capped call 
transactions fail to become effective, the option counterparties or their respective affiliates may unwind their hedge 
positions with respect to our common stock, which could adversely affect the value of our common stock and the value 
of the notes. 

Additional Risks Relating to Ownership of Company Securities 

The price of the Company’s securities may change significantly, and investors could lose all or part of their investment 
as a result. 

The trading price of the Company’s common stock is likely to be volatile. The stock market recently has 
experienced extreme volatility. This volatility often has been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance 
of particular companies. You may not be able to resell your shares at an attractive price due to a number of factors such 
as those listed in “Risks Relating to Porch’s Business and Industry” and the following: 

• results of operations that vary from the expectations of securities analysts and investors; 
• results of operations that vary from those of the Company’s competitors; 
• the duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and its continued effect on the Company’s business and 

financial conditions; 
• changes in expectations as to the Company’s future financial performance, including financial estimates and 

investment recommendations by securities analysts and investors; 
• declines in the market prices of stocks generally; 
• strategic actions by the Company or its competitors; 
• announcements by the Company or its competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, joint ventures, other 

strategic relationships or capital commitments; 
• any significant change in the Company’s management; 
• changes in general economic or market conditions or trends in the Company’s industry or markets; 
• changes in business or regulatory conditions, including new laws or regulations or new interpretations of 

existing laws or regulations applicable to the Company’s business; 
• future sales of the Company’s common stock or other securities; 
• investor perceptions or the investment opportunity associated with the Company’s common stock relative to 

other investment alternatives; 
• the public’s response to press releases or other public announcements by the Company or third parties, 

including the Company’s filings with the SEC; 
• litigation involving the Company, the Company’s industry, or both, or investigations by regulators into the 

Company’s operations or those of the Company’s competitors; 
• guidance, if any, that the Company provides to the public, any changes in this guidance or the Company’s 

failure to meet this guidance; 
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• additional dilution caused by the Company issuing additional equity, whether grants related to its Management 
Incentive Plan, stock provided to acquisitions as some or all of the purchase price, future fundraising events, or 
other issuances approved by the Company’s Board of Directors; 

• the development and sustainability of an active trading market for the Company’s common stock; 
• actions by institutional or activist stockholders; 
• changes in accounting standards, policies, guidelines, interpretations or principles; and 
• other events or factors, including those resulting from natural disasters, war, acts of terrorism, other global 

health crises and pandemics, or responses to these events. 
 

These broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the Company’s common 
stock, regardless of the Company’s actual operating performance. In addition, price volatility may be greater if the 
public float and trading volume of the Company’s common stock is low. 

In the past, following periods of market volatility, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation. If 
the Company was involved in securities litigation, it could have a substantial cost and divert resources and the attention 
of executive management from the Company’s business regardless of the outcome of such litigation. 

Future sales, or the perception of future sales, by the Company or its stockholders in the public market could cause the 
market price for the Company’s common stock to decline. 

The sale of shares of the Company’s common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales could 
occur, could harm the prevailing market price of shares of the Company’s common stock. These sales, or the possibility 
that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for the Company to sell equity securities in the future at a 
time and at a price that it deems appropriate. 

Lock-up agreements entered into by certain existing stockholders of the Company recently expired following the 
12-month anniversary of the Company’s merger with PTAC and launch as a public company in December 2020. Shares 
held by such stockholders are currently eligible for resale, subject to volume, manner of sale and other limitations under 
Rule 144. If such stockholders begin selling their shares or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them, the 
market price of the common stock could drop significantly. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to raise 
additional funds through future offerings of common stock or other securities. 

In addition, common stock reserved for future issuance under our equity incentive plans will become eligible for 
sale in the public market once those shares are issued, subject to provisions relating to various vesting agreements, lock-
up agreements and, in some cases, limitations on volume and manner of sale applicable to affiliates under Rule 144, as 
applicable. As of December 31, 2022, the aggregate number of shares of common stock reserved for future issuance 
under our equity incentive plans is 11,189,745. The compensation committee of our Board of Directors will determine 
the exact number of shares to be issued during 2023 and the number of shares reserved for future issuance under its 
equity incentive plans at its discretion. We have filed and may in the future file one or more registration statements on 
Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) to register shares of common stock or 
securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock issued pursuant to our equity incentive plans. 
Any such Form S-8 registration statements will automatically become effective upon filing. Accordingly, shares 
registered under such registration statements generally will be available for sale in the open market. 

We have issued and plan to issue shares of common stock in connection with recently completed, pending or future 
acquisitions. Certain of the total consideration in these acquisitions is earnout consideration, which, if payable, will be in 
the form of shares of common stock issuable in the future. We may also issue securities in connection with investments 
or acquisitions in the future. The amount of shares of common stock issued in connection with an investment or 
acquisition could constitute a material portion of our then-outstanding shares of common stock. Any issuance of 
additional securities in connection with investments or acquisitions may result in additional dilution to our stockholders.  
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NASDAQ may delist the Company’s securities from trading on its exchange, which could limit investors’ ability to 
make transactions in its securities and subject the Company to additional trading restrictions. 

Currently, our common stock is publicly traded on the NASDAQ under the symbol PRCH. In order to continue 
listing our securities on the NASDAQ, the Company will be required to maintain certain financial, distribution and stock 
price levels. Generally, the Company will be required to maintain a minimum amount in stockholders’ equity (generally 
$2,500,000 for companies trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market) and a minimum number of holders of our securities 
(generally 300 public holders).  NASDAQ also requires the Company to comply with a minimum closing bid price 
requirement of $1.00 per share for thirty consecutive business days. If a company trades for thirty consecutive business 
days below the $1.00 minimum closing bid price requirement, NASDAQ will send a deficiency notice to the company 
advising that it has been afforded a “compliance period” of 180 calendar days to regain compliance with the applicable 
requirements. 

If NASDAQ delists the Company’s securities from trading on its exchange and the Company is not able to list its 
securities on another national securities exchange, we expect our securities could be quoted on an over-the-counter 
market. If this were to occur, we could face significant material adverse consequences, including: 

• a limited availability of market quotations for our securities; 

• reduced liquidity for our securities; 

• a determination that the Company common stock is a “penny stock” which will require brokers trading in 
Company common stock to adhere to more stringent rules and possibly result in a reduced level of trading 
activity in the secondary trading market for our securities; 

• a limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and 

• a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future. 

The National Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996, which is a federal statute, prevents or preempts the 
states from regulating the sale of certain securities, which are referred to as “covered securities.” Since the Company’s 
common stock is listed on the NASDAQ, they are covered securities. Although the states are preempted from regulating 
the sale of its securities, the federal statute does allow the states to investigate companies if there is a suspicion of fraud, 
and, if there is a finding of fraudulent activity, then the states can regulate or bar the sale of covered securities in a 
particular case. If the Company was no longer listed on the NASDAQ, its securities would not be covered securities and 
it would be subject to regulation in each state in which it offers its securities. 

Because there are no current plans to pay cash dividends on the Company’s common stock for the foreseeable future, 
you may not receive any return on investment unless you sell your common stock for a price greater than that which you 
paid for it. 

The Company intends to retain future earnings, if any, for future operations, expansion and debt repayment and 
there are no current plans to pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future. The declaration, amount and payment of 
any future dividends on shares of the common stock will be at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. The 
Company’s Board of Directors may take into account general and economic conditions, the Company’s financial 
condition and results of operations, the Company’s available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capital 
requirements, contractual, legal, tax, and regulatory restrictions, implications on the payment of dividends by the 
Company to its stockholders or by its subsidiaries to it and such other factors as the Company’s Board of Directors may 
deem relevant. In addition, the Company’s ability to pay dividends is limited by covenants of Porch’s existing and 
outstanding indebtedness and may be limited by covenants of any future indebtedness the Company incurs. As a result, 
investors may not receive any return on an investment in the Company’s common stock unless they sell the Company’s 
common stock for a price greater than that what the investor paid for it. 

If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about the Company’s business or if they downgrade the 
Company’s stock or the Company’s sector, the Company’s stock price and trading volume could decline. 

The trading market for the Company’s common stock will rely in part on the research and reports that industry or 
financial analysts publish about the Company or its business. The Company will not control these analysts. In addition, 
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some financial analysts may have limited expertise with Porch’s model and operations. Furthermore, if one or more of 
the analysts who do cover the Company downgrade its stock or industry, or the stock of any of its competitors, or 
publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about its business, the price of the Company’s stock could decline. If one or 
more of these analysts ceases coverage of the Company or fails to publish reports on it regularly, the Company could 
lose visibility in the market, which in turn could cause its stock price or trading volume to decline. 

Anti-takeover provisions in the Company’s organizational documents could delay or prevent a change of control. 

The Company’s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the “Charter”) and its Amended and Restated 
Bylaws (the “Bylaws”) contain certain provisions that may have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, defer or prevent 
a merger, acquisition, tender offer, takeover attempt or other change of control transaction that a stockholder might 
consider in its best interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares 
held by the Company’s stockholders.  First, the Board of Directors is classified into three classes.  Directors of each class 
serve for staggered three-year periods. Although the Company’s Board has amended the Charter to eliminate this 
classified Board structure, the declassification will not be fully phased in until after the 2024 annual meeting of 
stockholders. 

Certain provisions of the Company’s Charter and Bylaws may have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, defer or 
prevent a merger, acquisition, tender offer, takeover attempt or other change of control transaction that a stockholder 
might consider in its best interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the 
shares held by the Company’s stockholders. Other provisions in the Charter and/or Bylaws include: 

• the ability of the Company’s Board of Directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock; 

• advance notice for nominations of directors by stockholders and for stockholders to include matters to be 
considered at the Company’s annual meetings; 

• certain limitations on convening special stockholder meetings; and 

• the Company’s Board of Directors have the express authority to make, alter or repeal the Company’s Bylaws. 

These anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire the Company, even if the 
third party’s offer may be considered beneficial by many of the Company’s stockholders. As a result, the Company’s 
stockholders may be limited in their ability to obtain a premium for their shares. These provisions could also discourage 
proxy contests and make it more difficult for any stockholders to elect directors of their choosing and to cause the 
Company to take other corporate actions they desire. 

The Company’s Charter designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for 
certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by the Company’s stockholders, which could limit the 
Company’s stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with the Company or its directors, 
officers, employees or stockholders. 

The Company’s Charter provides that, subject to limited exceptions, any (1) derivative action or proceeding brought 
on behalf of the Company, (2) action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, 
stockholder or employee to the Company or its stockholders, (3) action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any 
provision of the Delaware corporate statute or the Company’s Charter or the Company’s Bylaws, or (4) action asserting 
a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be exclusively brought in 
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or, if such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction thereof, another 
state or federal court located within the State of Delaware. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any 
interest in shares of the Company’s capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of and to have consented to the 
provisions of the Company’s Charter described above. This choice of forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability 
to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with the Company or its directors, officers or other 
employees, which may discourage such lawsuits against the Company and its directors, officers and employees. 
Alternatively, if a court were to find these provisions of the Company’s Charter inapplicable to, or unenforceable in 
respect of, one or more of the specified types of actions or proceedings, the Company may incur additional costs 
associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could adversely affect the Company’s business and 
financial condition. 
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None. 
 
Item 2. Properties 

To support our business operations in the United States and other countries we lease real properties. Our reportable 
segments use these facilities for their respective business purposes, and we believe these current facilities are suitable for 
their respective uses and are adequate for our anticipated future needs. We do not anticipate any future problems 
renewing or obtaining suitable leases for us or any of our businesses. 
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

TCPA Proceedings.  Porch and/or an acquired entity, GoSmith.com, are party to twelve legal proceedings alleging 
violations of the automated calling and/or Do Not Call restrictions of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991. 
Some of these actions allege related state law claims. The proceedings were commenced as mass tort actions by a single 
plaintiffs’ law firm in December 2019 and April/May 2020 in federal district courts throughout the United States. One of 
the actions was dismissed with prejudice and was appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On October 12, 2022, 
in a split decision, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed. The remaining cases were consolidated in the United 
States District Court for the Western District of Washington, where Porch resides.  The Court has set a brief schedule on 
Defendants’ forthcoming motion to dismiss. The case is stayed pending resolution of Defendants’ motion. Plaintiffs seek 
actual, statutory, and/or treble damages, injunctive relief, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

These actions are at an early stage in the litigation process. It is not possible to determine the likelihood of an 
unfavorable outcome of these disputes, although it is reasonably possible that the outcome of these actions may be 
unfavorable. Further, it is not possible to estimate the range or amount of potential loss (if the outcome should be 
unfavorable). Porch intends to contest these cases vigorously. 

Kandela Proceeding. In May 2020, the former owners of Kandela, LLC filed complaints against Porch in the 
Superior Court of the State of California, alleging a breach of contract related to the terms and achievement of an earnout 
agreement related to the acquisition of the Kandela business and related fraudulent inducement claims. Claimants sought 
to recover compensatory damages based on an asset purchase agreement entered into with Porch and related 
employment agreements. Claimants also sought punitive damages, attorney’s fees and costs. Certain claimants settled 
their claims, and this settlement is within the range of the estimated accrual. Arbitration of the remaining claims 
occurred in March 2022. In July 2022, the Arbitrator issued his Final Award finding no merit to any of the claims 
asserted by claimant Kandela, LLC and determined Porch to be the prevailing party on all counts. The Arbitrator also 
awarded Porch and its insurers legal fees and costs in the amount of $1.4 million as the prevailing party and, if recovered 
in full, a significant portion of which would be expected to be allocable to its corporate insurance providers. On 
October 12, 2022, the Los Angeles Superior Court confirmed the Arbitration Award and entered Judgment in Porch’s 
favor. As required by the order, Kandela has failed to pay the judgement in Porch’s favor. On January 18, 2023, Porch 
filed a fraudulent claim against Kandela and its members for wrongfully distributing assets that could have satisfied the 
judgement. 

Putative Wage and Hours Class Action Proceeding. A former employee of HireAHelper™ filed a complaint in San 
Diego County Superior Court in November 2020, asserting putative class action claims for failure to pay overtime, 
failure to pay compensation at the time of separation and unfair business practices in violation of California law. 
HireAHelper™ was served with the complaint in December 2020 and on January 28, 2021, defendants removed the case 
to the United States District Court for the Southern District of California. The plaintiff seeks to represent all current and 
former non-exempt employees of HireAHelper™ and Porch (prior to the December 23, 2020 merger) and Porch’s other 
affiliated companies in the State of California during the relevant time period. Plaintiffs sought damages for unpaid 
wages, liquidated damages, penalties, attorneys’ fees and costs. The parties recently attended mediation, which was 
successful, and a deal was reached. The parties have executed the long form settlement agreement and obtained final 
approval of the settlement from the court on August 11, 2022. Porch paid the individual settlement in September 2022, 
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and Plaintiff’s individual claims were dismissed and released. Porch also funded the class action settlement in 
September 2022 and the settlement payments to the class were distributed in October 2022. The settlement is now final, 
and the class action release runs through April 25, 2022. The settlement checks expire in 180 days, at which point the 
case will be closed. 

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, Porch and its subsidiaries are (or may become) parties to litigation 
involving property, personal injury, contract, intellectual property and other claims, as well as stockholder derivative 
actions, class action lawsuits and other matters. The amounts that may be recovered in such matters may be subject to 
insurance coverage. Although the results of legal proceedings and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, neither 
Porch nor any of its subsidiaries is currently a party to any legal proceedings the outcome of which, we believe, if 
determined adversely to us, would individually or in the aggregate have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition or results of operations.  

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 

Not applicable. 

PART II 

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 
Securities 

Market Information 

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “PRCH.”   

Holders 

There were 685 stockholders of record as of March 10, 2023. This figure does not include an estimate of the 
indeterminate number of “street name” or beneficial holders whose shares may be held of record by brokerage firms and 
clearing agencies. 

Dividend Policy 

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date. The payment of cash dividends is subject to the 
discretion of our Board of Directors and may be affected by various factors, including our future earnings, financial 
condition, capital requirements, share repurchase activity, current and future planned strategic growth initiatives, levels 
of indebtedness and other considerations our Board of Directors may deem relevant. Porch’s insurance company 
subsidiaries are highly regulated and are restricted by statute as to the amount of dividends they may pay without the 
prior approval of their respective regulatory authorities.  

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans 

See “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters” 
and Note 9 (Stock-Based Compensation) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of 
this Annual Report for additional information required. 

Share Repurchase Program 

On November 8, 2022, the Company announced that its Board of Directors has approved a new repurchase program 
authorizing the deployment of up to $15 million to repurchase the Company’s outstanding common stock or convertible 
notes. Repurchases under the newly authorized program may be made from time to time between November 10, 2022 
and June 30, 2023 on the open market at prevailing market prices, in privately negotiated transactions, in block trades, 
and/or through other legally permissible means, depending on market conditions and in accordance with applicable rules 
and regulations (including through Rule 10b5-1 trading plans and under 10b-18 of the Exchange Act). 
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The following table summarizes repurchases of our stock in the quarter ended December 31, 2022. See Note 8 
(Equity and Warrants) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements 
and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report for additional information. 

        Total Number of  Approximate Dollar Value
        Shares Purchased as that May Yet 
                Part of Publicly     Be Purchased 
  Total Number of   Average Price   Announced Plans   Under the Plans 
  Shares Purchased  Paid per Share(1)  or Programs   or Programs (in millions) 
October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022     —  $  —    —  $  15.0 
November 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022      —     —     —    15.0 
December 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022      2,388,756     1.82     2,388,756    10.7 
Total Fiscal 2022 Fourth Quarter    2,388,756  $  1.82    2,388,756  $  10.7 
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 

None 
 

Performance Graph 
 
The following graph depicts the total cumulative stockholder return on our common stock from January 13, 2020, 

the first day of trading of our common stock on the Nasdaq stock exchange, through December 31, 2022, relative to the 
performance of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index “S&P 500 ” and S&P 500 Information Technology Sector Index “S&P 
500 IT”. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100.00 at the close of trading on January 13, 2020. The 
performance shown in the graph below is not intended to forecast or be indicative of future stock price performance. 

 
 

The performance graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the 
SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any 
future filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective 
of any general incorporation language in any such filing, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under the Securities Act or 
Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing. 
 
Item 6. Reserved 

None. 
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Business Overview 

Porch Group is a leading vertical software company reinventing the home services and insurance industries. Porch 
Group provides software and services to approximately 30,900 companies and small businesses, such as home 
inspectors, mortgage companies and loan officers, title companies, moving companies, real estate agencies, utility 
companies, roofers, insurance agencies, and others, helping these service providers grow their business and improve the 
customer experience for their customers. Through these relationships, we gain unique and early access to homebuyers 
and homeowners, to then assist these consumers with critical services such as insurance, home warranty, and moving. 
Porch Group’s Vertical Software segment has three types of customers: (1) home services companies, such as home 
inspectors, mortgage companies and loan officers, and title companies, who generally pay Porch recurring software and 
service fees and provide Porch with introductions to homebuyers and homeowners; (2) consumers, whom Porch assists 
with moving and homeownership by providing comparison and provision of various critical home services, such as 
insurance, home warranty, moving, security, TV/Internet, and home improvement; and (3) service providers, such as 
moving companies, security companies, title companies, mortgage companies and TV/Internet providers, who pay for 
new customer sign-ups. The Company’s Insurance segment offers various forms of homeowner insurance policies 
through its own insurance carrier and certain homeowner and auto insurance policies through its licensed insurance 
agency. The Insurance segment also includes home warranty service revenue. 

Porch has established many partnerships across a number of home-related industries to increase its service offerings 
for consumers. Additionally, Porch has also proven effective at selectively acquiring companies which can be efficiently 
integrated into Porch’s platform. In 2017, we significantly expanded our position in the home inspection industry by 
acquiring ISN, a developer of ERP and CRM software for home inspectors. In November 2018, we acquired 
HireAHelper™, a provider of software and demand for moving companies.  

In 2021, we entered into new verticals and increased our capabilities in offering insurance and warranty products to 
consumers, and software to additional types of home service companies with the successful acquisitions of HOA, AHP, 
V12 Data, Rynoh, and Floify, to name a few.  In 2022, we deepened our position in  the home warranty industry with the 
acquisition of RWS. 

For consumers, Porch largely relies on relationships with approximately 30,900 companies and small businesses to 
provide access and introductions. The Company then utilizes technology, lifecycle marketing and teams in lower cost 
locations to operate a Moving Concierge service to assist these consumers with their move. The Company has invested 
in limited direct-to-consumer marketing capabilities, but expects to become more advanced over time with capabilities 
such as digital and social retargeting. 

Key Performance Measures and Operating Metrics 

In the management of our businesses, we identify, measure and evaluate a variety of operating metrics. The key 
performance measures and operating metrics we use in managing our businesses are set forth below. These key 
performance measures and operating metrics are not prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States (“GAAP”) and may not be comparable to or calculated in the same way as other similarly 
titled measures and metrics used by other companies. The key performance measures presented have been adjusted for 
divested Porch businesses in 2020. 

• Average Companies in Quarter — Porch provides software and services to home services companies and, 
through these relationships, gains unique and early access to homebuyers and homeowners, assists homebuyers 
and homeowners with critical services such as insurance, warranty and moving. The Company’s customers 
include home services companies, for whom the Company provides software and services and who provide 
introductions to homebuyers and homeowners and tracks the average number of home services companies from 
which it generates revenue each quarter in order to measure the ability to attract, retain and grow relationships 
with home services companies. Porch management defines the average number of companies in a quarter as the 
straight-line average of the number of companies as of the end of period compared with the beginning of period 
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across all of the Company’s home services verticals that (i) generate recurring revenue and (ii) generated 
revenue in the quarter. For new acquisitions, the number of companies is determined in the initial quarter based 
on the percentage of the quarter the acquired business is a part of the Company. 

• Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter — Management views the Company’s ability to 
increase revenue generated from existing customers as a key component of Porch’s growth strategy. Average 
Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter is defined as the average revenue per month generated across all 
home services company customer accounts in a quarterly period. Average Revenue per Account per Month in 
Quarter is derived from all customers and total revenue. 

The following table summarizes our Average Companies in Quarter and Average Revenue per Account per Month 
in Quarter for each of the quarterly periods indicated: 
 
.      2022      2022      2022      2022     
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Average Companies in Quarter    25,545 (2)  28,773 (2)  30,951          30,860   
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter   $  829 (1)(2)   $  822 (1)(2)   $  833  $  693  
 

          
  2021      2021      2021      2021  
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Average Companies in Quarter   13,995          17,082 (2)   20,419 (2)  24,601 (2) 

Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter (adjusted)(1)  $  637  $  935 (1)(2)  $  987 (1)(2)  $  776 (1) 

          
 

  2020      2020       2020       2020  
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Average Companies in Quarter   10,903         10,523         10,792         11,157  
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter  $  484  $  556  $  664  $  556  

 
(1) During the quarter ended December 31, 2021, the Company corrected an immaterial error that impacted revenue and 

cost of revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021. Average Revenue per Account 
per Month in Quarter metrics were recalculated for the affected quarters to show the impact of the adjustments. 

The following tables shows the impact of this error on Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter: 

  2021  2021  2021  2021 
      Q1      Q2      Q3      Q4 
Total Revenue (as previously reported)  $  26,742  $  51,340  $  62,769  $  51,582 
Quarterly Impact of Revenue Adjustment Recorded in Q4    —    (3,400)   (2,300)   5,700 
Total Revenue (as adjusted)  $  26,742  $  47,940  $  60,469  $  57,282 
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter (as adjusted)  $  637  $  935  $  987  $  776 
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter (as previously reported)  $  637  $  1,000  $  1,022  $  699 

 
(2) During the quarter ended September 30, 2022, the Company corrected an immaterial error that impacted the number 

of Average Companies in Quarter. Average Companies in Quarter and Average Revenue per Account per Month in 
Quarter metrics for the reporting periods starting June 30, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022 were recalculated for the 
affected quarters to show the impact of the adjustments. 

  2022      2022      2022      2022 
      Q1      Q2  Q3  Q4 
Average Companies in Quarter (as previously reported)    25,512    28,730    30,951    30,860 
Adjustment    33    43    —    — 
Average Companies in Quarter (as adjusted)    25,545    28,773    30,951    30,860 
          
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter (as previously reported)  $  816  $  820  $  812  $  726 
Adjustment  $  13  $  2  $  21  $  (33)
Average Revenue per Account per Month in Quarter (as adjusted)  $  829  $  822  $  833  $  693 

 
In 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of RWS. In 2021, the Company completed acquisitions of V12 

Data in Q1, HOA and Rynoh in Q2, AHP in Q3 and Floify in Q4, that impacted the average number of companies in the 
quarter. 

Due to COVID-19, some small companies put their business with the Company on hold which is reflected in lower 
number of total companies in 2020 and higher average revenue per account. 
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• Monetized Services in Quarter — Porch connects consumers with home services companies nationwide and 
offers a full range of products and services where homeowners can, among other things: (1) compare and buy 
home insurance policies (along with auto, flood and umbrella policies) and warranties with competitive rates 
and coverage; (2) arrange for a variety of services in connection with their move, from labor to load or unload a 
truck to full-service, long-distance moving services; (3) discover and install home automation and security 
systems; (4) compare Internet and television options for their new home; (5) book small handyman jobs at 
fixed, upfront prices with guaranteed quality; and (6) compare bids from home improvement professionals who 
can complete bigger jobs. The Company tracks the number of monetized services performed through its 
platform each quarter and the revenue generated per service performed in order to measure market penetration 
with homebuyers and homeowners and the Company’s ability to deliver high-revenue services within those 
groups. Monetized Services in Quarter is defined as the total number of unique services from which the 
Company generated revenue, including, but not limited to, new and renewing insurance and warranty 
customers, completed moving jobs, security installations, TV/Internet installations or other home projects, 
measured over a quarterly period. 

• Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter — Management believes that shifting the mix of 
services delivered to homebuyers and homeowners toward higher revenue services is an important component 
of Porch’s growth strategy. Average Revenue per Monetized Services in Quarter is the average revenue 
generated per monetized service performed in a quarterly period. When calculating Average Revenue per 
Monetized Service in quarter, average revenue is defined as total quarterly service transaction revenues 
generated from monetized services. 

The following table summarizes our monetized services and average revenue per monetized service for each of the 
quarterly periods indicated: 
 
      2022      2022      2022      2022      
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Monetized Services in Quarter     263,183    333,596    318,452    212,992   
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter  $  175 (1) $  158 (1) 185  185  $  219  
 

           
  2021      2021      2021       2021  
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Monetized Services in Quarter   190,733 (2)  316,674 (2)  338,157 (2)  267,683 (2) 

Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter (adjusted)(1)  $  88 (1)(2)   $  113 (1)(2)  $  133 (1)(2)   $  150 (1)(2)
 

          
  2020      2020       2020       2020   
  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Monetized Services in Quarter    152,165    181,520    198,165    169,949  
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter  $  93  $  86  $  97  $  98  

 
(1) During the quarter ended December 31, 2021, the Company corrected an immaterial error that impacted revenue and 

cost of revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and September 30, 2021. Average Revenue per Monetized 
Service in Quarter metrics were recalculated for the affected quarters to show the impact of the adjustments. 

The following tables shows the impact of this error on Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter: 

  2021      2021      2021       2021 
      Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4 
Service Revenue (as previously reported)  $  16,812  $  39,102  $  47,398  $  34,351 
Quarterly Impact of Revenue Adjustment Recorded in Q4    —    (3,400)   (2,300)    5,700 
Service Revenue (as adjusted)  $  16,812  $  35,702  $  45,098  $  40,051 
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter (adjusted)  $  92  $  118  $  137  $  154 
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter (as previously reported)  $  92  $  129  $  144  $  132 

 
(2) During the quarter ended September 30, 2022, the Company corrected an immaterial error that impacted  the 

number of Monetized Services in Quarter. Monetized Services in Quarter and Average Revenue per Monetized 
Service in Quarter metrics for the reporting periods starting March 30, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022 were 
recalculated for the affected quarters to show the impact of the adjustments. 
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  2022      2022      2022      2022 
      Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4 
Monetized Services in Quarter (as previously reported)    263,183    333,596    318,452    212,992 
Adjustment    —    —    —    — 
Monetized Services in Quarter (as adjusted)    263,183    333,596    318,452    212,992 
         
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter (as previously reported)  $  170  $  157  $  181  $  234 
Adjustment  $  5  $  1  $  4  $  (15)
Average Revenue per Monetized Service in Quarter (as adjusted)  $  175  $  158  $  185  $  219 

 
In 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of RWS. In 2021, the Company completed acquisitions of V12 

Data in Q1, HOA and Rynoh in Q2, AHP in Q3 and Floify in Q4, that impacted the number of monetized services in the 
quarter. 

In 2020, the Company shifted insurance monetization from getting paid per quote to earning multiyear insurance 
commissions, resulting in fewer monetized transactions with higher average revenue. 

In March 2020, COVID-19 impacted the service volumes during the period from March until June. The impact on 
service volumes, largely recovered by June 30, 2020 and after adjusting for insurance monetization remains above 
prior year volumes. 

Recent Developments 

Share Repurchases 

In October 2022, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing management 
to repurchase up to $15 million in the Company’s common stock and/or convertible notes. Repurchases under this 
program may be made from time to time on the open market between November 10, 2022 and June 30, 2023, at 
prevailing market prices. 

During the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company repurchased 2,388,756 shares with the total cost of $4.4 million 
(including commissions). 

Reciprocal Exchange 

Homeowners of America plans to file an application to form and license a Texas reciprocal exchange (the 
“Reciprocal”) with the Texas Department of Insurance (“TDI”). If approved by the TDI, the insurance underwriting 
business of Porch will be conducted through the Reciprocal. A Porch subsidiary would serve as the attorney-in-fact for 
the Reciprocal.  In that role it would perform underwriting, claims and management services for the Reciprocal and 
receive a management fee calculated as a percentage of its premiums.  EIG and HOA’s managing general agent would 
act as general agents for the Reciprocal and HOAIC and receive fees and commissions. There can be no assurance that 
the Reciprocal will receive regulatory approval, and if obtained, that the approval would be based on terms as proposed 
or subject to additional requirements that may not be acceptable to the Company. 

Equity and Debt Financing 

During 2022, the Company drew $10 million on HOA’s term loan facility for capital and surplus requirements. 

In September 2021, the Company raised net cash of $413.5 million from the issuance of 0.75% Convertible Senior 
Notes due in September 2026 (the “2026 Notes”).  Senior secured debt of $47.0 million was paid down with a portion of 
the proceeds from the issuance of the 2026 Notes.  The Company used $52.9 million of the proceeds from the issuance 
of the 2026 Notes for the purchase of capped call transactions for purposes of limiting the dilution from the potential 
conversion of the notes into common stock. Also in 2021, the Company raised $126.7 million of additional equity capital 
from the exercise of public and private warrants.  The proceeds from these equity and debt offerings provide cash for 
general corporate purposes and additional merger and acquisitions.  
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Acquisitions 

During 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company completed a number of business combination transactions. The purpose 
of each of the acquisitions were to expand the scope and nature of the Company’s product and service offerings, obtain 
new customer acquisition channels, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. The 
table below identifies the acquisitions in the reporting periods: 

      Purchase Price 
2022 acquisitions:    

RWS  $  38,824 
Other acquisitions    15,263 

Total 2022 purchase price consideration  $  54,087 
2021 acquisitions:    

HOA  $  114,828 
Floify    95,399 
AHP    46,250 
Rynoh    35,802 
V12 Data    21,756 
Other acquisitions    32,249 

Total 2021 purchase price consideration  $  346,284 
2020 acquisitions:    

iRoofing    12,463 
Other acquisitions    5,160 

Total 2020 purchase price consideration  $  17,623 
 

Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

The Company early adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): 
Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers on January 1, 2022 and applied 
the guidance prospectively for business combinations that occur after the adoption date. 

Key Factors Affecting Operating Results 

The Company has been implementing its strategy as a vertical software platform for the home, providing software 
and services to approximately 30,900 companies and small businesses, such as home inspectors, moving companies, 
utility companies, warranty companies and others. The Company’s Insurance segment continues to grow scale, through 
both policy count, and geographic expansion. The following are key factors affecting our operating results in 2022, 2021 
and 2020: 

• The U.S. housing market continues to see impacts from higher interest rates, existing home inventory 
tightening, and affordability challenges, impacting the Vertical Software segment. For the year ended 
December 31, 2022, existing home sales have declined over 18% year over year. 

• The Company’s Insurance segment paid out a higher volume of claims from volatile weather events, including 
Hurricane Ian, during the third quarter of 2022, and Winter Storm Elliott during the fourth quarter of 2022. 
Claims costs for these events were driven higher due in part to inflation-related pressures. 

• During 2022, the Company recognized a $43.7 million goodwill impairment at the Company’s Insurance 
segment, and a $17.7 million impairment of intangible assets for certain intangible assets within the Vertical 
Software segment. 

• In April 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of Residential Warranty Services (“RWS”). 
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• In 2021, the Company successfully completed several acquisitions, investing $256.4 million in cash, net of cash 
acquired, and $35.7 million in common stock to acquire companies to expand the scope and nature of the 
Company’s service offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. Such 
acquisitions included the following: 

o In January 2021, Porch acquired V12 Data, an omnichannel marketing platform. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s service offerings into the mover marketing space, 
add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. 

o In April 2021, Porch acquired HOA, an insurance managing general agency and risk-bearing carrier. The 
purpose of the acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s own insurance product offerings, 
add additional team members with important skillsets, and gain licenses to operate as an insurance carrier. 

o In May 2021, Porch acquired Rynoh, a software and data analytics company that supports financial 
management and fraud prevention primarily for the title and real estate industries. 

o In September 2021, Porch acquired AHP, a company providing home warranty policies. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s product offerings to include a Porch owned 
warranty product, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. 

o In October 2021, Porch acquired Floify, a SaaS software provider to mortgage companies and loan officers 
that helps create a better mortgage and refinancing experience for their customers. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s SaaS offerings to the mortgage industry, add 
additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. 

• Investments in consumer experience to drive higher conversion rates, including investments in apps. 

• Ongoing expansion in other software verticals related to the home and related services such as title, warranty 
and mortgage software. 

• Investments in establishing and maintaining controls required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX”) and 
other internal controls across IT and accounting organizations. 

• Intentionally building operating leverage in the business by focusing on growing operating expenses at a slower 
rate than the growth in revenue. Specifically, by increasing economies of scale related to fixed selling costs, 
Moving Concierge call center operations and product and technology costs. 

• Investments in data platforms and leveraging that data in pricing optimization within insurance. 

• Growth across the insurance business, including geographic expansion. 

• In 2021, a number of holders of warrants exercised their warrants to acquire approximately 11.5 million shares 
of common stock, resulting in cash proceeds of $126.8 million. All of the unexercised public warrants were 
redeemed effective as of April 16, 2021. 

• In September 2021, the Company raised $413.5 million in net proceeds from a private offering of its 0.75% 
Convertible Senior Notes due 2026 (the “2026 Notes”). See Note 7 (Debt) to the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. This level of cash is expected to provide 
sufficient financial resources for the Company’s ongoing plans for future acquisitions and other investments, 
such as operating leverage and organic growth. 
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• Continued investment in growing and expanding the Company’s position in the home inspection industry 
including through core enterprise resource planning and customer relationship management software offered by 
Inspection Support Network LLC. 

• Continued investment in growing and expanding the Company’s position in providing moving services to 
consumers beginning with the 2018 acquisition of HireAHelper™, a provider of software and demand for 
moving companies. 

Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of Porch include the accounts of the Company and 
its consolidated subsidiaries and were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“GAAP”). The company consolidates acquisitions as of the date on which the Company 
obtains controlling financial interest. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in 
consolidation. 

The Company operates in two operating segments: Vertical Software and Insurance. Operating segments are 
identified as components of an enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation 
by the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) in making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing 
performance. The Company has determined that its Chief Executive Officer is the CODM. 

Components of Results of Operations 

Total Revenue 

The Company generates revenue in the following ways: 

• Insurance revenue in the form of insurance and warranty premiums, policy fees, commissions from reinsurers 
and other insurance-related fees generated through its owned insurance carrier, as well as commissions from 
third-party insurance carriers where Porch acts as an independent agent; 

• Software and service subscription revenue generated from fees paid by companies for access to Porch’s 
software and provision of services; 

• Move and post-moved related transaction revenue – Move-related revenue through fees received for connecting 
homeowners to service providers during time of a move including movers, TV/Internet, warranty, and security 
monitoring providers; and post-move related revenue in the form of fees earned from introducing homeowners 
to home service professionals including handyman, plumbers, electricians, roofers, etc. 

The Insurance segment includes revenue generated from various property-related insurance policies through its own 
risk-bearing carrier and independent agency as well as risk-bearing home warranty companies. We collect policy fees 
from policyholders of our own underwritten homeowners insurance products, reinsurers pay the Company ceding 
commissions when premiums are ceded from owned insurance products, revenues are earned in the form of policy 
premiums collected from insureds from owned insurance products, and third-party insurance companies pay our agency 
upfront and renewal commissions for selling their policies. The Insurance segment also includes home warranty revenue 
which mainly consists of premiums paid by warranty customers for the Company’s home warranty products.  

The Vertical Software segment includes revenue from software and services subscription revenue, move-related 
transactions revenue and post-move-related transaction revenue. Software and service subscription revenue primarily 
relates to subscriptions to the Company’s software offerings across a number of verticals. The Company’s subscription 
arrangements for this revenue stream do not provide the customer with the right to take possession of the software 
supporting the cloud-based application services. The Company’s standard subscription contracts are monthly contracts in 
which pricing is based on a price per user or seat, or a specified price per inspection completed through the software. The 
Company also sells marketing software and services to companies who want to advertise to movers. Marketing software 
and service fees are primarily contractual monthly recurring billings. Fees earned for providing access to the subscription 
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software are non-refundable and there is no right of return. Revenue is recognized based on the amount which the 
Company is entitled to for providing access to the subscription software during the monthly contract term.  

Move-related transactions revenue is generated when the Company connects consumers with service providers 
including movers, TV/Internet, and security monitoring companies. The Company earns revenue when consumers 
purchase services from these third-party providers. For select moving jobs, the Company will select the mover, set the 
price, and manage the job end-to-end; here, the Company generates revenue based on the full job value.  

Post-move-related transaction revenue includes monthly fees paid by home service contractors as well as fees 
earned from introducing consumers to home service providers, either on a per lead, per appointment, or per job basis. 
Revenue generated from service providers is recognized at a point in time upon the connection of a homeowner to the 
service provider.  

Total Costs and Expenses 

Operating expenses 

Operating expenses are categorized into six categories: 

• Cost of revenue; 

• Selling and marketing; 

• Product and technology; 

• General and administrative; 

• Gain on divestiture of businesses; and 

• Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill. 

The categories of operating expenses, except gain on divestiture of businesses and impairment loss on intangible 
assets and goodwill, include both, cash expenses and non-cash charges, such as stock-based compensation, depreciation 
and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are recorded in all operating expense categories, and consist of 
depreciation from property, equipment and software and intangible assets. 

Cost of revenue primarily consists of insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses, claims personnel costs, 
warranty claims, third-party providers for executing moving labor and handyman services when the Company is 
managing the job, data costs related to marketing campaigns, certain call center costs, credit card processing and 
merchant fees. 

Selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of payroll, employee benefits and stock-based compensation 
expense, and other headcount related costs associated with sales efforts directed toward companies and consumers, and 
amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs (“DAC”) of new and renewal insurance contracts. Also included are 
any direct costs to acquire customers, such as search engine optimization, marketing costs and affiliate and partner leads.  

Selling and marketing costs are classified as either fixed or variable. Fixed selling and marketing costs primarily 
consist of compensation of sales management, professional fees and software costs that do not vary with sales volumes.  

• Variable selling and marketing costs consist of DAC amortized to expense reduced by ceding commissions paid 
by reinsurance companies, third-party leads, affiliates and partner leads, paid search SEO and SEM, advertising 
costs and compensation for individuals in certain sales and marketing departments that vary with sales volumes. 
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Product and technology development costs primarily consist of payroll, employee benefits, stock-based 
compensation expense, other headcount-related costs associated with product development, net of costs capitalized as 
internally developed software. Also included are cloud computing, hosting and other technology costs, software 
subscriptions, professional services and amortization of internally developed software. 

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of expenses associated with functional departments for 
finance, legal, human resources and executive management. The primary categories of expenses include payroll, 
employee benefits, stock-based compensation expense and other headcount related costs, rent for office space, legal and 
professional fees, taxes, licenses and regulatory fees, merger and acquisition transaction costs, and other administrative 
costs. 

Gain on divestiture of businesses consists of gain on the sale of a business during the year ended December 31, 
2020. 

Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill results from circumstances when the fair value of a reporting unit 
or asset group is less than its carrying amount. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are subject to annual 
impairment assessments. All intangible assets and goodwill are also subject to impairment assessments whenever facts 
and circumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired. See Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Impairment of 
Goodwill sections of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates for the description of methods used to determine these 
impairment losses. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements and accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions that are evaluated by management include, 
but are not limited to, impairment losses on intangible assets and goodwill, estimated variable consideration for services 
performed, estimated lifetime value of insurance agency commission revenue, current estimate for credit losses, 
depreciable lives for property and equipment, the valuation of and useful lives for acquired intangible assets, the 
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets, assumptions used in stock-based compensation expense, unpaid losses for 
insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses, contingent consideration, earnout liabilities and private warrant 
liabilities. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions, and those differences could be 
material to the consolidated financial statements. 

At least quarterly, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions and make changes accordingly. For information on 
our significant accounting policies, see Note 1 (Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 

Certain accounting policies have a more significant impact on our financial statements due to the size of the 
financial statement elements and prevalence of their application. The following is a summary of some of the more 
critical accounting policies and estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company determines revenue recognition for contracts with customers, through the following five-step 
framework: 

• identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer; 

• identification of the performance obligations in the contract; 

• determination of the transaction price; 



68 

• allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 

• recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company identifies performance obligations in its contracts with customers (excluding insurance and 
warranty), which primarily include move-related transactions and post-move transactions such as, delivery of 
homeowner leads and performance of home project services, and providing access to the Company’s software platforms. 
The transaction price is determined based on the amount which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
providing the promised services to the customer. The transaction price in the contract is allocated to each distinct 
performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis. Revenue is recognized when or as performance 
obligations are satisfied. In certain transactions, the transaction price is considered variable, and an estimate of the 
constrained transaction price is recorded by the Company. Changes in variable consideration may result in an increase or 
a decrease to revenue. Changes to the estimated variable consideration were not material for the periods presented. 

Contract payment terms vary from due upon receipt to net 30 days. Collectability is assessed based on a number of 
factors including collection history and creditworthiness of the customer. If collectability of substantially all 
consideration to which the Company is entitled under the contract is determined to be not probable, revenue is not 
recorded until collectability becomes probable at a later date. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Accounting for stock-based compensation is a critical accounting policy due to the broad-based equity awards 
provided to employees at all levels within the Company and the use of equity awards as part of the strategy to retain 
employees as a result of mergers and acquisitions. The Company issues stock-based compensation to employees and 
nonemployees in the form of stock options and restricted stock awards, including performance and market-based 
restricted stock awards. The awards are generally expensed on a straight-line basis, except for awards with performance 
or market conditions which are expensed on a graded vesting basis. Forfeitures are accounted for when they occur. 

The fair value of stock options is based on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. There are a 
variety of estimates in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, including expected volatility, term, dividends and risk-
free rate. The awards are accounted for by recognizing the fair value of the related award over the requisite service 
period, which is generally the vesting period.  

The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined using the closing price of the Company’s common stock on 
the grant date. The value of market-based restricted stock units is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model that 
utilizes significant assumptions, including volatility, that determine the probability of satisfying the market condition 
stipulated in the award to calculate the fair value of the award. Stock-based compensation expense for awards with 
performance conditions is only recognized when management believes the performance condition is probable of 
achievement. 

Business Combinations 

The Company has engaged in mergers and acquisitions in the past and intends to continue to make acquisitions a 
part of our long-term strategy. The Company made acquisitions with cash and non-cash consideration totaling 
$54.1 million in 2022, $346.3 million in 2021 and $17.6 million in 2020. The Company accounts for business 
acquisitions using the acquisition method of accounting and records any identifiable intangible assets separate from 
goodwill. Intangible assets are recorded at their fair value based on estimates as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill is 
recorded as the residual amount of the purchase price consideration less the fair value assigned to the individual 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition. The accounting estimates associated with 
acquisitions are complex due to judgements and assumptions involved in determining (1) the total consideration paid 
because we have used cash, stock and earnouts and (2) the value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The 
Company allocates the purchase price of the acquisition to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on estimates 
of the fair value at the dates of the acquisitions. Contingent consideration, which represents an obligation of the 
Company to make additional payments or equity interests to the former owner as part of the purchase price if specified 
future events occur or 
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conditions are met, is accounted for at the acquisition date fair value either as a liability or as equity depending on the 
terms of the acquisition agreement. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

We test our long-lived asset groups when changes in circumstances indicate their carrying value may not be 
recoverable. Events that trigger a test for recoverability include a significant decrease in the market price for a long-lived 
asset, significant negative industry or economic trends, an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount 
originally expected for the acquisition or construction of a long-live asset, a current-period operating or cash flow loss 
combined with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses 
associated with the use of a long-lived asset or a sustained decrease in share price. When a triggering event occurs, a test 
for recoverability is performed, comparing projected undiscounted future cash flows to the carrying value of the asset 
group. If the test for recoverability identifies a possible impairment, the asset group’s fair value is measured relying 
primarily on a discounted cash flow method. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying 
value of the asset group excess its estimated fair value. When an impairment loss is recognized for assets to be held and 
used, the adjusted carrying amounts for those assets are depreciated over their remaining useful lives.  

We evaluate long-lived assets at the lowest level at which independent cash flows can be identified, which is 
dependent on the strategy and expected future use of our long-lived assets. We evaluate corporate assets or other long-
lived assets that are not asset group-specific at the consolidated level. 

We estimate the fair value of an asset group using the income approach. The income approach uses cash flow 
projections. Inherent in our development of cash flow projections are assumptions and estimates derived from a review 
of our operating results, business plan forecasts, expected growth rates, and cost of capital, similar to those a market 
participant would use to assess fair value. We also make certain assumptions about future economic conditions and other 
data. Many of these factors used in assessing fair value are outside the control of management and these assumptions and 
estimates may change in future periods.  

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded impairment charges of $17.7 million, related to 
intangible assets within its Vertical Software segment. 

Impairment of Goodwill 

We test goodwill for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an 
impairment may exist. We assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of 
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Factors that indicate the fair value of a reporting unit may be less than 
its carrying amount include industry and market considerations such as a deterioration in the economic environment or a 
decline in market-dependent multiples or metrics, overall financial performance such as negative or declining cash flows 
or a decline in actual or planned revenue or earnings, increased cost factors that have a negative effect on earnings and 
cash flows, or a sustained decrease in share price. The process for evaluating potential impairment of goodwill is highly 
subjective and requires significant judgment. If factors indicate that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its 
carrying amount, we perform a quantitative assessment and the fair value of the reporting unit is estimated by using a 
combination of market approaches based on peer performance and discounted cash flow methodologies. If the carrying 
value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss equal to the excess is recorded.  

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and involves the use of significant estimates 
and assumptions to evaluate the impact of operating and macroeconomic changes on each reporting unit. The fair value 
of each reporting unit is estimated using a combination of the income approach and the market valuation approach using 
publicly traded company multiples in similar businesses. This analysis requires significant judgments, including 
estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on internally developed forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of 
growth for our business, estimation of the useful life over which cash flows will occur, and determination of our 
weighted average cost of capital, which is risk-adjusted to reflect the specific risk profile of the reporting unit being 
tested. The weighted average cost of capital used in our most recent impairment test as of September 30, 2022, was risk-
adjusted to reflect the specific risk profile of the reporting units and ranged from 17% to 20%. 
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During the third quarter of 2022, management identified various qualitative factors that collectively, indicated that 
the Company had triggering events, including a sustained decrease in stock price, increased costs due to inflationary 
pressures, and a deterioration of the macroeconomic environment in the housing and real estate industry. The Company 
performed a valuation of both the Vertical Software and Insurance reporting units using a combination of market 
approaches based on peer performance and discounted cash flow or dividend discount model methodologies. Given the 
results of the quantitative assessment, the Company determined that the Insurance reporting unit’s goodwill was 
impaired. As a result, the Company recognized a goodwill impairment charge of $39.4 million in the third quarter of 
2022. 

In the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company updated its preliminary purchase price allocations for certain 
acquisitions. As a result of these adjustments, the carrying value of the Insurance reporting unit was higher than the fair 
value as of September 30, 2022, which resulted in the Company recognizing an additional goodwill impairment charge 
of $4.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2022. 

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded impairment charges of $43.7 million, related to 
its Insurance segment.  

Results of Operations 

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2022 to Year Ended December 31, 2021 

The net loss in 2022 of $156.6 million compared with the net loss in 2021 of $106.6 million was primarily impacted 
by the impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill of $61.4 million.  

The following table sets forth our historical operating results for the periods indicated: 
 
  Year Ended December 31,   $  %  
      2022      2021       Change      Change  
  (dollar amounts in thousands) 
Revenue  $  275,948  $  192,433  $  83,515   43 %
Operating expenses:                  

Cost of revenue     107,577     58,725     48,852   83 %
Selling and marketing     113,848     84,273     29,575   35 %
Product and technology     59,565     47,005     12,560   27 %
General and administrative     110,619     85,795     24,824   29 %
Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    61,386   —    61,386  NM  
Gain on divestiture of businesses    —   —    —  NM  

Total operating expenses     452,995     275,798     177,197   64 %
Operating loss     (177,047)    (83,365)    (93,682)   112 %
Other income (expense):                    

Interest expense     (8,723)    (5,757)    (2,966)   52 %
Change in fair value of earnout liability    13,822    (18,519)   32,341  NM  
Change in fair value of private warrant liability    14,486    (15,389)   29,875  NM  
Gain on extinguishment of debt    —    5,110    (5,110)  NM  
Investment income and realized gains, net of investment expenses    1,174    701    473   67 %
Other income (expense), net     571     340     231   68 %

Total other income (expense)     21,330     (33,514)    54,844  NM  
Loss before income taxes     (155,717)    (116,879)    (38,838)   33 %
Income tax benefit (expense)     (842)    10,273     (11,115)  NM  
Net loss  $  (156,559) $  (106,606) $  (49,953)  47 %

 
NM — percentage calculated is not meaningful. 
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Revenue 

Total revenue increased by $83.5 million, or 43% from $192.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, to 
$275.9 million in the same period in 2022. During 2022 and 2021, the Company acquired a number of businesses, 
including RWS (acquired in April 2022), V12 Data (acquired in January 2021), HOA (acquired in April 2021), Rynoh 
(acquired in May 2021), AHP (acquired in September 2021), Floify (acquired in October 2021) and RWS (acquired in 
April 2022). These acquisitions contributed approximately $63 million to the increase in revenue in 2022, with the 
remainder attributable to accelerated post-acquisition and organic growth. 

Cost of Revenue 

Cost of revenue increased by $48.9 million, or 83% from $58.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, to 
$107.6 million in the same period in 2022. The increase in the cost of revenue was primarily attributable to the 2022 and 
2021 acquisitions. These acquisitions contributed approximately $37 million to the overall increase in cost of revenue. 
The remainder of the increase is primarily due to higher loss and loss adjustment expense at the Company’s Insurance 
segment, as a result of a higher number of claims paid due to volatile catastrophe weather events, including Hurricane 
Ian, during the third quarter of 2022, and Winter Storm Elliott during the fourth quarter of 2022. Claims costs for these 
events were driven higher due in part to inflation-related pressures. As a percentage of revenue, cost of revenue 
represented 39% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared with 31% in the same period in 2021. 

Selling and marketing 

Selling and marketing expenses increased by $29.6 million, or 35% from $84.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, to $113.8 million in the same period in 2022. Businesses acquired in 2022 and 2021 contributed 
approximately $17.2 million to the increase in selling and marketing costs, mainly related to RWS, Floify, AHP, Rynoh 
and HOA operations. The increase related to the acquired businesses includes approximately $6.2 million of 
amortization of acquired intangibles and stock-based compensation expense. Growth in the insurance and software and 
service subscription businesses further contributed to the increase. As a percentage of revenue, selling and marketing 
expenses represented 41% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared with 44% in the same period in 
2021. The improvement in selling and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue is due to the growing economies 
of scale in the insurance, inspection and moving groups. 

Product and technology 

Product and technology expenses increased by $12.6 million, or 27% from $47.0 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, to $59.6 million in the same period in 2022. Approximately $12.8 million of the increase is 
attributable to the acquired businesses, notably HOA, Floify and Rynoh. The increase related to the acquired businesses 
includes approximately $7.8 million of amortization of acquired intangibles and stock-based compensation expense. The 
remaining increase is related to investments in data platform, consumer app and other software offerings. This was offset 
by the $6.3 million decrease in depreciation and amortization of intangibles and stock-based compensation expense 
related to the existing businesses. As a percentage of revenue, product and technology expenses represented 22% of 
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared with 24% in the same period in 2021. The improvement in 
product and technology expenses as a percentage of revenue is due to the growing economies of scale in the overall 
business. 

General and administrative 

General and administrative expenses increased by $24.8 million, or 29% from $85.8 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, to $110.6 million in the same period in 2022. Approximately $17.2 million of the increase is 
attributable to the 2022 and 2021 acquisitions, notably in HOA, RWS, AHP and Floify. The increase related to the 
acquired businesses includes approximately $4.2 million of amortization of acquired intangibles and stock-based 
compensation expense. The remainder of the increase is due to additional costs related to hiring of corporate 
administrative resources, audit and accounting fees, as well as costs related to integrating of our acquired businesses and 
SOX requirements. This was offset by stock-based compensation expense not related to the acquired businesses, for the 
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year ended December 31, 2022, which was approximately $2.0 million lower than in the same period in 2021. In 
addition, in 2022, there was a loss on revaluation of contingent consideration of $6.9 million as compared to a gain of 
$2.2 million during the same period in 2021.  As a percentage of revenue, general and administrative expenses 
represented 40% of revenue in 2022, compared with 45% in 2021. 

Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill 

In the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded impairment losses on intangible assets and goodwill 
totaling $61.4 million, which included a $43.7 million goodwill impairment at its Insurance segment, and a $17.7 million 
impairment of intangible assets within its Vertical Software segment. These impairment charges reflect recent continued 
inflationary pressures, the Company’s common stock valuation, and broad disruptions in the equity markets, specifically 
for technology and property and casualty insurance companies. There were no impairment losses on intangible assets 
and goodwill in the same period in 2021. 

Interest expense, net 

Interest expense increased by $2.9 million, or 52% from $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, to 
$8.7 million in the same period in 2022. This was primarily due to issuance of $425 million of the 2026 Notes in 
September 2021, that in part was used to pay off the $42.1 million of Senior Secured Term Loans that were outstanding 
at June 30, 2021. The higher outstanding debt balance was the primary reason for the increased interest expense.  

Change in fair value of earnout liability 

Changes in fair value of earnout liability were $13.8 million (gain) for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 
$18.5 million (loss) in the same period in 2021. The decrease in fair value was primarily due to the decline in the stock 
price at December 31, 2022 as compared to December 31, 2021. During 2021, $54.9 million of the earnout liability was 
reclassified to additional paid in capital as a result of vesting events in 2021. There were no vesting events during 2022. 

Change in fair value of private warrant liability 

Change in fair value of private warrant liability was $14.5 million (gain) for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 
$15.4 million (loss) in the same period in 2021. The decrease in fair value was primarily due to the decline in the stock 
price at December 31, 2022 as compared to December 31, 2021. During 2021, $31.7 million was reclassified to 
additional paid in capital as a result of warrant exercises. There were no exercises during 2022. 

Investment income and realized gains, net of investment expenses 

Investment income and realized gains, net of investment expenses was $1.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, and $0.7 million in the same period in 2021. In April 2021, the Company acquired Homeowners of 
America Insurance Company that maintains a short-term and long-term investment portfolio that generated investment 
income for nine months in 2021. 

Income tax benefit (expense) 

Income tax expense of $0.8 million was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2022 primarily due to state 
franchise and minimum taxes and adjustments to a federal net operating loss carryback. Income tax benefit of 
$10.3 million was recognized in 2021 primarily due to the partial release of the Company’s valuation allowance as a 
result of deferred tax liabilities from acquisitions. The Company’s effective tax rate in both periods differs substantially 
from the statutory tax rate primarily due to a full valuation allowance related to the Company’s net deferred tax assets. 

Refer to “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Condition and Results of Operations” in the 2021 
Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 16, 2022 for the comparison of the results of operations 
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.  
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Segment Results of Operations 

We operate our business as two reportable segments that are also our operating segments: Vertical Software and 
Insurance. For additional information about our segments, see Note 17 (Segment Information) to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 

Segment Revenue 

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2022 to Year Ended December 31, 2021 

  Year Ended December 31, 2022 Year Ended December 31, 2021  Change, $ 

      

Vertical 
Software 
Segment      

Insurance 
Segment      

Vertical 
Software 
Segment      

Insurance 
Segment      

Vertical 
Software 
Segment     

Insurance 
Segment 

Revenue:                   
Software and service subscriptions  $  72,777  $  —  $  57,004  $  —  $  15,773  $  — 
Move-related transactions    62,317    —    60,996    —    1,321    — 
Post-move transactions    19,821    —    19,150    —    671    — 
Insurance    —    121,033    —    55,283    —    65,750 

Total revenue  $  154,915  $  121,033  $  137,150  $  55,283  $  17,765  $  65,750 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, Vertical Software segment revenue was $154.9 million or 56% of total 

revenue for the same period. For the year ended December 31, 2021, Vertical Software segment revenue was 
$137.2 million or 71% of total revenue for the same period. The increase in revenue in 2022 is driven by the 2022 and 
2021 acquisitions of RWS in April 2022, Rynoh in May 2021 and Floify in October 2021. Certain existing businesses 
experienced year-over-year decrease as a result of a decline in housing market in 2022 as compared to 2021. 

Insurance segment revenue was $121.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, and represented 44% of total 
revenue for the same period. For the year ended December 31, 2021, Insurance segment revenue was $55.3 million or 
29% of total revenue for the same period. The increase is mainly due to the acquisitions of RWS (acquired in 
April 2022) and AHP (acquired in September 2021), with the remainder due to the accelerated growth of these 
businesses after acquisition, as well as the organic growth of HOA and RWS. 

Refer to “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Condition and Results of Operations” in the 2021 
Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on March 16, 2022 for the comparison of segment revenue for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.  

Segment Adjusted EBITDA (Loss) 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA (loss) is defined as revenue less operating expenses associated with our segments. 
Segment Adjusted EBITDA (loss) also excludes non-cash items, certain transactions that are not indicative of ongoing 
segment operating and financial performance and are not reflective of the Company’s core operations. See Note 17 
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(Segment Information) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report 
for additional information. 

  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Segment adjusted EBITDA (loss):          

Vertical Software  $  14,678  $  20,733  $  12,718 
Insurance    (5,499)    9,007    405 
Corporate and Other(1)    (58,780)    (53,760)   (30,001)
Divested Businesses    —    —    (1,441)

Total segment adjusted EBITDA (loss)(2)  $  (49,601)  $  (24,020) $  (18,319)
 

(1) Includes costs that are not directly attributable to our reportable segments, as well as certain shared costs. 
(2) See reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA (loss) to net loss below. 

 
Vertical Software segment’s Adjusted EBITDA (loss) was negatively impacted by the downturn in the housing 

market in 2022, which resulted in lower home purchase volumes and lower demand for the Company’s services. 
Insurance segment’s Adjusted EBITDA (loss) in 2022 was a result of significantly higher claims costs caused by severe 
weather events in the second half of 2022. 

 
Non-GAAP Financial Measures 

This Annual Report includes non-GAAP financial measures, such as Adjusted EBITDA (loss), Adjusted EBITDA 
(loss) as a percent of revenue, average revenue per monetized service and revenue less cost of revenue. 
 

Porch defines Adjusted EBITDA (loss) as net income (loss) adjusted for interest expense, net, income taxes, other 
expenses, net, depreciation and amortization, impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill, non-cash losses and 
impairment of property, equipment and software, stock-based compensation expense and acquisition-related impacts, 
amortization of intangible assets, gains (losses) recognized on changes in the value of contingent consideration 
arrangements, if any, gain or loss on divestures and certain transaction costs. Adjusted EBITDA (loss) as a percent of 
revenue is defined as Adjusted EBITDA (loss) divided by GAAP total revenue. Average revenue per monetized services 
in quarter is the average revenue generated per monetized service performed in a quarterly period. When calculating 
average revenue per monetized service in a quarter, average revenue is defined as total quarterly service transaction 
revenues generated from monetized services. 

Porch management uses these non-GAAP financial measures as supplemental measures of Porch’s operating and 
financial performance, for internal budgeting and forecasting purposes, to evaluate financial and strategic planning 
matters, and to establish certain performance goals for incentive programs. Porch believes that the use of these non-
GAAP financial measures provides investors with useful information to evaluate Porch’s operating and financial 
performance and trends and in comparing Porch’s financial results with competitors, other similar companies and 
companies across different industries, many of which present similar non-GAAP financial measures to investors. 
However, Porch’s definitions and methodology in calculating these non-GAAP measures may not be comparable to 
those used by other companies. In addition, Porch may modify the presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures 
in the future, and any such modification may be material.  

You should not consider these non-GAAP financial measures in isolation, as a substitute to or superior to financial 
performance measures determined in accordance with GAAP. The principal limitation of these non-GAAP financial 
measures is that they exclude specified income and expenses, some of which may be significant or material, that are 
required by GAAP to be recorded in Porch’s consolidated financial statements. Porch may also incur future income or 
expenses similar to those excluded from these non-GAAP financial measures, and Porch’s presentation of these 
measures should not be construed as an inference that future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring 
items. In addition, these non-GAAP financial measures reflect the exercise of management judgment about which 
income and expense are included or excluded in determining these non-GAAP financial measures. 
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See the reconciliation tables below for more details regarding these non-GAAP financial measures, including the 
reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures.  

Revenue Less Cost of Revenue 

The following table reconciles revenue less cost of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively (dollar amounts in thousands): 
 
      Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Revenue  $  275,948  $  192,433  $  72,299 

Less: Cost of revenue     (107,577)    (58,725)    (17,562)
Revenue less cost of revenue     168,371     133,708     54,737 

Less: Selling and marketing costs    113,848    84,273    41,665 
Less: Product and technology costs    59,565    47,005    28,546 
Less: General and administrative costs    110,619    85,795    28,199 
Less: Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    61,386    —    — 
Less: Gain on divestiture of businesses    —    —    (1,442)

Total operating expenses   $  452,995  $  275,798  $  114,530 
Operating loss  $  (177,047) $  (83,365) $  (42,231)
 

Revenue less cost of revenue increased by $34.7 million, or 25.9% from $133.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, to $168.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. During 2022, the Company acquired 
RWS. During 2021, the Company acquired a number of businesses with an aggregate purchase price of 
$346.3 million. These acquisitions included V12 Data (acquired in January 2021), HOA (acquired in April 2021), Rynoh 
(acquired in May 2021), AHP (acquired in September 2021) and Floify (acquired in October 2021). These businesses 
were not owned by the Company for the entire year ended December 31, 2021, therefore, less revenue less cost of 
revenue was recognized from these businesses during that period. Thus, the increase revenue less cost of revenue in 
2022 is primarily driven by the 2022 and 2021 acquisitions, accelerated growth after acquisition and organic growth. 
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Adjusted EBITDA (loss) 

The following table reconciles net loss to Adjusted EBITDA (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 
and 2020, respectively (dollar amounts in thousands): 
 
           

     Year Ended December 31,   
     2022      2021      2020  
Net loss  $  (156,559) $  (106,606) $ (54,032) 

Interest expense     8,723     5,757     14,734 
Income tax expense (benefit)     842     (10,273)    (1,689)
Depreciation and amortization     27,930     16,386     6,644 
Gain on extinguishment of debt    —    (5,110)   (5,748)
Other expense (income), net     (571)    (340)    6,931 
Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    61,386    —    — 
Non-cash losses and impairment of property, equipment and software     637     550     611 
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense     27,041     38,592     11,296 
Revaluation of contingent consideration     6,944     (2,244)    1,700 
Revaluation of earnout liability    (13,822)   18,519    — 
Revaluation of private warrant liability    (14,486)   15,389    (2,427)
Acquisition and other transaction costs(1)     2,334     5,360     311 
SPAC transaction bonus    —    —    3,350 

Adjusted EBITDA (loss)  $  (49,601) $  (24,020) $ (18,319) 
Adjusted EBITDA (loss) as a percentage of revenue    (18)%    (12)%    (25)%

 
(1) Acquisition and related expense, net includes: 
 
          

      Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Gain on divestiture of businesses  $  —  $  —  $  (1,442)
Professional fees and transaction expenses     1,687     5,360     1,753 
Reciprocal costs    647    —    — 
  $  2,334  $  5,360  $  311 
 

Adjusted EBITDA (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2022, was $49.6 million, a $25.6 million decline from 
Adjusted EBITDA (loss) of $24.0 million for the same period in 2021. During 2022, the Company acquired RWS. 
During 2021, the Company acquired a number of businesses, including, V12 Data (acquired in January 2021), HOA 
(acquired in April 2021), Rynoh (acquired in May 2021), AHP (acquired in September 2021) and Floify (acquired in 
October 2021). These businesses were not owned by the Company for the entire year ended December 31, 2021 and, 
therefore, little or no revenue and Adjusted EBITDA (loss) was recognized from this business during 2021. The decline 
in Adjusted EBITDA (loss) in 2022 is primarily driven by the macro housing environment affecting both segments, and 
higher volume of claims paid out by HOA in 2022, mainly as a result of the volatile weather events, including Hurricane 
Ian, during the third quarter of 2022, and Winter Storm Elliott during the fourth quarter of 2022, affecting the Insurance 
segment. Continued investments in sales and marketing and product and technology related to consumer experience, app 
build out, data platforms and investments in establishing and maintaining SOX and other internal controls across IT and 
accounting organizations further impacted Adjusted EBITDA (loss). This decline was partially offset by the impact of 
the 2022 and 2021 acquisitions. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Since inception, as a private company, we have financed our operations primarily from the sales of redeemable 
convertible preferred stock and convertible promissory notes, and proceeds from senior secured loans. On December 23, 
2020, the Company received approximately $269.5 million of aggregate cash proceeds from recapitalization, net of 
transactions costs.  
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During 2022, the Company drew $10.0 million on HOA’s term loan facility. Also during 2022, the Company 
participated in an advance funding arrangement with third-party financers that provide the Company with contract 
premiums upfront for certain home warranty contracts. We remain obligated to repay these premiums to the third-party 
financer if a customer cancels its warranty contract prior to full repayment of the advance funding amount received by 
the Company. As of December 31, 2022, the principal balance of this advance funding arrangement is $15.7 million. See 
Note 7 (Debt). 

In September 2021, the Company completed a private offering of $425 million aggregate principal amounts of its 
2026 Notes. The Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the 2026 Notes offering to repay all outstanding 
obligations under a Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2020 (as subsequently amended, the “Runway 
Loan Agreement”), among the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Porch.com, Inc., as borrower representative, a 
syndicate of lenders party thereto, the other borrowers party thereto, the guarantors party thereto and Runway Growth 
Finance Corp (f/k/a Runway Growth Credit Fund Inc.), as administrative agent and collateral agent, pursuant to which 
there was a $40.4 million senior secured term loan outstanding (the “Senior Secured Term Loan”). The total repayment 
amount of $42.8 million consisted of outstanding principal, accrued interest, prepayment fees and related expenses. 
Concurrent with such repayment in full of all outstanding obligations under the Senior Secured Term Loan on 
September 16, 2021, the Runway Loan Agreement (and all commitments and liens thereunder) was terminated. A loss 
on extinguishment of $3.1 million was recorded. 

Also during 2021, the Company raised $126.7 million and $4.3 million from exercise of public warrants and stock 
options, respectively.  

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $215.1 million and $13.5 million of 
restricted cash.  

The Company has incurred losses since its inception, and has an accumulated deficit at December 31, 2022 and 
December 31, 2021 totaling $585.0 million and $424.1 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, and 
December 31, 2021 the Company had $451.1 million and $425.6 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of 
debt, respectively.  

Based on the Company’s current operating and growth plan, management believes cash and cash equivalents at 
December 31, 2022, are sufficient to finance the Company’s operations, planned capital expenditures, working capital 
requirements and debt service obligations for at least the next 12 months. As the Company’s operations evolve and 
continues its growth strategy, including through acquisitions, the Company may elect or need to obtain alternative 
sources of capital, and it may finance additional liquidity needs in the future through one or more equity or debt 
financings. The Company may not be able to obtain equity or additional debt financing in the future when needed or, if 
available, the terms may not be satisfactory to the Company or could be dilutive to its stockholders. 

Porch Group, Inc. is a holding company that transacts a majority of its business through operating subsidiaries, 
including insurance subsidiaries. Consequently, the Company’s ability to pay dividends and expenses is largely 
dependent on dividends or other distributions from its subsidiaries. Porch’s insurance company subsidiaries are highly 
regulated and are restricted by statute as to the amount of dividends they may pay without the prior approval of their 
respective regulatory authorities. As of December 31, 2022, cash and cash equivalents of $78.1 million and investments 
held by these companies was $91.6 million.  

Insurance companies in the United States are also required by state law to maintain a minimum level of 
policyholder’s surplus. Insurance regulators in the states in which we operate have a risk-based capital standard designed 
to identify property and casualty insurers that may be inadequately capitalized based on inherent risks of the insurer’s 
assets and liabilities and its mix of net written premium. Insurers falling below a calculated threshold may be subject to 
varying degrees of regulatory action. As of December 31, 2022, the total adjusted capital of our U.S. insurance 
subsidiary was in excess of its respective prescribed risk-based capital requirements. 

The Company has used the proceeds from debt and equity principally to fund general operations and acquisitions. 
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In 2022 and 2021, the Company invested $38.6 million and $256.4 million (net of cash acquired) to acquire a 
number of companies, in transactions accounted for as business combinations. 

The following table provides a summary of cash flow data for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021: 
 
             

      Year Ended December 31,       $       %    
  2022      2021   Change   Change  
Net cash used in operating activities  $  (17,736) $  (34,777) $  17,041    49 % 
Net cash used in investing activities     (79,678)    (263,433)    183,755    70 % 
Net cash provided by financing activities     1,227     415,549     (414,322)   100 % 
Change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash  $  (96,187) $  117,339  $  (213,526)  NM  

 
NM — percentage calculated is not meaningful. 

2022 

Net cash used in operating activities was $17.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Net cash used in 
operating activities consists of net loss of $156.6 million, adjusted for non-cash items and the effect of changes in 
working capital. Non-cash adjustments primarily include impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill of 
$61.4 million, stock-based compensation expense of $27.0 million, depreciation and amortization of $27.9 million, non-
cash interest expense of $2.3 million, fair value adjustments to contingent consideration of $6.9 million (loss), and fair 
value adjustments to earnout liability and private warrant liability of $13.8 million (gain) and $14.5 million (gain), 
respectively. Net changes in working capital provided $37.2 million, primarily due to increases in insurance-related 
liabilities and deferred revenue. 

Investing Cash Flows 

Net cash used in investing activities was $79.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Net cash used in 
investing activities is primarily related to acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $38.6 million, purchases of investments of 
$52.5 million, investments to develop internal use software of $8.1 million purchases of property and equipment of 
$2.4 million. This was partly offset by the cash inflows related to maturities and sales of investments of $21.9 million. 

 Financing Cash Flows 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Net cash 
provided by financing activities is primarily related to proceeds from advance funding and debt issuance, net of fees of 
$33.6 million and exercises of options $1.1 million. This was partially offset by shares repurchased to pay income tax 
withholdings upon vesting of RSUs of $3.1 million, repurchases of stock of $1.8 million, payments of acquisition-related 
contingent consideration of $0.7 million and advance funding and debt repayments of $30.9 million and $5.2 million, 
respectively. 

2021 

Operating Cash Flows 

Net cash used in operating activities was $34.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Net cash used in 
operating activities consists of net loss of $106.6 million, adjusted for non-cash items and the effect of changes in 
working capital. Non-cash adjustments primarily include stock-based compensation expense of $38.6 million, 
depreciation and amortization of $16.4 million, gain on extinguishment of debt of $5.1 million, and fair value 
adjustments to earnout liability and private warrant liability of $18.5 million and $15.4 million, respectively. Net 
changes in working capital provided $15.7 million, primarily due to increases in insurance-related liabilities. 
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Investing Cash Flows 

Net cash used in investing activities was $263.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Net cash used in 
investing activities is primarily related to acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $256.4 million, purchases of investment of 
$24.0 million, investments to develop internal use software of $3.7 million purchases of property and equipment of 
$1.0 million. This was partly offset by the cash inflows related to maturities and sales of investments of $21.7 million. 

Financing Cash Flows 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $415.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Net cash 
provided by financing activities is primarily related to the issuance of the 2026 Notes of $413.5 million, exercises of 
warrants of $126.7 million and exercises of options $4.3 million. This was partially offset by financing of the capped call 
transactions of $52.9 million, debt repayments of $47.0 million and income tax withholdings upon vesting of RSUs of 
$28.9 million. 

Contractual Obligations and Commitments 

Our principal commitments consist of obligations under leases for office space. For more information regarding our 
lease obligations, see Note 13 (Leases) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this 
Annual Report. In addition, we have a substantial level of debt. For more information regarding our debt service 
obligations, see Note 7 (Debt) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual 
Report. We also have certain non-cancellable purchase commitments primarily for data purchases. As of December 31, 
2022, our other contractual commitments associated with agreements that are enforceable and legally binding and that 
specify all significant terms were payments of $4.6 million due in the next 12 months and $4.6 million due thereafter. 
For more information regarding our purchase commitments, see Note 16 (Commitments and contingencies) to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. We expect to fund these 
obligations with cash flows from operations and cash on our balance sheet. 

During fiscal 2022 and in future years, we have made and expect to continue to make additional investments in our 
infrastructure to scale our operations and increase productivity. We plan to enhance the consumer experience, our app 
and digital platform and integration of data platform across Porch, to invest in development of additional modules across 
all vertical software businesses and to enhance our corporate systems. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Since the date of our incorporation, we have not engaged in any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in the 
rules and regulations of the SEC. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 1 (Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report, for more information about recent accounting 
pronouncements, the timing of their adoption, and our assessment, to the extent we have made one, of their potential 
impact on our financial condition and our results of operations. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk 

The market risk inherent in our financial instruments and our financial position represents the potential loss arising 
from adverse changes in interest rates. As of December 31, 2022, we have an interest-bearing debt principal of 
$451.1 million. Our 2026 Notes have a principal balance of $425 million as of December 31, 2022, have a fixed coupon 
rate of 75 basis points, and the effective interest rate is 1.3%. As such, interest expense on the 2026 Notes will not 
change if market interest rates increase. The capped call transactions entered into concurrently with the issuance of our 
2026 Notes  
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were completed to reduce the potential dilution from the conversion of the 2026 Notes. Other debt as of December 31, 
2022 totaled $10.5 million and is variable-rate. 

A one percent increase in interest rates in our variable rate indebtedness would result in a nominal change in annual 
interest expense. 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s insurance subsidiary has a $91.6 million portfolio of fixed income 
securities and an unrealized loss of approximately $6.2 million, as described in Note 3 (Investments). In a rising interest 
rate environment, the portfolio would result in unrealized losses.   

At December 31, 2022, accounts receivable and reinsurance balances due were $26.4 million and $299.1 million, 
respectively, were not interest-bearing assets and are generally collected in less than 180 days. As such, the Company 
does not consider these assets to have material interest rate risk. 

Inflation Risk 

The Company believes its operations have been negatively affected by inflation, in addition to the change in the 
interest rate environment. General economic factors beyond its control, and changes in the global economic 
environment, specifically fluctuations in inflation, including the access to credit under terms favorable to the Company, 
could result in lower revenues, higher costs and decreased margins and earnings in the foreseeable future. While the 
Company and its management teams take action, wherever possible, to reduce the impact of the effects of inflation, in 
the case of sustained inflation across several of the markets in which Porch operates, it could become increasingly 
difficult to effectively mitigate the increases to costs. In addition, the effects of inflation on consumers’ budgets could 
result in the reduction of consumer spending habits, specifically in the move and post-move markets. If unable to take 
actions to effectively mitigate the effect of the resulting higher costs, the Company’s profitability and financial position 
could be materially and adversely impacted. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

There was no material foreign currency risk for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020. Porch’s 
activities to date have been conducted in the United States. 

 
Other Risks 

We are exposed to a variety of market and other risks, including risks to the availability of funding sources, 
reinsurance providers, weather and other catastrophic hazard events, and specific asset risks. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Porch Group, Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Porch Group, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes and financial 
statements schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a) (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated March 16, 2023 expressed an adverse opinion thereon. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the 
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities 
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those 
risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Critical Audit Matters 

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial 
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to 
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, 
subjective or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters 
below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate. 

  
Business combinations – accounting for acquisitions 

Description of the Matter As described in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company 
completed the acquisition of Residential Warranty Services (“RWS”) during 2022 
for total consideration of $38.8 million. This acquisition has been accounted for as a 
business combination. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value 
of the net assets acquired, including identifiable intangible assets, at the acquisitions 
date was allocated to goodwill. For this acquisition, $13.9 million was allocated to 
customer relationships.  

Auditing the accounting for this acquisition was complex due to the estimation 
uncertainty present in assumptions used in calculating the acquisition date fair 
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values of the customer relationship intangible asset and contingent consideration. 
Significant assumptions used by management included forecasted revenue and 
discount rates. Each were considered subjective as they represented estimates of 
future performance or could be impacted by market or economic conditions, among 
other factors. 

How We Addressed the Matter 
in Our Audit 

Among other procedures, we read the purchase agreement and assessed for the 
completeness of identified intangible assets and evaluated the relevant terms for the 
payout of the contingent consideration. We also evaluated forecasts used in 
determining the acquisition date fair values of the intangible asset and contingent 
consideration. We identified and tested the significant assumptions used in the models 
by comparing forecasts to actual results and relevant market participant data. As part 
of the assessment, we performed sensitivity analyses over the significant assumptions 
used in the valuation models. Additionally, we involved our valuation specialists to 
assist with our evaluation of the selection of the valuation models and the significant 
assumptions used in the models, and to perform mathematical checks of the valuation. 

   
Goodwill impairment – insurance reporting unit 

Description of the Matter As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, goodwill is tested at 
least annually for impairment, or more frequently when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying value. 
During 2022, the Company recognized a $43.7 million goodwill impairment for its 
insurance reporting unit.   

Auditing management’s goodwill impairment test for the Insurance reporting unit 
was complex because the estimation of fair value of the reporting unit involves 
subjective management assumptions, such as estimates of the projected rates of 
discrete and long-term growth of cash flows and the discount rate. Each were 
considered subjective as they represented estimates of future performance and could 
be affected by expectations in future market or economic conditions, among other 
factors. 

How We Addressed the Matter 
in Our Audit 

Our audit procedures to test the fair value of the Insurance reporting unit included, 
among others, assessing the valuation methodologies and significant assumptions 
discussed above and the underlying data used to develop such assumptions. We also 
evaluated forecasts used in determining the fair value of the reporting unit. We 
identified and tested the significant assumptions used in the models by comparing 
forecasts to actual results and the significant assumptions to current industry, market 
and economic trends, and other guideline companies in the same industry. As part of 
the assessment, we performed sensitivity analyses over the significant assumptions 
used in the models. We also tested management’s reconciliation of the fair value of 
all reporting units to the market capitalization of the Company. We involved our 
valuation specialists to assist us in performing our audit procedures to test the 
estimated fair values of the Insurance reporting unit. 

 
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP  
 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015. 
 
Seattle, Washington 
March 16, 2023 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts) 
 

 
       

  December 31, 
      2022      2021 
Assets          
Current assets          

Cash and cash equivalents  $  215,060  $  315,741 
Accounts receivable, net     26,438     28,767 
Short-term investments    36,523    9,251 
Reinsurance balance due    299,060    228,416 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     20,009     14,338 
Restricted cash    13,545    8,551 

Total current assets     610,635     605,064 
Property, equipment, and software, net     12,240     6,666 
Operating lease right-of-use assets    4,201    4,504 
Goodwill     244,697     225,654 
Long-term investments    55,118    58,324 
Intangible assets, net     108,255     129,830 
Restricted cash, non-current     —     500 
Long-term insurance commissions receivable    12,265    7,521 
Other assets     1,646     684 

Total assets  $  1,049,057  $  1,038,747 
           
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity           
Current liabilities           

Accounts payable  $  6,268  $  6,965 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities     39,742     37,675 
Deferred revenue     270,690     201,085 
Refundable customer deposits     20,142     15,274 
Current debt     16,455     150 
Losses and loss adjustment expense reserves    100,632    61,949 
Other insurance liabilities, current    61,710    40,024 

Total current liabilities     515,639     363,122 
Long-term debt     425,310     414,585 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current    2,536    2,694 
Earnout liability, at fair value    44    13,866 
Private warrant liability, at fair value    707    15,193 
Other liabilities (includes $24,546 and $9,617 at fair value, respectively)     25,468     12,242 

Total liabilities     969,704     821,702 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)           
Stockholders’ equity         
Common stock, $0.0001 par value:     10     10 

Authorized shares – 400,000,000 and 400,000,000, respectively           
Issued and outstanding shares – 98,455,838 and 97,961,597, respectively     

Additional paid-in capital     670,537     641,406 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (6,171)   (259)
Accumulated deficit     (585,023)    (424,112)

Total stockholders’ equity     79,353     217,045 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $  1,049,057  $  1,038,747 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts) 
 

 
          

      2022      2021      2020 
Revenue  $  275,948  $  192,433  $  72,299 
Operating expenses(1):                

Cost of revenue     107,577     58,725     17,562 
Selling and marketing     113,848     84,273     41,665 
Product and technology     59,565     47,005     28,546 
General and administrative     110,619     85,795     28,199 
Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    61,386    —    — 
Gain on divestiture of businesses    —    —    (1,442)

Total operating expenses     452,995     275,798     114,530 
Operating loss     (177,047)    (83,365)    (42,231)
Other income (expense):                

Interest expense     (8,723)    (5,757)    (14,734)
Change in fair value of earnout liability    13,822    (18,519)   — 
Change in fair value of private warrant liability    14,486    (15,389)   2,427 
Gain on extinguishment of debt    —    5,110    5,748 
Investment income and realized gains, net of investment expenses    1,174    701    — 
Other income (expense), net     571     340     (6,931)

Total other income (expense)     21,330     (33,514)    (13,490)
Loss before income taxes     (155,717)    (116,879)    (55,721)
Income tax benefit (expense)     (842)    10,273     1,689 
Net loss  $  (156,559) $  (106,606) $  (54,032)
Induced conversion of preferred stock    —    —    (17,284)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders  $  (156,559) $  (106,606) $  (71,316)
       

Loss per share - basic (Note 19)  $  (1.61) $  (1.14) $  (1.96)
Loss per share - diluted (Note 19)  $  (1.61) $  (1.14) $  (2.03)

                
Shares used in computing basic loss per share     97,351,241     93,884,566     36,344,234 
Shares used in computing diluted loss per share     97,351,241     93,884,566     36,374,215 

 
(1) Amounts include stock-based compensation expense, as follows: 
 
      2022      2021      2020 
Cost of revenue  $  —  $  1  $  2 
Selling and marketing    4,855    5,584    1,901 
Product and technology    5,435    7,223    5,248 
General and administrative    16,751    25,784    4,145 
  $  27,041  $  38,592  $  11,296 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 
(all numbers in thousands) 
 
          

  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Net loss  $  (156,559)  $  (106,606) $  (54,032)
Other comprehensive income (loss):           

Current period change in net unrealized loss, net of tax     (5,912)     (259)    — 
Comprehensive loss  $  (162,471)  $  (106,865) $  (54,032)
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020  
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts) 
 

 
             Accumulated     
                 Additional            Other     Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-in    Accumulated    Comprehensive  Stockholders’ 
  Shares      Amount  Capital  Deficit  Loss   Equity (Deficit) 
Balances as of January 1, 2020    34,197,822  $  3  $  203,492  $  (263,474)  $  —  $  (59,979)
Comprehensive loss    —     —     —     (54,032)     —     (54,032)
Stock-based compensation    —     —     10,660     —     —     10,660 
Stock-based compensation - earnout   1,976,332    —    636    —    —    636 
Issuance of Series B and Series C redeemable 
convertible preferred stock(1)    682,539     —     4,836     —     —     4,836 
Conversion of convertible notes to Series C 
redeemable convertible preferred stock(1)   198,750     —     1,436     —     —    1,436 
Repurchase of redeemable convertible preferred stock    (75,162)    —     (480)    —     —     (480)
Issuance of common stock warrants    —     —     44     —     —     44 
Vesting of restricted stock awards issued for 
acquisitions    472,141     —     —     —     —     — 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions    785,330     —     6,898     —     —     6,898 
Exercise of stock options and warrants    505,711     —     1,029     —     —     1,029 
Net share settlement of common stock options and 
restricted stock units   1,189,911    —    —    —    —    — 
Shareholder contribution    —     —     17,584     —     —     17,584 
Inducement to convert preferred stock   —    —    (17,284)   —    —    (17,284)
Impacts of recognition of contingent beneficial 
conversion feature   —    —    (5,208)   —    —    (5,208)
Conversion of common stock warrants into common 
stock   1,705,266    —    —    —    —    — 
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock 
warrants into common stock   702,791    —    11,029    —    —    11,029 
Recapitalization and PIPE financing   35,304,052    5    239,722    —    —    239,727 
Tax impacts of recapitalization   —    —    187    —    —    187 
Earnout liability   4,023,668    —    (50,238)   —    —    (50,238)
Cancellation of redeemable convertible preferred stock 
repurchase liability    —     —     480     —     —     480 
Balances as of December 31, 2020    81,669,151  $  8  $  424,823  $  (317,506)  $  —  $  107,325 
Comprehensive loss   —    —    —    (106,606)    (259)   (106,865)
Stock-based compensation   —    —    15,631    —    —    15,631 
Stock-based compensation - earnout   —    —    22,961    —    —    22,961 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions   2,042,652    1    35,706    —    —    35,707 
Contingent consideration for acquisitions   —    —    6,685    —    —    6,685 
Reclassification of earnout liability upon vesting   —    —    54,891    —    —    54,891 
Reclassification of private warrant liability upon 
exercise   —    —    31,730    —    —    31,730 
Vesting of restricted stock awards   2,549,223    —    —    —    —    — 
Exercise of stock warrants   11,521,412    1    126,768    —    —    126,769 
Exercise of stock options   1,700,557    —    4,326    —    —    4,326 
Income tax withholdings   (1,521,398)   —    (28,940)   —    —    (28,940)
Capped call transactions   —    —    (52,913)   —    —    (52,913)
Transaction costs   —    —    (262)   —    —    (262)
Balances as of December 31, 2021   97,961,597  $  10  $  641,406  $  (424,112)  $  (259) $  217,045 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) - Continued 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020  
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts) 
 
                  

                           Accumulated       
       Additional     Other  Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-in    Accumulated    Comprehensive  Stockholders’ 
  Shares     Amount   Capital  Deficit  Loss   Equity 
Balances as of January 1, 2022    97,961,597  $  10  $ 641,406  $  (424,112) $  (259) $  217,045 
Comprehensive loss    —     —     —     (156,559)    (5,912)    (162,471)
Stock-based compensation    —     —     27,041     —     —     27,041 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions    628,660     —     3,552     —     —     3,552 
Contingent consideration for acquisitions   —    —    530    —     —    530 
Vesting of restricted stock awards    2,144,546     —     —     —     —     — 
Exercise of stock options    473,653     —     1,116     —     —     1,116 
Income tax withholdings    (613,377)     —    (3,108)    —     —     (3,108)
Repurchases of common stock   (2,388,756)    —    —    (4,352)   —    (4,352)
Balances as of December 31, 2022    98,206,323  $  10  $ 670,537  $  (585,023) $  (6,171) $  79,353 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 
(all numbers in thousands) 
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Cash flows from operating activities:                

Net loss  $  (156,559)  $  (106,606) $  (54,032)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities               

Depreciation and amortization     27,930     16,386     6,644 
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets    2,117    1,861    — 
Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    61,386    —    — 
Loss on sale and impairment of property, equipment, and software     745    595    895 
Gain on extinguishment of debt     —     (5,110)    (5,748)
Loss on remeasurement of debt    —    —    895 
Gain on divestiture of businesses    —    —    (1,442)
Loss on remeasurement of Legacy Porch warrants    —    —    2,584 
Loss (gain) on remeasurement of private warrant liability     (14,486)     15,389     (2,427)
Loss (gain) on remeasurement of contingent consideration     6,944     (2,244)    1,700 
Loss (gain) on remeasurement of earnout liability    (13,822)    18,519    — 
Stock-based compensation     27,041     38,592     11,296 
Amortization of investment premium/accretion of discount, net    278    369    — 
Net realized losses on investments    370    67    — 
Interest expense (non-cash)     2,270     2,387     7,488 
Other     885     1,055     (23)

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and divestitures               
Accounts receivable     (4,886)     (2,905)    203 
Reinsurance balance due    (70,644)    (15,343)   — 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     (5,146)     (5,323)    (2,587)
Accounts payable     (697)     (11,779)    4,092 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities     (6,519)     (15,981)    (15,946)
Losses and loss adjustment expense reserves    38,683    (22,417)   — 
Other insurance liabilities, current    21,686    14,396    — 
Deferred revenue     66,254     53,556     2,206 
Refundable customer deposits     6,537     (3,545)    (3,521)
Deferred income tax    (287)    —    — 
Long-term insurance commissions receivable     (4,744)     (4,156)   (3,365)
Operating lease liabilities, non-current    (2,082)    (2,141)   — 
Other     (990)     (399)    2,419 

Net cash used in operating activities     (17,736)     (34,777)    (48,669)
Cash flows from investing activities:                 

Purchases of property and equipment     (2,350)     (972)    (279)
Capitalized internal use software development costs     (8,100)     (3,719)    (2,601)
Purchases of short-term and long-term investments     (52,506)     (24,006)    — 
Maturities, sales of short-term and long-term investments    21,906    21,694    — 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (38,628)    (256,430)   (7,791)

Net cash used in investing activities     (79,678)     (263,433)    (10,671)
Cash flows from financing activities:                 

Proceeds from recapitalization and PIPE financing    —    —    305,133 
Distribution to stockholders    —    —    (30,000)
Transaction costs - recapitalization    —    (262)   (5,652)
Proceeds from debt issuance, net of fees    33,643    413,537    66,190 
Repayments of advance funding    (22,746)    —    — 
Repayments of principal and related fees     (5,150)     (46,965)    (81,640)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net of fees    —    —    4,714 
Capped call transaction    —    (52,913)   — 
Proceeds from exercises of warrants     —     126,741     — 
Proceeds from exercises of stock options and Legacy Porch warrants    1,116    4,288    911 
Income tax withholdings paid upon vesting of restricted stock units    (3,108)    (28,877)   — 
Payments of acquisition-related contingent consideration    (715)    —    — 
Repurchase of stock    (1,813)    —    (42)

Net cash provided by financing activities     1,227     415,549     259,614 
Net change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash  $  (96,187)  $  117,339  $  200,274 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of period  $  324,792  $  207,453  $  7,179 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash end of period  $  228,605  $  324,792  $  207,453 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued 
Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 
(all numbers in thousands) 
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Supplemental disclosures                 

Cash paid for interest  $  3,512  $  2,662  $  9,103 
Cash paid for income taxes  $  674  $  —  $  — 
Non-cash consideration for acquisitions  $  12,252  $  52,761  $  9,295 
Share repurchases included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities  $  2,539  $  —  $  — 
Reduction of earnout liability due to a vesting event  $  —  $  54,891  $  — 
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrants into common stock  $  —  $  —  $  11,029 
Earnout liability  $  —  $  —  $  50,238 
Private warrant liability  $  —  $  —  $  31,534 
Capital contribution from a shareholder - inducement to convert preferred stock to common  $  —  $  —  $  17,284 
Non-cash inducement to convert preferred stock to common  $  —  $  —  $  17,284 
Debt discount for warrants issued (non-cash)  $  —  $  —  $  1,215 
Cancelation of a convertible promissory note on divestiture of a business  $  —  $  —  $  2,724 
Conversion of debt to redeemable convertible preferred stock (non-cash)  $  —  $  —  $  1,436 
Capital contribution from a shareholder - guarantee of debt  $  —  $  —  $  300 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

Porch Group, Inc. (“Porch Group,” “Porch” or the “Company”) is a vertical software platform for the home, 
providing software and services to approximately 30,900 companies and small businesses. Porch’s Insurance segment, 
with approximately 390,000 insurance and warranty policies in force, operates both as an insurance carrier underwriting 
home insurance policies, and as an agent selling home and auto insurance for over 20 national and regional insurance 
companies. The Insurance Segment also includes Porch’s warranty service offerings. The Vertical Software segment 
provides software and services to home services companies, such as home inspectors, mortgage companies and loan 
officers, title companies, moving companies, real estate agencies, utility companies, and individuals.  

Porch helps home service providers grow their business and improve their customer experience. In addition, through 
these relationships, Porch gains access to homebuyers and is able to offer services to make the moving process easier, 
helping consumers save time and make better decisions about critical services, including insurance, warranty, moving, 
security, TV/Internet, home repair and improvement. 

December 23, 2020 Merger 

On July 30, 2020, Porch.com, Inc. (“Legacy Porch”) entered into a definitive agreement (as amended, the “Merger 
Agreement”) with PropTech Acquisition Corporation (“PTAC”), a special purpose acquisition company, whereby the 
parties agreed to merge, resulting in the parent of Porch.com, Inc. becoming a publicly listed company under the name 
Porch Group, Inc. This merger (the “Merger”) closed on December 23, 2020. Among other transactions which are fully 
described in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in the 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed 
with the SEC on March 16, 2022, the following transactions occurred: 

• Immediately prior to the Merger, certain third-party investors (“PIPE Investors”), purchased 15,000,000 newly 
issued shares of Porch Group, Inc. common stock at a price of $10.00 per share in exchange for cash. Net 
proceeds from the additional offering were $141.8 million after the deduction of $8.2 million of direct offering 
costs. 

• PTAC issued 36,264,984 shares of PTAC Class A Common Stock and $30 million in exchange for all 
83,559,663 vested and outstanding shares of Legacy Porch Common stock to complete the Merger. In addition, 
5,000,000 “earnout” shares were issued to pre-closing holders of Legacy Porch common stock, employee or 
service provider holders of unvested Legacy Porch option and restricted stockholders, subject to vesting 
conditions. 1,000,000 restricted shares subject to the same were issued to the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company subject to the same vesting condition as the “earnout” shares. An additional 150,000 shares were 
provided to service providers in exchange for services related to the transaction. See Note 9. 
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• As a result of the Merger, $305.1 million was available for use by Porch Group, Inc., prior to a $30 million 
distribution to pre-closing holders of Legacy Porch common stock, resulting in net assets available of 
$275.1 million. 

• 14,235,000 common stock warrants remained outstanding as a result of the merger, of which, 5,700,000 were 
private warrants and 8,625,000 were public warrants. 1,795,700 private warrants remained unexercised as of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021. See Note 8. 

• In connection with the Merger, Porch incurred $30.8 million of transaction costs of which, $5.6 million were 
paid in cash. In addition, Porch issued 1,580,000 shares of common stock at a fair value of $23.3 million and 
150,000 earnout shares at a fair value of $1.9 million as compensation for transaction services. Of the total 
amount, $27.0 million met the eligibility criteria to be charged against equity because the costs were incurred 
pursuant to an issuance of equity as part of the recapitalization. $3.8 million were recognized as expenses, as 
the costs were deemed related to the issuance of private warrants and earnout shares which are liability 
classified financial instruments. 

• As a result of the foregoing transactions, $239.7 million was reflected as contributed capital on the Company’s 
consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit). Presented separately, the Company also assumed a 
$50.4 million non-cash liability associated with the earnout shares, and $34.0 million liability associated with 
the Private Warrants, both described above.  

Accordingly, the Merger transactions were treated as the equivalent of Porch.com, Inc. issuing stock for the net 
assets of PTAC. Consistent with SEC Topic 12, Reverse Acquisitions and Reverse Recapitalizations, the transaction was, 
in substance, a reverse recapitalization, equivalent to the issuance of stock by the private company for the net monetary 
assets of the shell corporation accompanied by a recapitalization. The accounting was similar to that of a reverse 
acquisition, except that no goodwill or other intangible assets were recorded at the time of the Merger. 

Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes include the accounts of the Company and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries and were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
(“GAAP”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

Comprehensive Loss 

Comprehensive loss consists of adjustments related to unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements and accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions that are evaluated by management include, 
but are not limited to, impairment losses on intangible assets and goodwill, estimated variable consideration for services 
performed, estimated lifetime value of insurance agency commission revenue, current estimate for credit losses, 
depreciable lives for property and equipment, the valuation of and useful lives for acquired intangible assets, the 
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets, assumptions used in stock-based compensation expense, unpaid losses for 
insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses, contingent consideration, earnout liabilities and private warrant 
liabilities. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions, and those differences could be 
material to the consolidated financial statements. 



PORCH GROUP, INC 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts and unless otherwise stated) 

 

93 

Concentrations 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist principally of cash, money 
market accounts on deposit with financial institutions, money market funds, certificates of deposit and fixed-maturity 
securities, as well as receivable balances in the course of collection. 

The Company’s insurance carrier subsidiary has exposure and remains liable in the event of an insolvency of one of 
its primary reinsurers. Management and its reinsurance intermediary regularly assess the credit quality and ratings of its 
reinsurance counterparties. Two reinsurers represented more than 10% individually, and 45% in aggregate, of the 
Company’s insurance subsidiary’s total reinsurance receivables as of December 31, 2022. Five reinsurers represented 
more than 10% individually, and 68% in aggregate, of the Company’s insurance subsidiary’s total reinsurance 
receivables as of December 31, 2021. 

The Company’s insurance and warranty revenues in the Insurance segment are concentrated in Texas (which 
represent approximately 52% and 61% of the Insurance segment revenues in 2022 and 2021, respectively) and South 
Carolina (which represent approximately 10% and 9% of the Insurance segment revenues in 2022 and 2021, 
respectively). 

No individual customer represented more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue for the years ended 
December 31, 2022, 2021 or 2020. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no individual customer accounted for 10% or 
more of the Company’s total accounts receivable. 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company held approximately $148.0 million of cash with three U.S. commercial 
banks. As of December 31, 2021, the Company held approximately $262.4 million of cash with one U.S. commercial 
bank. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of 
purchase to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances that exceed the insured limits by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

Restricted cash equivalents as of December 31, 2022 includes $5.1 million held by the Company’s captive insurance 
company as a collateral for the benefit of Homeowners of America (“HOA”), $1.0 million held in money market mutual 
funds pledged to the Department of Insurance in certain states as a condition of its Certificate of Authority for the 
purpose of meeting obligations to policyholders and creditors, $5.0 million in funds held for the payment of possible 
warranty claims as required under regulatory guidelines in nineteen states, and $2.4 million related to acquisition 
indemnifications. Restricted cash as of December 31, 2021 includes $0.3 million held in certificates of deposits and 
money market mutual funds pledged to the Department of Insurance in certain states as a condition of its Certificate of 
Authority for the purpose of meeting obligations to policyholders and creditors, $5.9 million in funds held for the 
payment of possible warranty claims as required under regulatory guidelines in twenty-five states, $0.3 million of 
customer deposits, and $2.6 million related to acquisition indemnifications in escrow accounts, of which $0.5 million is 
recorded in non-current assets. 
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The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to amounts presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows 
are as follows: 

 
       

      December 31, 2022      December 31, 2021 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  215,060  $  315,741 
Restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents - current     13,545     8,551 
Restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents - non-current    —    500 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash  $  228,605  $  324,792 
 
Investments 

The Company’s investments are primarily comprised of short-term certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury, corporate 
and municipal bonds, and mortgage-backed securities and are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value 
with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”). Investments are 
classified as current or non-current based upon the remaining maturity of the investment. Amortization of premium and 
accretion of discount are computed using the effective interest method. The accretion or amortization of discounts and 
premiums on mortgage-backed securities takes into consideration actual and future estimated principal prepayments. The 
Company utilizes estimated prepayment speed information obtained from published sources. The effects of the yield of a 
security from changes in principal prepayments are recognized prospectively. The degree to which a security is 
susceptible to yield adjustments is influenced by the difference between its carrying value and par, the relative sensitivity 
of the underlying mortgages backing the assets to prepayment in a changing interest rate environment, and the 
repayment priority for structured securities. 
 

The Company evaluates whether declines in the fair value of its investments below amortized cost are other-than-
temporary. See Note 3 for additional information about the Company’s evaluation. 

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are determined using the specific-identification method. 

The following table presents investments pledged to the Department of Insurance in certain states as a condition of 
its Certificate of Authority for the purpose of meeting obligations to policyholders and creditors.  

      December 31, 2022      December 31, 2021 
Certificates of deposit  $  1,463  $  2,164 
U.S. Treasury notes    1,216    1,276 
  $  2,679  $  3,440 

 
$0.2 million of pledged certificates of deposit and $0.5 million of U.S. Treasury notes are included in short-term 

investments, and $1.2 million of pledged certificates of deposit and $0.8 million of pledged U.S. Treasury notes are 
included in long-term investments, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022. 
$1.3 million of pledged certificates of deposit are included in short-term investments, and $1.3 million of pledged U.S. 
Treasury notes and $0.9 million of pledged certificates of deposit are included in long-term investments, on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021. 

Accounts Receivable and Long-term Insurance Commissions Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist principally of amounts due from enterprise customers, corporate partnerships, and 
individual policyholders, as well as credit card receivables. The Company estimates allowances for uncollectible 
receivables based on the credit worthiness of its customers, historical trend analysis and general economic conditions. 
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Consequently, an adverse change in those factors could affect the Company’s estimate of allowance for doubtful 
accounts. The allowance for uncollectible receivables at December 31, 2022 and 2021, was $0.5 million and 
$0.4 million, respectively. 

Long-term insurance commissions receivable balance consists of the estimated commissions from policy renewals 
expected to be collected more than twelve months from the balance sheet date. The Company records the amount of 
renewal insurance commissions expected to be collected in the next twelve months as current accounts receivable. 

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs 

The Company capitalizes deferred policy acquisitions costs (“DAC”) which consist primarily of commissions, 
premium taxes and policy underwriting and production expenses that are directly related to the successful acquisition by 
the Company’s insurance subsidiary of new or renewal insurance contracts. DAC are amortized to expense on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the policies to which they relate, which is generally one year. DAC is also reduced by ceding 
commissions paid by reinsurance companies which represent recoveries of acquisition costs. DAC is periodically 
reviewed for recoverability and adjusted if necessary. Future investment income is considered in determining the 
recoverability of DAC. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, DAC of $8.7 million and $4.0 million, respectively, is 
included in prepaid expenses and other current assets. Amortized deferred acquisition costs included in sales and 
marketing expense, amounted to $14.5 million and $2.5 million, for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

Property, Equipment and Software 

Property, equipment and software are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation 
and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 

 
      Estimated Useful Lives 
Software and computer equipment  3 years 
Furniture, office equipment and other  3 – 5 years 
Internally developed software  2 years 
Leasehold improvements  Shorter of useful life or remaining lease term 
 

When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and 
any resulting gains or losses are included in the consolidated statements of operations in the period of disposition. 
Maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the lives of the respective assets are charged to expense in the 
period incurred. 

The Company capitalizes costs incurred in the development of internal use software. The capitalized costs are 
amortized over the estimated useful life of the software. If capitalized projects are determined to no longer be in use, 
they are impaired and the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts. The resulting loss on 
impairment, if any, is included in the consolidated statements of operations in the period of impairment. 

Goodwill 

The Company tests goodwill for impairment for each reporting unit on an annual basis, or more frequently when 
events or changes in circumstances indicate the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying value. The Company 
has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine if an impairment is more likely than not to have 
occurred. If the Company can support the conclusion that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting 
unit is less than its carrying amount, the Company would not need to perform a quantitative impairment test. If the 
Company cannot support such a conclusion or the Company does not elect to perform the qualitative assessment, the 
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Company performs a quantitative assessment. If a quantitative goodwill impairment assessment is performed, the 
Company utilizes a combination of market and income valuation approaches. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less 
than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that fair value of the reporting unit is less than its 
carrying value. The Company has selected October 1 as the date to perform its annual impairment test.  

During the third quarter of 2022, management identified various qualitative factors that collectively, indicated that 
the Company had triggering events, including a sustained decrease in stock price, increased costs due to inflationary 
pressures, and a deterioration of the macroeconomic environment in the housing and real estate industry. The Company 
performed a valuation of both the Vertical Software and Insurance reporting units using a combination of market and 
income approaches based on peer performance and discounted cash flow or dividend discount model methodologies. 
Given the results of the quantitative assessment, the Company determined that the Insurance reporting unit’s goodwill 
was impaired, and recorded impairment charges of $39.4 million related to its Insurance segment.  

 
Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and involves the use of significant estimates 

and assumptions to evaluate the impact of operating and macroeconomic changes on each reporting unit. The fair value 
of each reporting unit was estimated using a combination of income and market valuation approaches using publicly 
traded company multiples in similar businesses. Such fair value measurements are based predominately on Level 3 
inputs. This analysis requires significant judgments, including estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on 
internally developed forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of growth for our business, estimation of the useful life 
over which cash flows will occur, and determination of our weighted average cost of capital, which is risk-adjusted to 
reflect the specific risk profile of the reporting unit being tested. The weighted average cost of capital used in our most 
recent impairment test was risk-adjusted to reflect the specific risk profile of the reporting units and ranged 
from 17% to 20%. 

In the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company updated its preliminary purchase price allocations for certain 
acquisitions. As a result of these adjustments, the carrying value of the Insurance reporting unit was higher than the fair 
value as of September 30, 2022, which resulted in the Company recognizing an additional goodwill impairment charge 
of $4.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2022. 

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded total goodwill impairment charges of 
$43.7 million, related to its Insurance segment. Impairment charges are included in impairment loss on intangible assets 
and goodwill in the consolidated statements of operations. 

There were no goodwill impairment losses recorded during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets consist of acquired customer relationships, acquired technology, trademarks and trade names, 
renewal rights, insurance licenses, non-compete agreements, value of businesses acquired, and related assets that are 
amortized over their estimated useful lives. Certain intangible assets are considered to have indefinite lives. We test 
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually on October 1 and whenever events or circumstances arise that 
indicate an impairment may exist. See Impairment of Long-Lived Assets section below. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, including property, equipment, software and amortizing intangibles, for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be 
fully recoverable. Events that trigger a test for recoverability include a significant decrease in the market price for a 
long-lived asset, significant negative industry or economic trends, an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the 
amount originally expected for the acquisition, a current-period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of 
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operating or cash flow losses or a projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a 
long-lived asset or a sustained decrease in share price. When a triggering event occurs, a test for recoverability is 
performed, comparing projected undiscounted future cash flows to the carrying value of the asset group. If the test for 
recoverability identifies a possible impairment, the asset group’s fair value is measured relying primarily on an income 
approach. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset group exceeds its 
estimated fair value. Management identifies the asset group which includes the potentially impaired long-lived asset, at 
the lowest level at which there are separate, identifiable cash flows. 

During the third quarter of 2022, management identified various qualitative factors that collectively indicated that 
the Company had trigger events including a sustained decrease in stock price, increased costs due to inflationary 
pressures, and a deterioration of the macroeconomic environment in the housing and real estate industry. The Company 
used an income approach to determine that the estimated fair value of certain asset groups was less than their carrying 
values, which resulted in impairment charges of $17.7 million, primarily related to acquired technology, trademarks and 
tradenames, and customer relationships for certain businesses within its Vertical Software segment. Impairment charges 
are included in impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill in the consolidated statements of operations. 

We estimate the fair value of an asset group using the income approach. Such fair value measurements are based 
predominately on Level 3 inputs. Inherent in our development of cash flow projections are assumptions and estimates 
derived from a review of our operating results, business plan forecasts, expected growth rates, and cost of capital, similar 
to those a market participant would use to assess fair value. We also make certain assumptions about future economic 
conditions and other data. Many of these factors used in assessing fair value are outside the control of management and 
these assumptions and estimates may change in future periods. 

 Losses due to impairment of long-lived assets, other than intangible assets, totaled $0.6 million, $0.6 million and 
$0.6 million during 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in product and technology expense in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Reserves 

The liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) is an estimate of the amounts required to cover known 
incurred losses and LAE and is developed through the review and assessment of loss reports, along with the analysis of 
known claims. These reserves include management’s estimate of the amounts for losses incurred but not reported 
(“IBNR”).  IBNR is reviewed regularly using a variety of actuarial techniques. We update the reserve estimates as 
historical loss experience develops, additional claims are reported and/or settled and new information becomes available. 
Any changes in estimates are reflected in operating results in the period in which the estimates are changed. Although 
management believes that the balance of these reserves is adequate, such liabilities are necessarily dependent on 
estimates, the ultimate expense may be more or less than the amounts presented. The approach and methods for 
developing these estimates and for recording the resulting liability are continually reviewed. Any adjustments to this 
reserve are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. Losses and LAE, less related reinsurance is charged 
to expense as incurred. 

Reinsurance 

In the normal course of business, the Company monitors return and risk and seeks to reduce the overall exposure to 
losses that may arise from catastrophes or other events that cause unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain 
levels of risk with other insurance enterprises or reinsurers. The Company’s insurance company subsidiaries have 
entered proportional and non-proportional reinsurance treaties, under which the insurance company subsidiaries have 
ceded some, but not all, the liabilities to third-party reinsurers including, but not limited to, catastrophe exposure. The 
amount and type of reinsurance employed is based on management’s analysis of capital as well as its estimates of 
probable maximum loss and evaluation of the conditions within the reinsurance market.   
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The Company remains liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not 
meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from 
reinsurer insolvencies, HOA evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk 
arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. 

Additionally, the insurance contracts are subject to contingent commission adjustments and loss participation 
features, which aligns our interests with those of our reinsurers. 

Ceded premium written is recorded in accordance with the applicable terms of the reinsurance contracts and ceded 
premium earned is charged against revenue over the period of the reinsurance contracts. Ceded losses incurred reduce 
net loss and LAE incurred over the applicable periods of the reinsurance contracts with third-party reinsurers. 

Other Insurance Liabilities, Current 

The following table details the components of other insurance liabilities, current in the consolidated balance sheets: 
       

     As of December 31, 2022    As of December 31, 2021
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable  $  29,204  $  22,523 
Commissions payable, reinsurers and agents    21,045    10,697 
Advance premiums     8,668     4,277 
Funds held under reinsurance treaty     1,851     2,206 
General and accrued expenses payable    942    321 

Other insurance liabilities, current  $  61,710  $  40,024 
 

Earnout Shares 

Upon the Merger, 6,000,000 restricted common shares, subject to vesting and cancellation provisions, were issued 
to holders of pre-Merger Porch common stock (the “earnout shares”). The earnout shares were issued in three equal 
tranches with separate market vesting conditions prior to the third anniversary of the Merger. One-third of the earnout 
shares met the market vesting condition when the Company’s common stock had a closing price of greater than or equal 
to $18.00 over 20 trading days within a thirty-consecutive trading day period in the first quarter of 2021. An additional 
third vested when the Company’s common stock had a closing price of greater than or equal to $20.00 over the same 
measurement criteria in the fourth quarter of 2021 (see Note 9). The final third will vest when the Company’s common 
stock has a closing price of greater than or equal to $22.00 over the same measurement criteria. Additional earnout 
shares may also be issued to earnout stockholders, on a pro rata basis, depending on forfeitures of employee earnout 
shares that are subject to a continued service vesting condition (see Note 9).  

The earnout shares are accounted for as a derivative financial instrument, which is classified as a liability and 
periodically measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. 
Note 4 denotes the beginning and ending balances of the earnout share liability, and activity recognized during the 
period.  

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants 

The Company accounts for its warrants to purchase shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock as liabilities 
based upon the characteristics and provisions of each instrument. Warrants classified as derivative liabilities and other 
derivative financial instruments that require separate accounting as liabilities are recorded on the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheets at their fair value on the date of issuance and are revalued on each subsequent balance sheet 
date until such instruments are exercised or expire, with any changes in the fair value between reporting periods recorded 
in the consolidated statements of operations. As discussed in “December 23, 2020 Merger” section of Note 1, all 
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redeemable convertible preferred stock warrants were converted into common stock or canceled immediately prior to the 
Merger. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair value principles require disclosures regarding the manner in which fair value is determined for assets and 
liabilities and establishes a three-tiered fair value hierarchy into which these assets and liabilities must be grouped, based 
upon significant levels of inputs as follows: 

Level 1       Observable inputs, such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at 
the measurement date; 

Level 2       Observable inputs, other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and 
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and 

Level 3       Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value 
of the assets or liabilities 

The lowest level of significant input determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy. 
Management’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires 
management to make judgments and consider factors specific to the asset or liability. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenue from a variety of sources: 

• Insurance revenue in the form of insurance and warranty premiums, policy fees, commissions from reinsurers 
and other insurance-related fees generated through its owned insurance carrier, as well as commissions from 
third-party insurance carriers where Porch acts as an independent agent; 

• Software and service subscription revenue generated from fees paid by companies for access to Porch’s 
software and provision of services; 

• Move-related revenue through fees received for connecting homeowners to service providers during time of a 
move including movers, TV/Internet, warranty, and security monitoring providers and for providing select 
services directly to the homeowner; and 

• Post-move related revenue in the form of fees earned from introducing homeowners to home service 
professionals including handyman, plumbers, electricians, roofers, etc. 

The Company determines revenue recognition for contracts with customers through the following five-step 
framework: 

• Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer; 

• Identification of the performance obligations in the contract; 

• Determination of the transaction price; 
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• Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 

• Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company identifies performance obligations in its contracts with customers, which primarily include delivery 
of homeowner leads and commissions from third-party insurance carriers, performance of home project and moving 
services (Move-related and Post-move Revenue), and providing access to the Company’s software platforms and 
services (Software and Service Subscription Revenue). The transaction price is determined based on the amount which 
the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for providing the promised services to the customer. The transaction 
price in the contract is allocated to each distinct performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis. 
Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied. 

Contract payment terms vary from due upon receipt to net 30 days. Collectability is assessed based on a number of 
factors including collection history and creditworthiness of the customer. If collectability of substantially all 
consideration to which the Company is entitled under the contract is determined to be not probable, revenue is not 
recorded until collectability becomes probable at a later date. 

Revenue is recorded based on the transaction price excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as 
sales taxes collected and remitted to governmental authorities. 

Software and Service Subscription Revenue 

Software and Service Subscription Revenue is primarily generated from the vertical software services provided to 
home inspectors, roofing companies, title insurance companies, mortgage companies, and other home services 
companies. The Company does not provide the customer with the right to take possession of any part of the software 
supporting the cloud-based application services. The Company’s typical subscription contracts are monthly or annual 
contracts in which pricing is based on a specified volume of activity. The Company also provides certain data analytics, 
transaction monitoring and marketing services under subscription and service contracts. Fees earned for providing access 
to the software and services are non-refundable and there is no right of return. Revenue is recognized based on the 
amount which the Company is entitled to for providing access to the software and services during the contract term. 

Move-related Revenue 

Move-related revenue is generated when the Company connects service providers directly to homeowners, and 
includes fees earned from providing services directly to the homeowner, mainly moving services. The Company 
generally invoices for move-related services projects on a fixed fee or time and materials basis as contractually agreed-
upon with the end customer (i.e., the transaction price). Revenue is recognized as services are performed based on an 
output measure of progress, which is generally over a short duration (e.g., same day). Fees earned for providing move-
related services are non-refundable and there is generally no right of return. 

In certain of our move-related product offerings, the Company acts as the principal in the revenue transactions as it 
is primarily responsible to the end customer for providing the service, has a level of discretion in establishing pricing, 
and controls the service prior to providing it to the end customer. This control is evidenced by the ability to identify, 
select, and direct the service provider that provides the ultimate service to end customers, and the Company recognizes 
these revenues on a gross basis. In other instances, third-party merchant partners are responsible for delivering the 
service to the end customer. Revenue for these arrangements is recognized on a net basis. 
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Post-move Revenue 

Post-move revenue is generated by the Company connecting third-party service providers (“Service Providers”) 
with homeowners that meet pre-defined criteria and who may be looking for relevant services. 

Revenue generated from Service Providers is recognized at a point in time upon the connection of a homeowner to 
the Service Provider, at which point the Company’s performance obligation has been satisfied. The transaction price is 
generally either a fixed price per qualifying lead or activated service (fixed consideration), or a percentage of the revenue 
the Service Provider ultimately generates through the homeowner connection (variable consideration). When the 
transaction price is variable, the transaction price is constrained and limited to an amount the Company believes is not 
probable of significant reversal. 

Amounts received in advance of delivery of leads to the Service Provider is recorded as deferred revenue. Certain 
Service Providers have the right to return leads in limited instances. An estimate of returns is included as a reduction of 
revenue based on historical experience or specific identification depending on the contractual terms of the arrangement. 
Estimated returns are not material in any period presented. 

Post-move revenue also includes fees earned from providing a variety of services directly to the homeowner, mainly 
handyman services. The Company generally invoices for services projects on a fixed fee or time and materials basis as 
contractually agreed-upon with the end customer (i.e., the transaction price). Revenue is recognized as services are 
performed based on an output measure of progress, which is generally over a short duration (e.g., same day). Fees earned 
for providing service projects are non-refundable and there is generally no right of return. 

The Company acts as the principal in these service transactions as it is primarily responsible to the end customer for 
providing the service, has a level of discretion in establishing pricing, and controls the service prior to providing it to the 
end customer. This control is evidenced by the ability to identify, select, and direct the service provider that provides the 
ultimate service to end customers. 

Insurance and Warranty Revenue 

Insurance Revenue 

In January 2020, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary and licensed insurance agency, Elite Insurance 
Group (“EIG”), began selling homeowner and auto insurance policies for third-party insurance carriers. The transaction 
price for these arrangements is the estimated lifetime value (“LTV”) of the commissions to be paid by the third-party 
carrier for the policies sold. The LTV represents fixed first-year commission upon sale of the policy as well as the 
estimated variable future renewal commissions expected. The Company constrains the transaction price based on its best 
estimate of the amount which will not result in a significant reversal of revenue in a future period. After a policy is sold 
for an insurance carrier, the Company has no additional or ongoing contractual obligation to the policyholder or 
insurance carrier. 

The Company estimates LTV each period by evaluating various factors, including commission rates for specific 
carriers and estimated average plan duration based on insurance carrier and market data related to policy renewals for 
similar insurance policies. Management reviews and monitors changes in the data used to estimate LTV as well as the 
cash received for each policy type compared to original estimates. If the Company identifies changes that it believes are 
indicative of an increase or decrease to prior period LTVs, the Company will update its estimates of variable 
consideration. There were no changes to the estimated variable consideration for the periods presented. 

Starting in April 2021, through the newly acquired Homeowners of America Holding Corporation and its 
subsidiaries (collectively, “HOA”), the Company is authorized to write various forms of homeowners and auto 
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insurance. Insurance-related revenues primarily relate to premiums, policy fees, ceding commissions and reinsurance 
profit share. Premiums are recognized as revenue over the policy term. The portion of premiums related to the unexpired 
term of policies in force as of the end of the reporting period and to be earned over the remaining term of these policies, 
is deferred and reported as deferred revenue. Policy fees on policies where premium is traditionally paid in full upon 
inception of the policy are recognized when written. 

Excess ceding commissions represent the commissions from reinsurers in excess of the portion which represents the 
reimbursement of acquisition costs associated with insurance risk ceded to reinsurers and is earned on a pro-rata basis 
over the life of the reinsurance policy. Reinsurance profit share is additional ceding commissions payable to the 
Company based on attaining specified loss ratios within individual treaty years. Reinsurance profit share income is 
recognized when earned, which includes adjustments to earned reinsurance profit share based on changes in incurred 
losses. 

Warranty Revenue 

The Company provides warranty products to homeowners which are sold through various channels including home 
inspection companies, real estate agents and direct to customers These products provide customers with product 
protection that enhances or extends coverage offered by the manufacturer’s warranty and provides additional customer-
friendly benefits that go beyond the scope of a manufacturer’s warranty. Typically, our home warranty policies cover a 
ninety-day to three-year period. Revenue for these policies is recognized ratably over the actual warranty coverage 
period for each individual policy.  

The Company also offers products that customers may purchase to extend the manufacturer’s covered warranties for 
a term of up to twenty-five years. Revenue for these policies is recognized over the term of the agreement in proportion 
to the Company’s relief from risk we expect to incur in satisfying the contract obligations. 

Assets Recognized from the Costs to Obtain a Contract with a Customer 

The Company recognizes an asset for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if it expects the 
benefit of those costs to be longer than one year, which generally consist of sales commissions to employees. As of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had $0.3 million and $0.1 million of capitalized costs in prepaid expenses 
and other current assets, respectively, and $0.6 million and $0.3 million, respectively, in other assets on the consolidated 
balance sheets.  

The capitalized contract costs are amortized over an estimated period of benefit. During the years ended 
December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $nil of amortization of capitalized costs, 
respectively, was recorded as a component of selling and marketing expenses in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations. 

The Company periodically evaluates whether there have been any changes in its business, the market conditions in 
which it operates or other events which would indicate that its amortization period should be changed or if there are 
potential indicators of impairment. 

Cost of Revenue 

Cost of revenue primarily consists of insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses, claims personnel costs, 
warranty claims, third-party providers for executing moving labor and handyman services when the Company is 
managing the job, data costs related to marketing campaigns, certain call center costs, credit card processing and 
merchant fees. 
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Product and Technology Development 

Product and technology development costs primarily include payroll, employee benefits, stock-based compensation 
expense, other headcount-related costs associated with product development, net of costs capitalized as internally 
developed software. Also included are cloud computing, hosting and other technology costs, software subscriptions, 
professional services and amortization of internally developed software. 

Advertising 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. During the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the 
Company incurred $13.5 million, $3.6 million, and $2.2 million in advertising costs, respectively. Advertising costs are 
included in selling and marketing expenses in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. 

Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under the asset and liability 
method specified by ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future consequences of 
differences between the carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases (temporary 
differences). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in 
the years in which those temporary differences are recovered or settled. Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets are 
established when it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 

In addition, ASC 740 provides comprehensive guidance on the recognition and measurement of tax positions in 
previously filed tax returns or positions expected to be taken in future tax returns. The benefit from an uncertain tax 
position must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold and is measured at the largest amount of benefit greater 
than 50% determined by cumulative probability of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing authority. The 
Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties expense, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component 
of income tax expense. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company issues stock-based compensation to employees and nonemployees in the form of stock options and 
restricted stock awards, including performance and market-based restricted stock awards. The fair value of stock options 
is based on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The awards are accounted for by 
recognizing the fair value of the related award over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. 
Forfeitures are accounted for when they occur. The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined using the closing 
price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. The value of market based restricted stock units is determined 
using a Monte Carlo simulation model that utilizes significant assumptions, including volatility, that determine the 
probability of satisfying the market condition stipulated in the award to calculate the fair value of the award.  

The Company also issues awards which contain performance and/or market conditions. For awards with 
performance conditions, we recognize compensation expense only if the specified performance condition is probable of 
achievement. We update our assessment of probability at each reporting period. All compensation expense for 
performance awards with market conditions only, is recognized if the requisite service period is fulfilled, even if the 
market condition is not satisfied. 

The awards are generally expensed on a straight-line basis, except for awards with performance or market 
conditions which are expensed on a graded vesting basis. 
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Warrants 

The Company accounts for warrants as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an 
assessment of the warrant’s specific terms. For warrants that meet all of the criteria for equity classification, the warrants 
are recorded as a component of additional paid-in capital at the time of issuance. For warrants that do not meet all the 
criteria for equity classification, the warrants are recorded as a liability at their initial fair value, and then are remeasured 
as of each balance sheet date thereafter. Changes in the estimated fair value of the liability for warrants are recognized as 
a non-cash gain or loss on the consolidated statements of operations in the period in which the change occurred. 

Business Combinations 

The Company accounts for business acquisitions using the acquisition method of accounting and records any 
identifiable definite-lived intangible assets separate from goodwill. Intangible assets are recorded at their fair value 
based on estimates as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recorded as the residual amount of the purchase price 
consideration less the fair value assigned to the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the 
date of acquisition. The Company allocates the purchase price of the acquisition to the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed based on estimates of the fair value at the dates of the acquisitions. Contingent consideration, which represents 
an obligation of the Company to make additional payments or equity interests to the former owner(s) as part of the 
purchase price if specified future events occur or conditions are met, is accounted for at the acquisition date fair value 
either as a liability or as equity depending on the terms of the acquisition agreement. 

Leases 

The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date on which the terms 
of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and obligations. Under Topic 842, a contract 
is or contains a lease when (i) explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been deployed in the contract and (ii) the 
customer obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of that underlying asset and directs how and for 
what purpose the asset is used during the term of the contract. The Company also considers whether its service 
arrangements include the right to control the use of an asset.  

Operating leases are primarily for office space and are included in operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets, 
accrued expenses and other current liabilities, and operating lease liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. ROU 
assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to 
make lease payments arising from the lease. The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives. Operating ROU assets and 
liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term.  

Future lease payments may include fixed rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index (such as the 
consumer price index). Subsequent changes in index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base rent are recorded 
in variable lease expense in the period incurred. Payments for terminating the lease are included in the lease payments 
only when it is probable they will be incurred.  

The Company’s leases may include a non-lease component representing additional services transferred to the 
Company, such as common area maintenance for real estate. The Company made an accounting policy election to 
account for each separate lease component and the non-lease components associated with that lease component as a 
single lease component. Non-lease components that are variable in nature are recorded in variable lease expense in the 
period incurred. 

The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate to determine the present value of lease payments, as the 
Company’s leases do not have a readily determinable implicit discount rate. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of 
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interest the Company would have to pay to borrow on a collateralized basis over a similar term and amount in a similar 
economic environment. Judgement is applied in assessing factors such as Company-specific credit risk, lease term, 
nature and quality of the underlying collateral, currency, and economic environment in determining the incremental 
borrowing rate to apply to each lease. 

For operating leases with a term of one year or less, we have elected to not recognize a lease liability or ROU asset 
on our consolidated balance sheet. Instead, we recognize the lease payments as expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. Short-term lease expenses are immaterial to our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows. 

Other income (expense), net 

The following table details the components of other income (expense), net on the consolidated statements of 
operations: 
          

      Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Interest income  $  717  $  33  $  — 
Loss on remeasurement of debt    —    —    (895)
Loss on remeasurement of Legacy Porch warrants     —     —    (2,584)
Transaction costs - recapitalization     —     —    (3,974)
Gain on settlement of accounts payable     —     175    796 
Other, net    (146)   132   (274)
  $  571  $  340  $  (6,931)
 
Recently Adopted Accounting Standards 

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract 
Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers. The amendments in this update require an entity 
(acquirer) to recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in 
accordance with Topic 606. Under current GAAP, an acquirer generally recognizes such items at fair value on the 
acquisition date. The amendments of this ASU do not affect the accounting for other assets or liabilities that may arise 
from revenue contracts with customers in accordance with Topic 606. The amendments of this ASU are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods in those fiscal years. The ASU clarifies that 
early adoption of the amendments is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. An entity that early adopts in an 
interim period should apply the amendments (1) retrospectively to all business combinations for which the acquisition 
date occurs on or after the beginning of the fiscal year that includes the interim period of early application and 
(2) prospectively to all business combinations that occur on or after the date of initial application. The Company early 
adopted this ASU as of January 1, 2022, and applied the guidance for business combinations during 2022. The impact of 
the adoption on the consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations, and statements of cash flows was immaterial. 
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2. Revenue 

Disaggregation of Revenue 

Total revenues consisted of the following: 
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Vertical Software segment          

Software and service subscriptions  $  72,777  $  57,004  $  7,672 
Move-related transactions    62,317    60,996    36,921 
Post-move transactions    19,821    19,150    19,206 

Total Vertical Software segment revenue    154,915    137,150    63,799 
       

Insurance segment       
Insurance and warranty premiums, commissions and policy fees     121,033     55,283     4,166 

Total Insurance segment revenue    121,033    55,283    4,166 
       
Divested Businesses    —    —    4,334 

          
Total revenue(1)  $  275,948  $  192,433  $  72,299 

 
(1) Revenue recognized during 2022, 2021 and 2020 includes revenue of $83.9 million, $26.6 million and $nil, 

respectively, which is accounted for separately from revenue from contracts with customers. 

Disclosures Related to Contracts with Customers 

Timing may differ between the satisfaction of performance obligations and the invoicing and collection of amounts 
related to contracts with customers. Liabilities are recorded for amounts that are collected in advance of the satisfaction 
of performance obligations. To the extent a contract exists, as defined by ASC 606, these liabilities are classified as 
deferred revenue. To the extent that a contract does not exist, as defined by ASC 606, these liabilities are classified as 
refundable customer deposits. Refundable customer deposits related to contracts with customers were not material at 
December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

Contract Assets —Insurance Commissions Receivable 

A summary of the activity impacting the contract assets is presented below: 
 

    

      Contract Assets 
Balance at January 1, 2020  $  — 

Estimated lifetime value of commissions on insurance policies sold by carriers    4,313 
Cash receipts    (784)

Balance at December 31, 2020    3,529 
Estimated lifetime value of commissions on insurance policies sold by carriers    8,089 
Cash receipts    (2,234)

Balance at December 31, 2021    9,384 
Estimated lifetime value of commissions on insurance policies sold by carriers     9,925 
Cash receipts     (3,788)

Balance at December 31, 2022  $  15,521 
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As of December 31, 2022, $3.3 million of contract assets are expected to be collected within the next 12 months and 
therefore are included in current accounts receivable on the consolidated balance sheets. The remaining $12.3 million of 
contract assets are expected to be collected in the following periods and are included in long-term insurance 
commissions receivable on the consolidated balance sheets. 

Deferred Revenue 

A summary of the activity impacting deferred revenue is presented below: 
 
  Vertical Software 
      Deferred Revenue 
Balance at January 1,  2020  $  3,333 

Additional amounts deferred    6,602 
Impact of acquisitions    196 
Revenue recognized    (4,923)

Balance at December 31, 2020    5,208 
Additional amounts deferred    5,539 
Impact of acquisitions    1,170 
Revenue recognized    (8,103)

Balance at December 31, 2021    3,814 
Additional amounts deferred    19,421 
Impact of acquisitions    137 
Revenue recognized    (19,498)

Balance at December 31, 2022  $  3,874 
 

Deferred revenue on our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, includes $266.8 million 
and $197.3 million, respectively, of deferred revenue related to our Insurance segment. 

Remaining Performance Obligations 

The amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations to be satisfied at a later date, which is not 
recorded in the consolidated balance sheets, is immaterial as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

The Company has applied the practical expedients provided for in the accounting standards, and does not present 
unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an original expected length of one year or less, (ii) contracts 
with variable consideration that is allocated entirely to unsatisfied performance obligations or to a wholly unsatisfied 
promise accounted for under the series guidance, and (iii) contracts for which the Company recognizes revenue at the 
amount which we have the right to invoice for services performed. Additionally, the Company excludes amounts related 
to performance obligations that are billed and recognized as they are delivered. 
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Warranty Revenue and Related Balance Sheet Disclosures 

Payments received in advance of warranty services provided are included in refundable customer deposits or 
deferred revenue based upon the cancellation and refund provisions within the respective agreement. 

 
At December 31, 2022, we had $20.0 million, $4.4 million and $1.9 million of refundable customer deposits, 

deferred revenue and non-current deferred revenue, respectively. At December 31, 2021, we had $14.9 million, $nil and 
$nil of refundable customer deposits, deferred revenue and non-current deferred revenue, respectively.   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, we incurred $3.7 million in expenses related to warranty claims. 
 

3. Investments 

The following table provides the Company’s investment income, and realized gains on investments: 

  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021 
Investment income, net of investment expenses  $  1,544  $  768 
Realized gains on investments    22    62 
Realized losses on investments    (392)   (129)
Investment income and realized gains, net of investment expenses   $  1,174  $  701 

 
The following table provides the amortized cost, fair value and unrealized gains and (losses) of the Company’s 

investment securities: 
             

  As of December 31, 2022 
     Gross Unrealized    
      Amortized Cost     Gains      Losses      Fair Value 

U.S. Treasuries  $  35,637  $  5  $  (320) $  35,322 
Obligations of states, municipalities and political 
subdivisions    11,549    2    (1,326)   10,225 
Corporate bonds     31,032     32     (2,837)    28,227 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities    12,790    11    (1,268)   11,533 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    6,804    6    (476)   6,334 

Total investment securities  $  97,812  $  56  $  (6,227) $  91,641 
 

             

  As of December 31, 2021 
     Gross Unrealized    
      Amortized Cost     Gains      Losses      Fair Value 

U.S. Treasuries  $  5,452  $  1  $  (36) $  5,417 
Obligations of states, municipalities and political 
subdivisions    8,913    21    (84)   8,850 
Corporate bonds     31,491     89     (155)    31,425 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities    14,387    34    (139)   14,282 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    7,637    5    (41)   7,601 

Total investment securities  $  67,880  $  150  $  (455) $  67,575 
 
The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2022, by contractual maturity, are shown in the 

following table. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 
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  As of December 31, 2022 
Remaining Time to Maturity      Amortized Cost      Fair Value 

Due in one year or less  $  34,972  $  34,878 
Due after one year through five years    18,899    17,293 
Due after five years through ten years    19,938    17,665 
Due after ten years     4,409     3,938 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities    12,790    11,533 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    6,804    6,334 

Total  $  97,812  $  91,641 
 

Other-than-temporary Impairment 

The Company regularly reviews its individual investment securities for other-than-temporarily impairment. The 
Company considers various factors in determining whether each individual security is other-than-temporarily impaired, 
including: 

- the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, including any specific events that may affect its 
operations or earnings; 

- the extent to which the market value of the security is below its cost or amortized cost; 

- general market conditions and industry or sector specific factors; 

- nonpayment by the issuer of its contractually obligated interest and principal payments; and 

- the Company’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for the recovery 
of costs. 

Securities with gross unrealized loss position at December 31, 2022 and 2021, aggregated by investment category 
and length of time the individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, are as follows: 

  Less Than Twelve Months  Twelve Months or Greater  Total 
  Gross    Gross    Gross   
   Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized  Fair 
At December 31, 2022     Loss     Value     Loss      Value      Loss     Value 

U.S. Treasuries  $  (127) $  10,748  $  (193) $  9,824  $  (320) $ 20,572 
Obligations of states, municipalities and 
political subdivisions    (929)   6,258    (397)   3,504    (1,326)   9,762 
Corporate bonds    (1,623)   16,531    (1,214)   10,328    (2,837)   26,859 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed 
securities    (687)   6,565    (581)   4,952    (1,268)   11,517 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    (359)   4,633    (117)   1,094    (476)   5,727 

Total securities  $  (3,725) $  44,735  $  (2,502) $  29,702  $  (6,227) $ 74,437 
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  Less Than Twelve Months  Twelve Months or Greater  Total 
  Gross    Gross    Gross   
   Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized  Fair 
At December 31, 2021     Loss      Value     Loss      Value     Loss     Value 

U.S. Treasuries  $  (36) $  5,007  $  —  $  —  $  (36) $  5,007 
Obligations of states, municipalities and 
political subdivisions    (84)   4,292    —    —    (84)   4,292 
Corporate bonds    (155)   15,446    —    —    (155)   15,446 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed 
securities    (139)   9,687    —    —    (139)   9,687 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    (41)   6,818    —    —    (41)   6,818 

Total securities  $  (455) $  41,250  $  —  $  —  $  (455) $ 41,250 
 
At December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were 483 and 358 securities, respectively, in an unrealized loss position. Of 

these securities, 218 had been in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer as of December 31, 2022. No 
securities were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer at December 31, 2021. 

The Company believes there were no fundamental issues such as credit losses or other factors with respect to any of 
its available-for-sale securities. The unrealized losses on investments in fixed-maturity securities were caused primarily 
by interest rate changes and market conditions. It is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than 
par value of the investments. Because the declines in fair value are attributable to changes in interest rates or market 
conditions and not credit quality, and because the Company has the ability and intent to hold its available-for-sale 
investments until a market price recovery or maturity, the Company does not consider any of its investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2022 or 2021.  

4. Fair Value 

The following table details the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis: 
 
  Fair Value Measurement as of December 31, 2022 
            Total  
      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Fair Value 
Assets             

Money market mutual funds  $  6,619  $  —  $  —  $  6,619 
Debt securities:         

U.S. Treasuries    35,322    —    —    35,322 
Obligations of states and municipalities    —    10,225    —    10,225 
Corporate bonds    —    28,227    —    28,227 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities    —    11,533    —    11,533 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    —    6,334    —    6,334 
  $  41,941  $  56,319  $  —  $  98,260 

Liabilities             
Contingent consideration - business combinations  $  —  $  —  $  24,546     $  24,546 
Contingent consideration - earnout     —     —     44       44 
Private warrant liability    —     —    707    707 

  $  —  $  —  $  25,297  $  25,297 
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  Fair Value Measurement as of December 31, 2021 
           Total  
      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Fair Value 
Assets             

Money market mutual funds  $  17,318  $  —  $  —  $  17,318 
Debt securities:          

U.S. Treasuries    5,417    —    —    5,417 
Obligations of states and municipalities    —    8,850    —    8,850 
Corporate bonds    —    31,425    —    31,425 
Residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities    —    14,282    —    14,282 
Other loan-backed and structured securities    —    7,601    —    7,601 
  $  22,735  $  62,158  $  —  $  84,893 

             
              
Liabilities             
Contingent consideration - business combinations  $  —  $  —  $  9,617  $  9,617 
Contingent consideration - earnout     —     —     13,866     13,866 
Private warrant liability    —     —    15,193    15,193 
  $  —  $  —  $  38,676  $  38,676 
 
Financial Assets 

Money market mutual funds are valued at the closing price reported by the fund sponsor from an actively traded 
exchange. As the funds are generally maintained at a net asset value which does not fluctuate, cost approximates fair 
value. These are included as a Level 1 measurement in the table above. The fair values for available-for-sale fixed-
maturity securities are based upon prices provided by an independent pricing service. The Company has reviewed these 
prices for reasonableness and has not adjusted any prices received from the independent provider. Level 2 securities 
represent assets whose fair value is determined using observable market information such as previous day trade prices, 
quotes from less active markets or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics. There were no transfers 
between Level 1 and Level 2. 

Contingent Consideration – Business Combinations 

The Company estimated the fair value of the business combination contingent consideration based on specific 
metrics related to the acquisition of Residential Warranty Services (“RWS”) in April 2022, using the discounted cash 
flow method. The fair value is based on a percentage of revenue over the maturity date of the contingent consideration. 
As of December 31, 2022, the key inputs used to determine the fair value of $9.0 million were management’s cash flow 
estimates and the discount rate of 17%. 

The Company estimated the fair value of the business combination contingent consideration triggered by stock price 
milestones, related to Floify acquisition in October 2021, using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The fair value is 
based on the simulated stock price of the Company over the maturity date of the contingent consideration. As of 
December 31, 2022, the key inputs used to determine the fair value of $15.5 million, were the stock price of $1.88, strike 
price of $36.00, discount rate of 10.3% and volatility of 95%. As of December 31, 2021, the key inputs used in the 
determination of the fair value of $9.3 million included the volume weighted average price of $16.37, strike price of 
$36.00, discount rate of 7% and volatility of 60%. 

During 2021, the target stock price milestone for one of the legacy acquisitions was met, and a $1.7 million gain 
equal to the fair value of the contingent consideration was recognized in general and administrative expense on the 
consolidated statements of operations. 
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During 2021, contingent consideration associated with a business combination from 2018 was settled in full for a 
cash payment of $2.1 million.  

Contingent Consideration - Earnout 

The Company estimated the fair value of the earnout contingent consideration using the Monte Carlo simulation 
method. The fair value is based on the simulated price of the Company over the maturity date of the contingent 
consideration and increased by the certain employee forfeitures. As of December 31, 2022, the key inputs used to 
determine the fair value included exercise price of $22.00, volatility of 100%, forfeiture rate of 15% and stock price of 
$1.88. As of December 31, 2021, the key inputs used in the determination of the fair value included exercise price of 
$22.00, volatility of 65%, forfeiture rate of 15% and stock price of $15.59. 

Private Warrants 

The Company estimated the fair value of the private warrants of $0.7 million using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model. As of December 31, 2022, the key inputs used to determine the fair value included exercise price of $11.50, 
expected volatility of 90%, remaining contractual term of 2.98 years, and stock price of $1.88. As of 
December 31, 2021, the key inputs used in the determination of the fair value included exercise price of $11.50, 
expected volatility of 60%, remaining contractual term of 3.98 years, and stock price of $15.59. 

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants 

The Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock warrants are valued using key equity indicators and are 
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Management estimates the fair value of these liabilities using option 
pricing models and assumptions that are based on the individual characteristics of the warrants on the valuation date, as 
well as assumptions for future financings, expected volatility, expected life, yield, and risk-free interest rate. All 
redeemable convertible preferred stock warrants that were issued prior to the Merger were canceled in exchange of 
common stock at the closing of the Merger on December 23, 2020. 

Level 3 Rollforward 

Fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 are sensitive to changes in the assumptions or methodology 
used to determine fair value, and such changes could result in a significant increase or decrease in the fair value. 

The changes for Level 3 items measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs are 
as follows: 
 
          

    Contingent    
  Contingent   Consideration -  Private 
  Consideration -  Business  Warrant 
      Earnout      Combinations      Liability 
Fair value as of January 1, 2022  $  13,866  $  9,617  $  15,193 
Additions    —    8,700    — 
Settlements    —    (715)   — 
Change in fair value, loss (gain) included in net loss(1)    (13,822)   6,944    (14,486)
Fair value as of December 31, 2022  $  44  $  24,546  $  707 
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    Contingent   
  Contingent  Consideration -  Private 
  Consideration -  Business  Warrant 
      Earnout      Combinations      Liability 
Fair value as of January 1, 2021  $  50,238  $  3,549  $  31,534 
Additions    —     10,374    — 
Settlements    (54,891)   (2,062)   (31,730)
Change in fair value, loss (gain) included in net loss(1)    18,519    (2,244)   15,389 
Fair value as of December 31, 2021  $  13,866  $  9,617  $  15,193 
 
 
                

  Redeemable        Contingent   
  Convertible      Contingent  Consideration -  Private 
  Preferred Stock      Consideration -  Business  Warrant 
     Warrants     FVO Notes      Earnout     Combinations     Liability 
Fair value as of January 1, 2020  $  6,684  $  11,659  $  —  $  100  $  — 
Additions     1,762     —     50,238     1,749     33,961 
Settlements    (11,030)   (8,698)    —     —     — 
Change in fair value, loss (gain) included in net 
loss(1)    2,584    895     —     1,700     (2,427)
Gain on extinguishment of debt    —    (3,856)   —    —    — 
Fair value as of December 31, 2020  $  —  $  —  $  50,238  $  3,549  $ 31,534 

 
(1) Changes in fair value of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrants and FVO Notes are included in other 

income (expense), net, and changes in fair value of contingent consideration are included in general and 
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations (See Note 7). 
 

Fair Value Disclosure 

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the fair value of the convertible senior notes (the “2026 Notes”) is 
$238.6 million and $400.4 million, respectively. The decrease of $161.8 million is primarily due to the decline in the 
stock price at December 31, 2022, as compared to December 31, 2021. The fair value of other debt approximates the 
unpaid principal balance. The fair value of the line of credit and other notes approximates the unpaid principal balance. 
All debt, other than the 2026 Notes which is Level 2, is considered a Level 3 measurement. See Note 7. 
 
5. Property, Equipment, and Software 

Property, equipment, and software, net consists of the following: 
 
       

      December 31,   December 31,  
  2022      2021 
Software and computer equipment  $  8,326  $  7,287 
Furniture, office equipment, and other     2,118     2,006 
Internally developed software     17,128     13,102 
Leasehold improvements     1,178     2,191 
     28,750     24,586 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization     (16,510)    (17,920)
Property, equipment, and software, net  $  12,240  $  6,666 
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Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, equipment, and software was $4.2 million, $4.4 million, 
and $3.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
6. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost or acquisition-date fair value less accumulated amortization and impairment 
losses. 

Intangible assets consist of the following as of December 31, 2022: 
 
            

  Weighted         Accumulated    
  Average   Intangible  Amortization  Intangible  
  Useful Life   Assets,  And  Assets,  
      (in years)      gross      Impairment      Net 
Customer relationships    9.0  $  69,730  $  (15,079) $  54,651 
Acquired technology    5.0     37,932    (16,468)    21,464 
Trademarks and tradenames    10.0     25,071    (5,724)    19,347 
Non-compete agreements   3.0    619    (407)   212 
Value of business acquired   1.0    400    (400)   — 
Renewal rights   6.0    9,734    (2,113)   7,621 
Insurance licenses  Indefinite    4,960    —    4,960 
Total intangible assets    $  148,446  $  (40,191) $  108,255 
 

Intangible assets consist of the following as of December 31, 2021: 
 
            

  Weighted                      
  Average   Intangible     Intangible  
  Useful Life   Assets,  Accumulated  Assets,  
      (in years)      gross      Amortization      Net 
Customer relationships    9.0  $  56,810  $  (6,760) $  50,050 
Acquired technology    5.0     48,135    (10,095)    38,040 
Trademarks and tradenames    12.0     25,389    (2,587)    22,802 
Non-compete agreements   2.0    450    (251)   199 
Value of business acquired   1.0    400    (294)   106 
Renewal rights   6.0    9,734    (811)   8,923 
Trademarks and tradenames  Indefinite    4,750    —    4,750 
Insurance licenses  Indefinite    4,960    —    4,960 
Total intangible assets    $  150,628  $  (20,798) $  129,830 
 

During the third quarter of 2022, the Company recorded impairment charges of $17.7 million, primarily related to 
acquired technology, trademarks and tradenames, and customer relationships for certain asset groups within its Vertical 
Software segment. Impairment charges are included in impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill in the 
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.  There were no impairments of intangible assets during 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
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Aggregate amortization expense related to intangibles was $23.8 million, $12.3 million, $2.9 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Estimated intangibles amortization expense for the next 
five years and thereafter consists of the following: 
 
  Estimated 
  Amortization 
      Expense 
2023  $  19,992 
2024    18,998 
2025     15,140 
2026     10,201 
2027     9,090 
Thereafter     29,874 
  $  103,295 
 
Goodwill 

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill: 
 

    

      Goodwill 
Balance as of January 1, 2020  $  18,274 
Acquisitions    10,176 
Divestitures    (161)
Balance as of December 31, 2020    28,289 
Acquisitions    197,365 
Balance as of December 31, 2021    225,654 
Acquisitions    38,064 
Impairment loss    (43,758)
Purchase price adjustments(1)    24,737 
Balance as of December 31, 2022  $  244,697 

 
(1) During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded an adjustment to the fair value of net assets 

previously acquired during the year ended December 31, 2021. See Note 12. Business Combinations and Disposals 
for more information. 

During 2022, the Company recorded impairment charges of $43.7 million, related to its Insurance segment. 
Impairment charges are included in impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill in the consolidated statements of 
operations and comprehensive loss. There were no impairments of goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2021 
and 2020. 
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7. Debt 

At December 31, 2022, debt was comprised of the following: 
 
             

                    Debt         
      Unaccreted   Issuance    Carrying  
  Principal  Discount   Costs  Value 
Convertible senior notes, due 2026  $  425,000  $  —  $  (8,508) $  416,492 
Advance funding arrangement    15,670    (760)   —    14,910 
Term loan facility, due 2029    10,000    —    —    10,000 
Other notes     450     (87)    —     363 
  $  451,120  $  (847) $  (8,508) $  441,765 
 

At December 31, 2021, debt was comprised of the following: 
 
             

                    Debt        
      Unaccreted   Issuance   Carrying 
  Principal  Discount   Costs  Value 
Convertible senior notes, due 2026  $  425,000  $  —  $ (10,785) $  414,215 
Other notes     600     (80)    —     520 
  $  425,600  $  (80) $ (10,785) $  414,735 

 
Minimum principal payment commitments as of December 31, 2022, are as follows: 
 

      Principal 
  Payments 
2023  $  17,215 
2024     1,545 
2025     1,545 
2026     426,395 
2027     1,395 
Thereafter     3,025 
  $  451,120 
 
Convertible Senior Notes 

In September 2021, Porch completed a private Rule 144A offering of $425 million aggregate principal amount of its 
0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due in September 2026 (the “2026 Notes”) at an issue price of 100%, which includes 
$40 million aggregate principal amount of 2026 Notes issued and sold pursuant to the exercise of the initial purchasers’ 
option to purchase additional 2026 Notes. The 2026 Notes were offered only to qualified institutional buyers (as defined 
in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)), pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act. The 
net proceeds from the sale of the 2026 Notes were approximately $413.5 million after deducting the initial purchasers’ 
fees and other estimated expenses. The maturity date of the 2026 Notes is September 15, 2026. 

The 2026 Notes are not redeemable at the Company’s option prior to September 20, 2024. The Company may 
redeem for cash all or any portion of the 2026 Notes, at the Company’s option, on or after September 20, 2024, if the last 
reported sale price of the common stock has been at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 
trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading day period (including the last trading day of 
such period) ending on, and including, the trading day immediately preceding the date on which the Company provides a 
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notice of redemption, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2026 Notes to be redeemed, 
plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. No sinking fund is provided for the 2026 Notes. 

The 2026 Notes are convertible at an initial conversion rate of 39.9956 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal 
amount of 2026 Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $25.0027 per share of 
common stock (the “Conversion Rate”). The Conversion Rate is subject to customary adjustments for certain events as 
described in the indenture governing the 2026 Notes. The Company may settle the conversion option obligation with 
cash, shares of the Company’s common stock, or any combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock. 
Holders of the 2026 Notes may convert the 2026 Notes at their option (in whole or in part) on or after June 15, 2026 
until the close of business on the second trading day immediately preceding the maturity date of September 15, 2026.  In 
addition, holders of the 2026 Notes may convert the 2026 Notes at their option (in whole or in part) at any time prior to 
the close of business on the business day immediately preceding June 15, 2026 only under the following circumstances:  

• during any fiscal quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on December 31, 2021, if the 
Company’s common stock price exceeds 130% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days during the 
30 consecutive trading days at the end of the prior calendar quarter;  

• during the five business days after any five consecutive trading days in which the trading price per $1,000 2026 
Notes was less than 98% of the product of the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock and the then 
current conversion rate;  

• upon the occurrence of certain corporate actions;  

• upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, a make-whole fundamental change or any share exchange event; 
or  

• prior to the related redemption date if the Company elects to exercise the company call option.  

Upon the occurrence of a make-whole fundamental change or the exercise of the Company’s redemption option, the 
Company will, under certain circumstances, increase the applicable conversion rate for a holder that elects to convert its 
2026 Notes in connection with such make-whole fundamental change or exercise of redemption (not to exceed 
52.9941 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 2026 Notes). As of December 31, 2022, none of the 
conditions of the 2026 Notes to early convert have been met. 

The Company concluded that the 2026 Notes are accounted for as debt, with no bifurcation of the embedded 
conversion feature. Debt issuance costs were recorded as a direct deduction from the related liability in the consolidated 
balance sheets and are amortized to interest expense over the term of the 2026 Notes. The effective interest rate for the 
2026 Notes is 1.3%. 

Interest expense recognized related to the 2026 Notes was $5.4 million and $1.6 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and comprised of contractual interest expense and amortization of debt 
issuance costs. 

Capped Call Transactions 

In connection with the offering of the 2026 Notes, the Company purchased capped calls from certain financial 
institutions with respect to its common stock. The capped calls each have an initial strike price of $25.0027 per share of 
the Company’s common stock, which corresponds to the initial conversion price of the 2026 Notes. The capped calls 
each have an initial cap price of $37.7400 per share and expire in incremental components on each trading date 
beginning on September 13, 2021 and ending on September 15, 2026. The capped calls are intended to offset potential 
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dilution to the Company’s common stock or offset any cash payments the Company is required to make in excess of the 
principal amount, as the case may be, with such reduction or offset subject to a cap. The capped calls are subject to 
adjustments for certain corporate events and standard antidilution provisions.  

The Company paid an aggregate amount of $52.9 million for the capped calls. The maximum number of shares of 
Company’s common stock that can be purchased by the Company under the capped call (assuming no adjustment event) 
is 5,736,869. The capped call transactions do not meet the criteria for accounting as a derivative as they are indexed to 
the Company’s stock. As such, the cost of the capped calls is recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital on the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Advance Funding Arrangement 

For certain home warranty contracts, the Company participates in a financing arrangement with third-party financers 
that provide the Company with contract premium upfront, less a financing fee. Third-party financers collect installment 
payments from the warranty contract customer which satisfy the Company’s repayment obligation over a portion of the 
contract term. We remain obligated to repay the third-party financer if a customer cancels its warranty contract prior to 
full repayment of the advance funding amount received by the Company. As part of the arrangement, the Company pays 
financing fees, which are collected by the third-party financers upfront, and are initially recognized as a debt discount.  
Financing fees are amortized as interest expense under the effective interest method. The implied interest rate varies per 
contract and is generally approximately 14% of total funding received. 

As of December 31, 2022, the principal balance of advance funding arrangement is $15.7 million and the unaccreted 
discount is $0.8 million. Interest expense recognized related to advance funding arrangement was $2.6 million and 
$0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Line of Credit 

In connection with the acquisition of HOA on April 5, 2021, the Company assumed a $5.0 million revolving line of 
credit (“RLOC”) with Legacy Texas Bank. Outstanding balances under the RLOC bear interest at the Wall Street 
Journal Prime + 0% and matured on November 16, 2022. The RLOC was terminated with no outstanding balance at 
December 31, 2022. 

Term Loan Facility 

In connection with the acquisition of HOA on April 5, 2021, the Company assumed a nine-year, $10.0 million term 
loan facility with a local bank. As of December 31, 2022, the Company has borrowed $10.0 million on the term loan 
facility. Outstanding balances under the term loan facility bear interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime + 0% and mature 
on December 17, 2029. Principal payments are required beginning on January 15, 2023 in equal quarterly installments of 
$349 thousand through the maturity date. 

2020 Promissory Notes 

In connection with an acquisition on November 2, 2020, the Company issued a promissory note payable to the 
founder of the acquired entity. The promissory note has an initial principal balance of $750 thousand and a stated interest 
rate of 0.38% per annum. The promissory note shall be paid in five equal annual installments of $150 thousand each, 
plus accrued interest commencing on January 21, 2021. As of December 31, 2022, the promissory notes had a carrying 
amount of $0.5 million. 
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Senior Secured Term Loans 

In conjunction with the issuance of 2026 Notes in September 2021 described above, all outstanding obligations 
under senior secured term loans were repaid. These included the outstanding principal of $40.0 million, $2.3 million of 
final prepayment fees, and $0.5 million of interest and legal fees. A loss on extinguishment of $3.1 million was recorded 
for the year ended December 31, 2021.  

Paycheck Protection Program Loans 

In 2021, all outstanding loans under the Paycheck Protection Program established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security Act were forgiven in whole. As a result, the outstanding principal balance of $8.5 million and 
unpaid interest of $0.1 million were written off and the Company recorded a $8.6 million gain on extinguishment of debt 
in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

8. Equity and Warrants 

Shares Authorized 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had authorized a total of 410,000,000 shares for issuance with 400,000,000 
shares designated as common stock, and 10,000,000 shares designated as preferred stock. 

Common Shares Outstanding and Common Stock Equivalents 

The following table summarizes our fully diluted capital structure: 

      December 31,  
  2022 
Issued and outstanding common shares   96,405,838 
Earnout shares    2,050,000 

Total common shares issued and outstanding   98,455,838 
Common shares reserved for future issuance:  
Private warrants   1,795,700 
Stock options (Note 9)    3,862,918 
Restricted and performance stock units and awards (Note 9)    6,230,165 
2020 Equity Plan pool reserved for future issuance (Note 9)    11,189,745 
Convertible senior notes, due 2026(1)   16,998,130 
Contingently issuable shares in connection with acquisitions(2)   10,631,558 

Total shares of common stock outstanding and reserved for future issuance    149,164,054 
 

(1) In connection with the September 16, 2021 issuance of the 2026 Notes, the Company used a portion of the proceeds 
to pay for the capped call transactions, which are expected to generally reduce the potential dilution to the 
Company’s common stock. The capped call transactions impact the number of shares that may be issued by 
effectively increasing the conversion price for the Company from $25.00 per share to approximately $37.74 per 
share, which would result in 11,261,261 potentially dilutive shares instead of the shares reported in this table. 

(2) In connection with the acquisitions of Floify and HOA described in Note 12, the Company provided an obligation to 
issue certain amount of common stock to the extent specified market conditions are met in the future. Contingently 
issuable shares are calculated in accordance with the purchase agreement, assuming they would be issuable if the 
end of the reporting periods were the end of the contingency period. 
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Repurchases of Common Shares 

In October 2022, the Company’s board of directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing management 
to repurchase up to $15 million in the Company’s common stock and/or convertible notes. Repurchases under this 
program may be made from time to time on the open market between November 10, 2022 and June 30, 2023, at 
prevailing market prices, in privately negotiated transactions, in block trades, and/or through other permissible means. 

During the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company repurchased 2,388,756 shares, of which 2,139,241 shares were 
canceled prior to December 31, 2022, and 249,515 shares were canceled in January 2023. The total cost of these 2022 
repurchases was $4.4 million, of which $2.5 million is recorded as a liability in accrued expenses and other current 
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2022. The cost paid to repurchase shares in excess of the 
par value of $4.3 million is charged to accumulated deficit. 

Warrants 

PTAC Warrants 

Upon completion of the Merger with PTAC on December 23, 2020, the Company assumed 8,625,000 public 
warrants and 5,700,000 private warrants to purchase an aggregate 14,325,000 shares of common stock, which were 
outstanding as of December 31, 2020. Each warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one share of common stock 
at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment, commencing 30 days after the completion of the Merger, and 
expiring on December 23, 2025, which is five years after the Merger.  

On March 23, 2021, the Company announced that it would redeem all outstanding public warrants on April 16, 
2021 pursuant to a provision of the warrant agreement under which the public warrants were issued. In connection with 
the redemption, the public warrants stopped trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market and were delisted, with the trading 
halt announced after close of market on April 16, 2021 

1,795,700 private warrants were outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. These private warrants are liability 
classified financial instruments measured at fair value, with periodic changes in fair value recognized through earnings 
and are included in change in fair value of private warrant liability in the consolidated statements of operations. See 
Note 4. 

Detail related to public and private warrant activity is as follows: 

    Number of  
  Number of    Common 
      Warrants      Shares Issued 
Balances as of January 1, 2021   14,325,000   — 
Cash exercised    (12,352,830)  11,521,412 
Canceled   (176,470)  — 
Balances as of December 31, 2021    1,795,700   11,521,412 
Exercised    —   — 
Canceled   —   — 
Balances as of December 31, 2022    1,795,700   11,521,412 
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9. Stock-Based Compensation 

2020 and 2012 Equity Incentive Plans 

On July 29, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of the Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan 
(the “2020 Plan”) and on December 22, 2020, the Porch Group, Inc. stockholders voted in favor of adoption of the 2020 
Plan. The 2020 Plan became effective immediately upon the closing of the Merger. 

As of December 31, 2022, the aggregate number of shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under the 
2020 Plan is 11,189,745. The number of shares of common stock available under the 2020 Plan will increase annually on 
the first day of each calendar year, beginning with the calendar year ending December 31, 2021, and continuing until 
(and including) the calendar year ended December 31, 2030, with such annual increase equal to the lesser of (i) 5% of 
the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding on December 31st of the immediately preceding fiscal 
year and (ii) an amount determined by the Porch Board of Directors.  

The 2020 Plan provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation 
rights, restricted stock awards (“RSAs”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”), performance awards (“PRSUs”) and other 
stock awards to employees, officers, non-employee directors and independent service providers of the Company, 
collectively referred to as “Awards” or “Equity Awards.” 

Legacy Porch’s 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”) provided for the grant of equity awards to employees, 
directors and consultants of Legacy Porch prior to the Merger. Each Legacy Porch option from the 2012 Plan that was 
outstanding immediately prior to the Merger and held by current employees or service providers, whether vested or 
unvested, was converted into an option to purchase a number of shares of common stock and continued to be governed 
by the same terms and conditions (including vesting and exercisability terms) as were applicable to the corresponding 
former Legacy Porch option immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Stock-based compensation consists of expense related to equity awards in the normal course, earnout restricted 
stock and a secondary market transaction as described below: 
 
          

      2022      2021      2020 
Secondary market transaction  $  —  $  1,933  $  1,616 
Employee earnout restricted stock    —    22,961    — 
Employee awards     27,041     13,698     9,680 
Total operating expenses  $  27,041  $  38,592  $  11,296 
 
Secondary market transaction 

In 2019 and 2020, the Company’s CEO and certain executives of the Company entered into a series of secondary 
market transactions related to Porch.com redeemable convertible preferred stock. In 2020, stock-based compensation 
expense of $1.6 million was recorded related to these awards. The remaining stock-based compensation expense of 
$1.9 million related to these awards was recognized in the first quarter of 2021. 
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Stock Options 

Options granted under the 2020 Plan and 2012 Plan to employees typically vest 25% of the shares one year after the 
options’ vesting commencement date and the remainder ratably on a monthly basis over the following three years. Other 
vesting terms are permitted and are determined by the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee of the Board 
of Directors. Options have a term of no more than ten years from the date of grant and vested options are generally 
cancelled three months after termination of employment. 

Detail related to stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows: 
 
           

                Weighted-        
      Weighted-    Average      
   Number of    Average    Remaining    Aggregate  
  Options    Exercise    Contractual   Intrinsic  
  Outstanding  Price   Life (Years)  Value 
Balances as of December 31, 2021    4,822,992  $  3.63    7.0  $ 57,973 
Options granted    9,396     3.15          
Options exercised    (473,653)    2.36          
Options forfeited    (416,735)    5.01          
Options expired    (79,082)    6.33          
Balances as of December 31, 2022    3,862,918  $  3.58    5.6  $  74 
Exercisable at December 31, 2022    3,429,421  $  3.20    5.4  $  71 
 

The fair value of each employee stock option granted during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 
       

      2022      2021      2020 
Risk-free interest rate   3.2 %  0.9 – 1.3 % 0.3 – 0.6 %
Expected term (years)   6  5 – 6  5 – 6 
Dividend yield   —  —  — 
Volatility   60 %  60 – 61 %  59 – 60 % 
Weighted-average grant-date fair value per share   $1.85   $8.23   $2.26  
 

The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is based on the implied yield currently 
available in the U.S. Treasury securities at maturity with an equivalent term. The expected term for options granted to 
employees is estimated using the simplified method. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends through 
December 31, 2022 and does not currently expect to do so in the future. The Company bases its estimate of expected 
volatility on the historical volatility of comparable companies from a representative peer group selected based on 
industry, financial, and market capitalization data. The Company uses the average expected volatility rates reported by 
the comparable group for an expected term that approximates the expected term estimated by the Company. 

The fair value of stock options that vested during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, was 
$1.9 million, $2.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively. 

The total amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense for options granted to employees and 
nonemployees as of December 31, 2022 is approximately $1.4 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 1.2 years. 
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RSUs 

During 2022, the Company granted RSUs under various equity award programs. RSUs granted to employees 
typically vest 25% of the shares one year after the vesting commencement date and the remainder ratably on a quarterly 
or semi-annual basis over the following three years. Certain RSUs vest quarterly over three years from the vesting 
commencement date. 

The following table summarizes the activity of RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2022: 
 

      

      Number of   Weighted 
   Restricted       Average 
   Stock Units  Fair Value 
Balances as of January 1, 2022    2,675,578  $  18.77 
Granted    5,775,348    4.38 
Vested    (2,157,886)   9.59 
Canceled   (983,799)   11.42 
Balances as of December 31, 2022    5,309,241  $  8.21 

 
The total amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense for RSUs granted to employees and 

nonemployees as of December 31, 2022 is approximately $36.3 million and is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of 1.2 years. 

 
PRSUs 

The Company has two types of PRSUs outstanding - awards for which the vesting is subject to both a time-based 
vesting schedule and either (a) only market condition achievement (the “Market Only Awards”) or (b) the achievement 
of both performance conditions and market conditions (the “Performance and Market Awards”). 

The Market Only Awards will be earned if, within 36 months following the grant date, the closing price of a share 
of the Company’s common stock is greater than or equal various target prices over any 20 trading days within any 
30-consecutive trading day period (each a “Stock Price Hurdle”) as defined in the award terms. The requirement to 
achieve the Stock Price Hurdles meets the definition of a market condition. To the extent a Stock Price Hurdle is 
achieved, the Market Only Awards vest in accordance with the defined time-based graded vesting schedule, subject to 
the individual’s employment or service with the Company through the applicable vesting date. 

The Performance and Market Awards are subject to two performance goals each year over a three-year performance 
period (each year, an “Achievement Period”): 

• the price of a share of the Company’s common stock must achieve specified compound growth rates over any 
20 trading days within any 30-consecutive trading day period during the applicable Achievement Period (the 
“Absolute Share Price Requirement”), and 

• the Company must achieve a revenue target in comparison to the Board-approved budget during the applicable 
Achievement Period (the “Revenue Condition”). If the Revenue Condition was not achieved in the prior 
Achievement Period, the target revenue amount for the following Achievement Period is increased from the 
next year’s budget based on the prior year shortfall. 

For the Achievement Periods in each of 2022, 2023, and 2024, the percentage of the target shares earned varies 
based on the achieved growth rate during the period, provided that the Revenue Condition is also met for the applicable 
Achievement Period. The maximum payout of the award is 200% of the target PRSUs for all Achievement Periods. 
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Therefore, the number of shares of the Company’s common stock earned by the grantee will depend on the level of 
achievement as compared to the target. 

Any earned PRSUs will time vest as of the Compensation Committee’s determination of achievement following the 
Achievement Period in 2024, subject to the individual’s employment or service with the Company through the end of the 
Achievement Period in 2024. 

For the Performance and Market Awards, each of the Achievement Periods effectively represents a separate award. 
The grant date of each annual award is not established until the associated Revenue Condition has been established via 
the Board-approved Company budget for the applicable fiscal year. The requisite employment or service period for each 
tranche is from the applicable grant date through the end of the Achievement Period in 2024. The Absolute Share Price 
Requirement represents a market condition, and the Revenue Condition represents a performance condition. 

The following table summarizes the activity of PRSUs for the year ended December 31, 2022: 
      

      Number of    
  Performance  Weighted 
   Restricted       Average 
   Stock Units  Fair Value 
Balances as of January 1, 2022    37,184  $  21.51 
Granted    1,185,336    3.63 
Vested    —    — 
Forfeited   (301,596)   1.85 
Balances as of December 31, 2022    920,924  $  4.94 

 
During 2022, 301,596 Performance and Market Awards were forfeited due to the failure to satisfy the required 

performance condition. The total amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense for the remaining PRSUs 
as of December 31, 2022, is approximately $1.8 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period 
of 0.9 years.  

Employee Earnout Restricted Stock 

Upon the Merger, 976,331 restricted common shares, subject to vesting and forfeiture conditions, were issued to 
employees and service providers pursuant to their holdings of pre-Merger options, RSUs or restricted shares (the 
“employee earnout shares”). The employee earnout shares were issued in three equal tranches with separate market 
vesting conditions. One-third of the employee earnout shares will meet the market vesting condition when the closing 
price of the Company’s common stock price is greater than or equal to $18.00 over any twenty trading days within any 
thirty-consecutive trading day period within 36 months of the closing date of the Merger. An additional one-third will 
vest when the Company’s common stock price is greater than or equal to $20.00 over the same measurement period. The 
final one-third will vest when the Company’s common stock price is greater than or equal to $22.00 over the same 
measurement period. The employee earnout shares are forfeited by the employee upon termination of employment. Upon 
forfeiture, the forfeited shares will be redistributed to all remaining holders of earnout shares. Upon redistribution of 
earnout shares, the awards will be recorded as new awards. The fair value of the award on the grant date is an average of 
$12.08 per share and was recognized as stock-based compensation expense on a graded vesting basis over the derived 
service period of 1 year or shorter if the awards vest. During 2020, the Company recorded $0.3 million in stock-based 
compensation expense related to the employee earnout shares. 

During 2021, 641,526 restricted employee earnout shares became fully vested, as the first and second market 
conditions for vesting were fully satisfied as a result of the Company’s stock price and trading activity. The Company 
recorded $11.2 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the employee earnout shares in 2021. 
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During 2022, 73,623 shares were forfeited due to employee terminations. This resulted in the grant of 12,019 
additional shares to employee holders at a weighted-average grant date fair value of $0.31. Stock-based compensation 
expense related to the employee earnout shares was immaterial in 2022. 

CEO Earnout Restricted Stock 

Prior to the closing of the Merger, the Company’s CEO, Matt Ehrlichman, was granted a restricted stock award 
under the 2012 Plan which was converted into an award of 1,000,000 restricted shares of common stock upon the closing 
of the Merger. The award will vest in one-third installments if certain stock price triggers are achieved within 36 months 
following the closing of the Merger. One-third of the restricted shares will meet the market vesting condition when the 
Company’s common stock is greater than or equal to $18.00 over any twenty trading days within any thirty-consecutive 
trading day period within 36 months of the closing date of the Merger. An additional one-third will vest when the 
Company’s common stock price is greater than or equal to $20.00 over the same measurement period. The final one-
third will vest when the Company’s common stock price is greater than or equal to $22.00 over the same measurement 
period. If Mr. Ehrlichman’s employment with the Company is terminated prior to the award being fully vested, then the 
award will be terminated and cancelled, provided that if Mr. Ehrlichman’s employment is terminated by the Company 
without cause or Mr. Ehrlichman resigns due to good reason (in each case, as defined in the award agreement), the award 
will remain outstanding and will vest to the extent the stock price triggers are achieved during the 36-month period. The 
fair value of the award on the grant date is an average of $12.08 per share and was recognized as stock-based 
compensation expense on a graded vesting basis over the derived service period of 1 year or shorter if the awards vest. 
During 2020, the Company recorded $0.3 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the award. 

During 2021, 666,666 CEO restricted earnout shares became fully vested, as the first and second market conditions 
for vesting were fully satisfied as a result of the Company’s stock price and trading activity. The Company recorded 
$11.8 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the restricted stock award in 2021. 

No stock-based compensation expense related to CEO earnout shares was recognized in 2022. 
 
10. Income Taxes 

The components of the income tax benefit (expense) provision are as follows: 
 
      2022      2021      2020 
Current:                

Federal  $  (483) $  1,065  $  — 
State     (644)    (205)    (71)

Total current     (1,127)    860     (71)
Deferred                

Federal     285     8,561     1,433 
State     —     852     327 

Total deferred     285     9,413     1,760 
Income tax (expense) benefit  $  (842) $  10,273  $  1,689 
 



PORCH GROUP, INC 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts and unless otherwise stated) 

 

126 

The tax effects of cumulative temporary differences that give rise to significant deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are presented below. The valuation allowance relates to deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not 
that the tax benefit will not be realized. 
 
       

      December 31,       December 31,  
  2022  2021 
Deferred tax assets           

Accrued expenses and other  $  1,230  $  1,080 
Unrealized gain/loss on investments    1,296    — 
Stock-based compensation    1,626    1,753 
Deferred revenue     49,053     37,108 
Goodwill     6,378     357 
Operating lease liabilities     1,071    1,126 
Loss and loss adjustment reserves     16,392    11,971 
Net operating losses     100,920     87,802 
Disallowed interest     5,676     5,098 
Research and development capitalized costs    521    — 
Valuation allowance     (117,568)    (88,613)

Total deferred tax assets     66,595     57,682 
Deferred tax liabilities           

Property and equipment    (87)   (50)
Intangibles    (3,614)   (10,660)
Operating lease right-of-use assets    (1,026)   (1,091)
Deferred policy acquisition costs     (1,907)   (857)
Reinsurance balance due     (59,794)   (44,197)
Internally developed software     (590)    (1,180)

Total deferred tax liabilities     (67,018)    (58,035)
Net deferred tax liabilities  $  (423) $  (353)
 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial accounting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes and the tax effect of the 
tax loss carryforwards. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance due to the uncertainty surrounding the ultimate 
realizability or recoverability of such assets. Management evaluates, on an annual basis, both the positive and negative 
evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets are recoverable and the amount of 
the valuation allowance. In its evaluation, the Company considered its cumulative losses as significant negative 
evidence. Based upon a review of the four sources of income identified within ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, 
the Company determined that the negative evidence outweighed the positive evidence. At such time as it is determined 
that it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets are realizable, the valuation allowance will be reduced. The 
valuation allowance increased by $29.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 from $88.6 million at 
December 31, 2021, to $117.6 million at December 31, 2022. 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal tax purposes of 
approximately $410.9 million and $250.1 million for state income tax purposes, respectively, which may be used to 
offset future taxable income. The net operating loss carryforwards for federal tax purposes generated prior to January 1, 
2018, will begin to expire in 2031, and the net operating loss carryforwards for state tax purposes began to expire in 
2023. The net operating loss with an unlimited carryforward period is $313.2 million for federal tax purposes and 
$60.1 million for state tax purposes. Utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards are subject to certain 
limitations under Sections 382–384 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in the event of a change in the 
Company’s ownership, as defined in current income tax regulations. The Company has determined that it has 
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experienced a limited number of ownership changes in its history but does not expect the resulting limitations to impose 
any significant constraints on the benefit of its tax attributes.  Additional ownership changes may occur in the future. 

A reconciliation of the income tax benefit (expense) provision to the amounts computed by applying the statutory 
federal income tax rate to earnings before income taxes is shown as follows: 
          

      2022      2021      2020 
Tax computed at federal statutory rate  $  32,701  $  24,492  $  11,702 
State tax, net of federal tax benefit     4,879     5,531     2,097 
Loss on impairment     (3,836)    —     — 
Equity compensation     (3,939)    12,821     1,148 
Officer compensation    (860)   (5,306)   (176)
Debt transactions     4,808     (1,791)    824 
Enacted tax rate changes     90     123     159 
Return to provision     (6,533)    (648)    502 
Valuation allowance     (27,724)    (25,296)    (13,764)
Other     (428)    347     (803)

Income tax benefit (expense)  $  (842) $  10,273  $  1,689 
 
The U.S. federal statutory tax rate is 21%, while the Company’s effective tax rate for 2022, 2021 and 2020 was 

(0.5)%, 8.8%, and 3.0%, respectively. The difference for all years is due primarily to the tax benefit of pre-tax book 
losses being offset by the valuation allowance. The Company also recorded deferred tax benefits in 2021 and 2020, 
resulting from the release of a portion of the Company’s valuation allowance due to new deferred tax liabilities arising 
from certain stock acquisitions. 

The Company files federal and state income tax returns. The Company is not currently under examination but is 
open to audit by the I.R.S. and state tax authorities for tax years beginning in 2012. The resolutions of any examinations 
are not expected to be material to these financial statements. As of December 31, 2022, there are no penalties or accrued 
interest recorded in the financial statements. 

The Company had no uncertain tax position reserves as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. 
 
On August 16, 2022, the U.S. enacted the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022. Based upon our analysis of the Inflation 

Reduction Act of 2022 and subsequently released guidance, we do not believe that its provisions will have a material 
impact on our financial statements. 

 
For tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2022, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“TCJA”) eliminates the 

option to currently deduct research and development expenses and requires taxpayers to capitalize and amortize them 
over five years for research activities performed in the United States and 15 years for research activities performed 
outside the United States pursuant to IRC Section 174. Although Congress is considering legislation that would repeal or 
defer this capitalization and amortization requirement, it is not certain that this provision will be repealed or otherwise 
modified. 
 
11. 401(k) Savings Plan 

The Company has multiple defined contribution savings plans under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
These plans cover substantially all domestic employees who meet minimum age and service requirements and allows 
participants to defer a portion of their annual compensation on a pre-tax basis. Company contributions to the plans may 
be made at the discretion of the Board. Prior to 2021, the Company had not made contributions to the plans. For the 
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years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company made $0.8 million and $0.6 million of contributions, 
respectively.  
 
12. Business Combinations and Disposals 

During 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company completed several business combination transactions. The purpose of 
each of the acquisitions was to expand the scope and nature of the Company’s product and service offerings, obtain new 
customer acquisition channels, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. The 
aggregate transaction costs associated with these transactions were $2.1 million, $5.4 million and $0.2 million during the 
years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses 
on the consolidated statements of operations. The results of operations for each acquisition are included in the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition onwards. 

The fair values assigned to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on 
management’s estimates and assumptions and may be subject to change as additional information is received. The 
primary areas that remain preliminary relate to the fair values of intangible assets acquired, certain tangible assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed, legal and other contingencies as of the acquisition date, income and non-income-based 
taxes and residual goodwill. The Company expects to finalize the valuations as soon as practicable, but not later than one 
year from the acquisition date. 

2022 Acquisitions 

The following table summarizes the total consideration and the preliminary estimated fair value of the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for business combinations made by the Company during 2022: 

 

     Weighted 
Average Useful 
Life (in years)      RWS      Other      Total 

Purchase consideration:            
Cash   $  25,572  $  13,763  $  39,335 
Issuance of common stock     3,552    —    3,552 
Holdback liabilities and amounts in escrow     1,000    1,500    2,500 
Contingent consideration - liability-classified     8,700    —    8,700 

Total purchase consideration:    $  38,824  $  15,263  $  54,087 
Assets:            

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   $  2,030  $  256  $  2,286 
Current assets     525    7    532 
Property and equipment     497    —    497 
Operating lease right-of-use assets     871    —    871 
Intangible assets:           

Customer relationships  8    13,860    2,750    16,610 
Acquired technology  5    500    1,480    1,980 
Trademarks and tradenames  9    400    200    600 
Non-competition agreements  7    180    20    200 

Goodwill      27,366    10,698    38,064 
Total assets acquired      46,229    15,411    61,640 

Current liabilities     (6,869)   (148)    (7,017)
Operating lease liabilities, non-current     (536)   —    (536)

Net assets acquired    $  38,824  $  15,263  $  54,087 
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April 1, 2022 Acquisition of Residential Warranty Services (“RWS”) 

On April 1, 2022, the Company entered into a stock and membership interest purchase agreement with Residential 
Warranty Services (“RWS”) to acquire its home warranty and inspection software and services businesses. On this date, 
the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of RWS’ operations except for those in Florida and 
California. The aggregate consideration, subject to certain closing adjustments, for the completed acquisitions was 
$38.8 million, including $25.6 million in cash, $1.0 million held in escrow for 24 months to satisfy potential 
indemnifications, $3.6 million of Porch common stock, and $8.7 million in contingent consideration based on specific 
metrics. 

The acquisitions of the Florida and California operations are subject to certain regulatory and other approvals and 
are expected to close in fiscal 2023. The Company expects to pay approximately $2.4 million, subject to certain closing 
adjustments, to close these acquisitions. 

The purpose of the acquisitions is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s service offerings, add additional team 
members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. Goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes and is 
subject to further adjustment pending the closing of the acquisition of the remaining RWS operations in Florida and 
California. 

The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of RWS as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Customer relationships  $  13,860    8 
Acquired technology    500   3 
Trademarks and tradenames    400    9 
Non-competition agreements    180   7 

  $  14,940     
 
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 7.7 years. 

The estimated fair value of the customer related intangible assets was calculated through the income approach using 
the multi-period excess earnings methodology. The estimated fair value of the trademarks and tradenames were 
calculated through the income approach using the relief from royalty methodology. The estimated fair value of the 
acquired internally developed and used technology was derived using the cost approach considering the estimated costs 
to replicate existing software. The estimated fair value of the non-competition agreement was calculated through the 
income approach using the with and without method over the contractual term of the agreement.  

Other acquisitions 

During 2022, the Company completed one or more acquisitions which were not material to the consolidated 
financial statements. The purpose of any such acquisition, may include without limitation, to expand the scope and 
nature of the Company’s services offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and/or realize 
synergies. Goodwill of $10.7 million is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 

Pro forma results of operations have not been presented because the effects of 2022 acquisitions, individually and in 
the aggregate, were not material to our consolidated results of operations. 
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2021 Acquisitions 

The following table summarizes the total consideration and the preliminary estimated fair value of the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for business combinations made by the Company during 2021: 
                        

 

   Weighted 
Average 
Useful 
Life (in 
years)     

V12 
Data     HOA     Rynoh     AHP     Floify     

Other 
Acquisitions    Total 

Purchase consideration:                        
Cash   $ 20,196  $  84,370  $ 32,302  $  43,750  $ 75,959  $  27,121  $  283,698 
Issuance of common stock     —    22,773    —    —    9,908    3,026    35,707 
Holdback liabilities and amounts in escrow     150    1,000    3,500    2,500    900    1,775    9,825 
Contingent consideration - equity-classified     —    6,685    —    —    —    —    6,685 
Contingent consideration - liability-classified     1,410    —    —    —    8,632    327    10,369 

Total purchase consideration:    $ 21,756  $  114,828  $ 35,802  $  46,250  $ 95,399  $  32,249  $  346,284 
Assets:                        

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   $  1,035  $  17,766  $  408  $  5,078  $  1,508  $  1,473  $  27,268 
Current assets     4,939    235,669    932    8,221    221    1,795    251,777 
Property and equipment     996    615    334    17    87    80    2,129 
Operating lease right-of-use assets     1,383    1,258    159    913    731    445    4,889 
Intangible assets:                      

Customer relationships  9.0    1,650    16,700    12,700    —    7,000    10,320    48,370 
Acquired technology  4.0    3,525    —    2,800    —    28,300    1,340    35,965 
Trademarks and tradenames  12.0    1,225    12,200    900    700    6,025    650    21,700 
Non-competition agreements  2.0    40    —    90    —    40    55    225 
Value of business acquired  7.0    —    400    —    —    —    —    400 
Renewal rights  8.0    —    7,692    —    2,042    —    —    9,734 
Trademarks and tradenames  Indefinite    —    —    —    —    —    4,750    4,750 
Insurance licenses  Indefinite    —    4,960    —    —    —    —    4,960 

Goodwill      16,708    45,370    22,051    45,681    53,056    14,499    197,365 
Other non-current assets      —    55,165    —    25    —    3    55,193 

Total assets acquired      31,501    397,795    40,374    62,677    96,968    35,410    664,725 
Current liabilities     (6,871)   (269,460)   (517)   (15,487)   (1,014)   (2,485)   (295,834)
Operating lease liabilities, non-current     (848)   (898)   (72)   (685)   (555)   (204)   (3,262)
Long term liabilities     (2,026)   (7,434)   —    (79)   —    (46)   (9,585)
Deferred tax liabilities, net     —    (5,175)   (3,983)   (176)   —    (426)   (9,760)

Net assets acquired    $ 21,756  $  114,828  $ 35,802  $  46,250  $ 95,399  $  32,249  $  346,284 
 

January 12, 2021 Acquisition of V12 Data 

On January 12, 2021, Porch acquired V12 Data, an omnichannel marketing platform. The purpose of the acquisition 
is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s service offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and 
realize synergies. Porch acquired V12 Data for $20.3 million cash with an additional $1.4 million as contingent 
consideration. The contingent consideration is based on the achievement of certain Revenue and EBITDA milestones 
over the two succeeding years and is paid in cash or common stock at Porch’s discretion. The consideration was paid to 
the sellers in exchange for net assets of $21.8 million. Goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 
Acquisition-related costs of $0.8 million are included in general and administrative expenses on the consolidated 
statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.  
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of V12 Data as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Customer relationships  $  1,650    10 
Acquired technology     3,525    4 
Trademarks and tradenames    1,225    15 
Non-competition agreements     40   2 

  $  6,440     
 
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 7.6 years. 

The estimated fair value of the customer relationships intangible asset was calculated through the income approach 
using the multi-period excess earnings methodology. The estimated fair value of the trademarks and tradenames as well 
as acquired technology intangible assets were calculated through the income approach using the relief from royalty 
methodology. The estimated fair value of the non-competition agreement is derived using the with and without method 
over the contractual term of the agreement. 

April 5, 2021 Acquisition of HOA 

On April 5, 2021, Porch acquired HOA. The purpose of the acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s 
product offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and operate as a full-service insurance carrier 
in 15 states at the time of the acquisition. Total consideration related to this transaction included $114.8 million, 
consisting of $84.1 million in cash, $22.8 million in Porch common stock, and acquisition hold backs and contingent 
consideration of $7.7 million. An additional $0.3 million related to the final working capital adjustment was paid to the 
sellers in the third quarter of 2021. Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Acquisition-related costs 
of $1.9 million were primarily for legal and due-diligence related fees and are included in general and administrative 
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021.    

The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of HOA as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Customer relationships  $  16,700    10 
Trademarks and tradenames    12,200   10 
Business acquired     400    1 
Renewal rights    7,692    8 
Insurance licenses     4,960  Indefinite 

  $  41,952     
 
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 9.5 years. 

The fair value of customer relationships was estimated through the income approach using the multi-period excess 
earnings methodology. The fair value of trade name and trademarks was estimated through the income approach using 
the relief from royalty methodology. The business acquired was valued using the income approach based on estimates of 
expected future losses and expenses associated with the policies that were in-force as of the closing date of the 
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transaction compared to the future premium remaining to be earned. Renewal rights asset was estimated through the 
income approach based on premium forecast and cash flows from the renewal policies modeled over the life of the 
renewals. The insurance licenses were valued using the market approach. 

May 20, 2021 Acquisition of Rynoh 

On May 20, 2021, Porch acquired Segin Systems, Inc. (“Rynoh”), a software and data analytics company that 
supports financial management and fraud prevention primarily for the title and real estate industries. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s product offerings, add additional team members with important 
skillsets, and realize synergies. Total consideration related to this transaction includes $35.8 million, consisting of 
$32.3 million in cash paid at closing, and acquisition hold backs of $3.5 million. Goodwill is not expected to be 
deductible for tax purposes. Acquisition-related costs of $0.2 million were primarily for legal and due-diligence related 
fees and are included in general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of Rynoh as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Customer relationships  $  12,700    10 
Acquired technology     2,800    7 
Trademarks and tradenames    900    20 
Non-competition agreements     90   1 

  $  16,490     
  
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 10 years. 

The fair value of customer relationships was estimated through the income approach using the multi-period excess 
earnings methodology. The fair value of trade name and trademarks, as well as acquired technology was estimated 
through the income approach using the relief from royalty methodology. The fair value of the non-competition 
agreement is derived using the with and without method over the contractual term of the agreement. 

September 9, 2021 Acquisition of AHP 

On September 9, 2021, Porch acquired AHP, a company providing home warranty policies. The purpose of the 
acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of Porch’s product offerings, add additional team members with important 
skillsets, and realize synergies. Total consideration related to this transaction includes $46.3 million, consisting of 
$43.8 million in cash paid at closing, and acquisition hold backs of $2.5 million. Acquisition-related costs of 
$0.5 million are included in general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations for the 
year ended December 31, 2021. 

Since the acquisition date of AHP, the Company finalized the preliminary estimated fair value of AHP assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed.  As a result, in the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded a net 
increase to goodwill of approximately $23.8 million attributed to increases in current liabilities and net decreases in 
current assets. 
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of AHP as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Renewal rights  $  2,042    6 
Trademarks and tradenames    700    10 

  $  2,742     
 
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 7.0 years. 

Renewal rights asset was estimated through the income approach based on forecast and cash flows from the renewal 
policies modeled over the life of the renewals. The fair value of trade name and trademarks was estimated through the 
income approach using the relief from royalty methodology. 

October 27, 2021 Acquisition of Floify 

On October 27, 2021, Porch acquired Floify, a company providing digital mortgage automation and point-of-sale 
software for mortgage companies and loan officers. The purpose of the acquisition is to expand the scope and nature of 
Porch’s product offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. Total 
consideration related to this transaction includes $95.4 million, consisting of $76.0 million in cash, $9.9 million of Porch 
common stock, $0.9 million in acquisition hold backs and a guarantee that the Porch common stock will double in value 
by the end of 2024 with respect to any such Porch shares retained by the sellers throughout the period. The guarantee 
requires Porch to provide additional shares of common stock or cash to sellers if the stock does not double in value. The 
value of the guarantee at acquisition date was estimated to be $8.6 million. Acquisition-related costs of $0.4 million are 
included in general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2021. 

The following table summarizes the fair value of the intangible assets of Floify as of the date of the acquisition: 
      

            Estimated  
  Fair   Useful Life 
   Value   (in years) 
Intangible assets:          

Customer relationships  $  7,000    4 
Acquired technology     28,300    4 
Trademarks and tradenames    6,025    15 
Non-competition agreements     40   3 

  $  41,365     
 
The weighted-average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 5.6 years. 

The fair value of customer relationships and non-competition agreements, was estimated through the with-and-
without method based on a comparison of the prospective revenues or expenses for the business with and without these 
intangible assets in place. The fair value of trade name and trademarks, was estimated through the income approach 
using the relief from royalty methodology. The fair value of the acquired technology was estimated through the multi-
period excess earnings method. 
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Revenue and Net Loss Information Related to 2021 Acquisitions 

Revenue from these five acquisitions included in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations through 
December 31, 2021 is $79.6 million. Net loss included in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations from 
these acquisitions through December 31, 2021 is $1.8 million.  

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information 

The following table summarizes the estimated unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information of the 
Company as if the acquisitions deemed significant under ASC 805 – Business Combinations, which were V12 Data, 
HOA, Rynoh and Floify had occurred on January 1, 2020: 

 
       

      Year ended  
   December 31,  
   2021      2020 
Revenue  $  215,769  $  148,771 
Net loss  $  (112,239)  $  (61,253)

 
Other Acquisitions 

During 2021, the Company completed other acquisitions which were not individually or in aggregated material to 
the consolidated financial statements. The purpose of the acquisitions was to expand the scope and nature of the 
Company’s service offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. The 
transaction costs associated with these acquisitions were $1.6 million and are included in general and administrative 
expenses on the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021. Goodwill of $3.5 million 
is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes, while goodwill of $11.0 million is expected to be deductible for tax 
purposes. 
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2020 Acquisitions and Disposals 

The following table summarizes the total consideration and the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed for business combinations made by the Company during 2020: 

 
               

 

     Weighted 
Average 

Useful Life 
(in years)      

July 23, 2020 
Acquisition      iRoofing      

Other 
Acquisitions      Total 

Purchase consideration:               
Cash   $  2,000  $  6,003  $  325  $  8,328 
Issuance of common stock     1,790    4,711    358    6,859 
Deferred acquisition consideration     —    —    80    80 
Notes payable     —    —    607    607 
Contingent consideration     —    1,749    —    1,749 

Total purchase consideration:    $  3,790  $  12,463  $  1,370  $  17,623 
Assets:               

Cash and cash equivalents   $  382  $  119  $  36  $  537 
Current assets     554    212    7    773 
Property and equipment     212    44    2    258 

Intangible assets:               
Customer relationships  5.0    740    2,400    —    3,140 
Acquired technology  9.0    470    3,700    300    4,470 
Trademarks and tradenames  13.0    670    600    240    1,510 
Non-competition agreements  2.0    70    155    —    225 

Goodwill      1,576    7,242    1,358    10,176 
Total assets acquired      4,674    14,472    1,943    21,089 

Current liabilities     (884)   (322)   (527)   (1,733)
Deferred tax liabilities, net     —    (1,687)   (46)   (1,733)

Net assets acquired    $  3,790  $  12,463  $  1,370  $  17,623 
 
July 23, 2020 Acquisition 

On July 23, 2020, the Company acquired a moving services technology company. The purpose of the acquisition 
was to expand the scope and nature of the Company’s service offerings, add additional team members with important 
skillsets, and realize synergies. We expect $1.6 million of acquired goodwill to be deductible for income tax purposes.  

December 31, 2020 Acquisition (“iRoofing”) 

On December 31, 2020, the Company acquired iRoofing LLC, a roofing software company. The purpose of the 
acquisition was to expand the scope and nature of the Company’s service offerings, add additional team members with 
important skillsets, and realize synergies. As part of the consideration, 300,000 shares of commons stock issued have a 
guarantee of $20.00 per share. The contingent consideration would equal approximately 123,000 additional shares of 
common stock at the time of the acquisition. The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not expected to be 
deductible for income tax purposes.  
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Other Acquisitions 

In the third quarter of 2020, the Company completed two other acquisitions that are not material to the consolidated 
financial statements. The purpose of these acquisitions was to expand the scope and nature of the Company’s service 
offerings, add additional team members with important skillsets, and realize synergies. The transaction costs associated 
with this acquisition were immaterial. We expect $0.2 million of acquired goodwill for one of the acquisitions to be 
deductible for income tax purposes. The goodwill associated with another acquisition is not expected to be deductible for 
income tax purposes.  

Pro forma results of operations have not been presented because the effects of 2020 acquisitions, individually and in 
the aggregate, were not material to our consolidated results of operations. 

2020 Disposal 

On May 29, 2020, the Company disposed of the Serviz business. At the same time, the Company entered into a 
revenue transaction with the buyer of Serviz that was to be satisfied over a one-year service period. In consideration for 
both the Serviz business and the revenue transaction, the Company received $5.0 million in cash and the buyer cancelled 
the Company’s convertible promissory note which was recorded under the fair value option and had a fair value at the 
time of the transaction of $2.7 million. The consideration allocated to the revenue transaction based on the fair value of 
services to be delivered was $5.0 million. The remainder of the consideration was determined to be consideration for 
Serviz. Serviz had net assets of approximately $1.3 million. The gain of $1.4 million is included in the gain on 
divestiture of businesses in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

 
13. Leases 

The Company leases office facilities from unrelated parties under operating lease agreements that have initial terms 
ranging from 1 to 5 years. Some leases include one or more options to renew, generally at our sole discretion, with 
renewal terms that can extend the lease term up to 10 additional years. In addition, certain leases contain termination 
options, where the rights to terminate are held by either the Company, the lessor, or both parties. These options to extend 
or terminate a lease are included in the lease terms when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that 
option. The Company’s leases generally do not contain any material restrictive covenants. 

Operating lease cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The components of lease expense are 
as follows: 
       

      2022      2021 
Operating lease cost  $  2,621  $  2,155 
Variable lease cost    254    339 
  $  2,875  $  2,494 

 
Prior to the adoption of Topic 842 on January 1, 2021, the Company recognized operating lease costs on a straight-

line basis once control of the space was achieved. Rent expense was $1.7 million in 2020.  
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Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows: 
       

     2022      2021 
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease liabilities:    

Operating cash outflows for operating leases  $  2,082  $  2,141 
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new lease obligations:     

Operating leases  $  6,835  $  6,365 
 

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows: 
       

  December 31, 
     2022      2021 
Operating lease right-of-use assets  $  4,201  $  4,504 
     
Operating lease liabilities, current(1)  $  1,810  $  1,957 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current    2,536    2,694 

Total operating lease liabilities  $  4,346  $  4,651 
 

(1) Operating lease liabilities, current are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated 
balance sheets. 

Other information related to operating leases is as follows: 
       

  December 31, 
     2022      2021 
Weighted average remaining lease term   2.9 years   2.1 years 
Weighted average discount rate   8.8%   9.4 % 
 

Future undiscounted cash flows for each of the next five years and thereafter and reconciliation to the lease 
liabilities recognized on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 is as follows: 
    

      Lease  
  Payments 
2023  $  2,097 
2024     1,516 
2025     848 
2026     367 
2027     29 
Thereafter     — 

Total lease payments  $  4,857 
Less imputed interest    (511)
Total present value of lease liabilities  $  4,346 
 
14. Reinsurance 

Certain premiums and benefits are ceded to other insurance companies under various reinsurance agreements. The 
reinsurance agreements provide HOA with increased capacity to write larger risks and maintain its exposure to loss 
within its capital resources. Ceded reinsurance contracts do not relieve HOA from its obligations to policyholders. HOA 
remains liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations 
assumed under the reinsurance agreements. 
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2022 Program: 

The Company’s third-party quota share reinsurance program is split into two separate placements to maximize 
coverage and cost efficiency. The 2022 Coastal program, which covers the Company’s business in certain Texas coastal 
regions and the Houston metropolitan area as well as all business in South Carolina, is placed at 61.75% of subject 
property and casualty losses. The 2022 Core program covers the remainder of the Company’s business and is placed at 
90% of subject property and casualty losses. Both programs are effective for the period January 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022, and are subject to certain limits, which vary by participating reinsurer, for single loss occurrences 
and/or aggregate losses. 

Property catastrophe excess of loss treaties which were in effect through March 31, 2022, developed over four 
layers and limited the Company’s net retention to $2 million per loss occurrence. Effective April 1, 2022, the Company 
purchased property catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance from third party reinsurers which develops over 5 layers to 
provide coverage up to a net loss of $336 million, in excess of $4 million per occurrence. The Company also places 
reinstatement premium protection to cover any reinstatement premiums due on the first three layers. 

The Company purchases property per risk reinsurance covering non-weather losses in excess of $500 thousand per 
occurrence for all property coverage lines, to limit the Company’s net retention to $50 thousand per covered event for 
Core and $191 thousand per covered event for Coastal. These contracts are subject to certain limits for single loss 
occurrences and/or aggregate losses and provide a certain number of free reinstatements during the treaty period, all of 
which varies by contract. 

2021 Program: 

The Company’s 2021 third-party quota share reinsurance program was split into two separate placements to 
maximize coverage and cost efficiency. The 2021 Coastal program, which covered the Company’s business in certain 
Texas coastal regions and the Houston metropolitan area as well as all business in South Carolina, was placed at 90% of 
subject property and casualty losses. The 2021 Core program covered the remainder of the Company’s business and was 
placed at 90% of subject property and casualty losses. Both programs were effective for the period since the acquisition 
date of April 5, 2021 and through December 31, 2021, and were subject to certain limits, which varied by participating 
reinsurer, for single loss occurrences and/or aggregate losses 

The effects of reinsurance on premiums written and earned for the period since the acquisition date of April 5, 2021 
were as follows: 
             

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2022  2021 
      Written      Earned      Written      Earned 

Direct premiums  $  462,179  $  395,968  $  266,609  $  213,423 
Ceded premiums     (399,400)    (349,952)    (237,102)    (199,366)

Net premiums  $  62,779  $  46,016  $  29,507  $  14,057 
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The effects of reinsurance on incurred losses and LAE for the period since the acquisition date of April 5, 2021 were 
as follows: 
       

  Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021 

Direct losses and LAE  $  280,505  $  181,256 
Ceded losses and LAE    (224,202)   (162,752)

Net losses and LAE  $  56,303  $  18,504 
 
The detail of reinsurance balances due is as follows: 

      December 31, 2022      December 31, 2021 
Ceded unearned premium  $  203,157  $  153,710 
Losses and LAE reserve    76,999    56,752 
Reinsurance recoverable    18,765    17,780 
Other    139    174 

Reinsurance balance due  $  299,060  $  228,416 
 

15. Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Reserve 

The following table provides the rollforward of the beginning and ending reserve balances for losses and LAE, gross 
of reinsurance for the period since the acquisition date of HOA on April 5, 2021: 

  Year Ended  Period Ended 
      December 31, 2022      December 31, 2021 
Reserve for unpaid losses and LAE, at January 1, 2022 and April 5, 2021  $  61,949  $  84,366 
Reinsurance recoverables on losses and LAE      (56,752)    (82,898)
Losses and LAE reserve, net of reinsurance recoverables, at January 1, 2022 
and April 5, 2021    5,197    1,468 
Add provisions for losses and LAE occurring in:       

Current year    55,148    17,583 
Prior year    1,155    921 

Net incurred losses and LAE during the current year    56,303    18,504 
Deduct payments for losses and LAE occurring in:       

Current year    (32,111)   (13,154)
Prior year    (5,756)   (1,621)

Net claim and LAE payments during the current year     (37,867)   (14,775)
Reserve for losses and LAE, net of reinsurance recoverables, at end of year     23,633    5,197 

Reinsurance recoverables on losses and LAE     76,999    56,752 
Reserve for unpaid losses and LAE, at December 31  $  100,632  $  61,949 
 

Lower than expected recoveries on reinsurance relating to claims occurring in prior years resulted in an increase in 
incurred losses of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. As a result of additional information on claims 
occurring in prior years becoming available to management, changes in estimates of provisions of losses and loss 
adjustment expenses were made resulting in an increase of $0.9 million for the period since the acquisition date of 
April 5, 2021 to December 31, 2021. 
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The claim counts in the following tables are cumulative reported claim counts as of December 31, 2022 and are 
equal to the sum of cumulative open and cumulative closed claims, including claims closed without payment. The 
following supplementary information presents incurred and paid losses by accident year, net of reinsurance ($ in 
thousands, except for number of claims): 

                 December 31, 2022 
   Incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance,     Cumulative 
   for the years ended December 31,              Number of 

      2018      2019      2020      2021      2022  IBNR Reserves   Reported Claims 
  (unaudited)  (unaudited)  (unaudited)  (unaudited)         

Accident Year                     
2018  $  7,512   $  7,041  $  7,046  $  7,380  $  7,396  $  —    8,369 
2019          9,666     9,678     9,773     9,786     20     10,790 
2020             12,664     14,281     14,587     84     13,152 
2021                19,795     20,614     976     34,548 
2022                   55,110     14,575     18,550 
Total              $  107,493  $  15,655    85,409 

 
                

  Cumulative paid losses and allocated adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance, 
       for the year ended December 31,  
  2018      2019      2020      2021      2022 
  (unaudited)  (unaudited)  (unaudited)  (unaudited)    
Accident Year                
2018  $  5,295   $  6,690  $  6,838  $  7,213  $  7,345 
2019          7,405     9,324     9,578     9,694 
2020            9,750     13,865     14,142 
2021               15,335     20,569 
2022                  32,073 
Total              $  83,823 
                
Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, 
net of reinsurance              $  23,669 
 

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance, related to accident years prior to 2017 was 
$40 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

Average annual percentage payout of accident year incurred claims by age, net of reinsurance (unaudited 
supplementary information) as of December 31, 2022: 
              

1       2       3       4       5 
 83.8 %   15.1 %   0.8 %   0.6 %   0.2 % 
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16. Commitments and Contingencies 

Purchase Commitments 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had non-cancelable purchase commitments, primarily for data purchases, 
as follows: 
 
    

2023      $  4,577 
2024    3,232 
2025    1,391 
2026    — 
2027    — 
  $  9,200 
 
Litigation 

From time to time the Company is or may become subject to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary 
course of business, including proceedings initiated by users, other entities, or regulatory bodies. Estimated liabilities are 
recorded when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. In many instances, the Company is unable to determine whether a loss is probable or to reasonably estimate 
the amount of such a loss and, therefore, the potential future losses arising from a matter may differ from the amount of 
estimated liabilities the Company has recorded in the financial statements covering these matters. The Company reviews 
its estimates periodically and makes adjustments to reflect negotiations, estimated settlements, rulings, advice of legal 
counsel, and other information and events pertaining to a particular matter. 

Cases under Telephone Consumer Protection Act 

Porch and/or an acquired entity, GoSmith.com, are party to twelve legal proceedings alleging violations of the 
automated calling and/or Do Not Call restrictions of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991. Some of these 
actions allege related state law claims. The proceedings were commenced as mass tort actions by a single plaintiffs’ law 
firm in December 2019 and April/May 2020 in federal district courts throughout the United States. One of the actions 
was dismissed with prejudice and was appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On October 12, 2022, in a split 
decision, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed. The remaining cases were consolidated in the United States 
District Court for the Western District of Washington, where Porch resides.  The Court has set a brief schedule on 
Defendants’ forthcoming motion to dismiss. The case is stayed pending resolution of Defendants’ motion. Plaintiffs seek 
actual, statutory, and/or treble damages, injunctive relief, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

These actions are at an early stage in the litigation process. It is not possible to determine the likelihood of an 
unfavorable outcome of these disputes, although it is reasonably possible that the outcome of these actions may be 
unfavorable. Further, it is not possible to estimate the range or amount of potential loss (if the outcome should be 
unfavorable). Porch intends to contest these cases vigorously. 

Kandela, LLC v Porch.com, Inc. 

In May 2020, the former owners of Kandela, LLC filed complaints against Porch in the Superior Court of the State 
of California, alleging a breach of contract related to the terms and achievement of an earnout agreement related to the 
acquisition of the Kandela business and related fraudulent inducement claims. Claimants sought to recover 
compensatory damages based on an asset purchase agreement entered into with Porch and related employment 
agreements. Claimants also sought punitive damages, attorney’s fees and costs. Certain claimants settled their claims, 
and this settlement is within the range of the estimated accrual. Arbitration of the remaining claims occurred in March 
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2022. In July 2022, the Arbitrator issued his Final Award finding no merit to any of the claims asserted by claimant 
Kandela, LLC and determined Porch to be the prevailing party on all counts. The Arbitrator also awarded Porch and its 
insurers legal fees and costs in the amount of $1.4 million as the prevailing party and, if recovered in full, a significant 
portion of which would be expected to be allocable to its corporate insurance providers. On October 12, 2022, the Los 
Angeles Superior Court confirmed the Arbitration Award and entered Judgment in Porch’s favor. Kandela has failed to 
pay the judgment in Porch’s favor. On January 18, 2023, Porch filed a fraudulent conveyance claim against Kandela and 
its members for wrongfully distributing assets that could have satisfied the judgment. 

 
Putative Wage and Hours Class Action 

A former employee of HireAHelper™ filed a complaint in San Diego County Superior Court in November 2020, 
asserting putative class action claims for failure to pay overtime, failure to pay compensation at the time of separation 
and unfair business practices in violation of California law. HireAHelper™ was served with the complaint in 
December 2020 and on January 28, 2021, defendants removed the case to the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of California. The plaintiff seeks to represent all current and former non-exempt employees of 
HireAHelper™ and Porch (prior to the December 23, 2020 merger) and Porch’s other affiliated companies in the State 
of California during the relevant time period. Plaintiffs sought damages for unpaid wages, liquidated damages, penalties, 
attorneys’ fees and costs. The parties recently attended mediation, which was successful, and a deal was reached. The 
parties have executed the long form settlement agreement and obtained final approval of the settlement from the court on 
August 11, 2022. Porch paid the individual settlement in September 2022, and Plaintiff’s individual claims were 
dismissed and released. Porch also funded the class action settlement in September 2022 and the settlement payments to 
the class were distributed in October 2022. The settlement is now final, and the class action release runs through 
April 25, 2022. The settlement checks expire in 180 days, at which point the case will be closed. 

Other 

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, Porch and its subsidiaries are (or may become) parties to litigation 
involving property, personal injury, contract, intellectual property and other claims, as well as stockholder derivative 
actions, class action lawsuits and other matters. The amounts that may be recovered in such matters may be subject to 
insurance coverage. Although the results of legal proceedings and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, neither 
Porch nor any of its subsidiaries is currently a party to any legal proceedings the outcome of which, we believe, if 
determined adversely to us, would individually or in the aggregate have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition or results of operations. 

Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions 

HOA is subject to the laws and regulations of the State of Texas and the regulations of any other states in which 
HOA conducts business. State regulations cover all aspects of HOA’s business and are generally designed to protect the 
interests of insurance policyholders, as opposed to the interests of stockholders. The Texas Insurance Code requires all 
property and casualty insurers to have a minimum of $2.5 million in capital stock and $2.5 million in surplus. HOA has 
capital and surplus in excess of this requirement. 

As of December 31, 2022, HOA’s total statutory surplus is $76.3 million (capital stock of $3 million and surplus of 
$73.3 million). A of December 31, 2021, HOA’s total statutory surplus was $48.5 million (capital stock of $3 million 
and surplus of $45.5 million). 

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, HOA had restricted cash and investments totaling $3.7 million and 
$3.8 million, respectively, pledged to the Department of Insurance in certain states as a condition of its Certificate of 
Authority for the purpose of meeting obligations to policyholders and creditors. See Note 1 for additional disclosures.  
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The Texas Insurance Code limits dividends from insurance companies to their stockholders to net income 
accumulated in the Company’s surplus account, or “earned surplus.” The maximum dividend that may be paid without 
approval of the Insurance Commissioner is limited to the greater of 10% of the statutory surplus at the end of the 
preceding calendar year or the statutory net income of the preceding calendar year. No dividends were paid by HOA in 
2022 and 2021. In 2023, HOA is permitted to pay up to $7.6 million in dividends. 

HOA prepares its statutory-based financial statements in conformity with accounting practices prescribed or 
permitted by the Texas Department of Insurance. Prescribed statutory accounting practices primarily include those 
published as statements of Statutory Accounting Principles by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, as 
well as state laws, regulations and general administrative rules. Permitted statutory accounting practices encompass all 
accounting practice not so prescribed. As of December 31, 2022, there were no material permitted statutory accounting 
practices utilized by HOA. 

17. Segment Information 

The Company has two reportable segments that are also our operating segments: Vertical Software and Insurance. 
Our reportable segments have been identified based on how our chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) manages our 
business, makes operating decisions and evaluates operating and financial performance. The chief executive officer acts 
as the CODM and reviews financial and operational information for our two reportable segments. Operating segments 
are components of an enterprise for which separate discrete financial information is available and operational results are 
regularly evaluated by the CODM for the purposes of making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing 
performance.  

Our Vertical Software segment primarily consists of a vertical software platform for the home, providing software 
and services to home services companies, such as home inspectors, moving companies, utility companies, title 
companies and others, and includes software subscription and service fees from companies, and non-insurance revenue. 

Our Insurance segment offers various forms of homeowner insurance policies through its own insurance carrier and 
certain homeowner and auto insurance policies through its licensed insurance agency. The Insurance segment also 
includes home warranty service revenue. 

The following table provides the Company’s revenue by segment: 

      Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Segment revenues:          

Vertical Software  $  154,915  $  137,150  $  63,799 
Insurance    121,033    55,283    4,166 
Divested businesses    —    —    4,334 

Total segment revenue  $  275,948  $  192,433  $  72,299 
 
During 2020, our insurance revenue was generated solely from commissions earned from third-party insurance 

carriers through EIG, which began its operations in early 2020. 

Our segment operating and financial performance measure is segment Adjusted EBITDA (loss). Segment Adjusted 
EBITDA (loss) is defined as (i) revenue less (ii) the following expenses associated with our segments: cost of revenue, 
sales and marketing, product and technology, and general and administrative expenses, excluding (iii) non-cash items or 
items that management does not consider are reflective of our ongoing core operations.  
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Currently, we do not allocate any shared expenses to our reportable segments. We include these expenses in 
Corporate and Other. Corporate and Other includes shared expenses such as sales and marketing, certain product and 
technology, accounting, human resources, legal and general and administrative, and other income, expenses, gains and 
losses that are not allocated in assessing segment performance due to their function. Such transactions are excluded from 
the reportable segments results but included in reported consolidated results. 

The reconciliation of segment Adjusted EBITDA (loss) to consolidated loss from operations below includes the 
effects of corporate and other items that the CODM does not consider in assessing segment performance.  

The following tables provide financial information for our two reportable segments and reconciliations to 
consolidated financial information for the periods presented: 

 
          

      Year Ended December 31,  
      2022      2021      2020 
Segment adjusted EBITDA (loss):          

Vertical Software  $  14,678  $  20,733  $  12,718 
Insurance     (5,499)    9,007     405 
Corporate and Other     (58,780)    (53,760)    (30,001)
Divested Businesses    —    —    (1,441)

Total segment adjusted EBITDA (loss)     (49,601)    (24,020)    (18,319)
Reconciling items:          
Depreciation and amortization    (27,930)   (16,386)   (6,644)
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense    (27,041)   (38,592)   (11,296)
Acquisition and other transaction costs    (2,334)   (5,360)   (311)
Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill    (61,386)   —    — 
Non-cash losses and impairment of property, equipment and software   (637)   (550)   (611)
Revaluation of contingent consideration    (6,944)   2,244    (1,700)
SPAC transaction bonus    —    —    (3,350)
Investment income and realized gains    (1,174)   (701)   — 
Operating loss  $  (177,047) $  (83,365) $  (42,231)
 

The CODM does not review assets on a segment basis. As of December 31, 2022, goodwill for the Vertical 
Software segment and the Insurance segment was $191.9 million and $52.8 million, respectively. As of December 31, 
2021, goodwill for the Vertical Software segment and the Insurance segment was $182.8 million and $42.9 million, 
respectively. 

All of the Company’s revenue is generated in the United States, except for an immaterial amount. As of 
December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company did not have material assets located outside of the United States. 

18. Related Parties 

In July 2020, the CEO and founder, entered into an agreement with another significant shareholder, that provides, 
upon consummation of the PTAC Merger Agreement, for a payment of $3.2 million in cash and 950,000 shares of Porch 
Group, Inc. common stock from the CEO to the other significant shareholder in connection with the Merger Agreement 
including the conversion of preferred stock to common stock. This transfer of $17.3 million in consideration was 
accounted for as a deemed capital contribution from the CEO and founder to the Company and induced conversion of 
preferred stock into common stock immediately prior to the close of the PTAC Merger Agreement. The total 
consideration transferred increase total net loss in determining net loss available to common shareholders by 
$17.3 million. 
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19. Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Share 

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is presented in conformity with the two-
class method required for participating securities. 

Under the two-class method, basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing 
the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during the period. 

Diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders adjusts basic earnings per share for the potentially 
dilutive impact of stock options, RSUs, PRSUs, RSAs, convertible notes, earnout shares and warrants. As the Company 
has reported losses for all periods presented, all potentially dilutive securities are antidilutive and accordingly, basic net 
loss per share equals diluted net loss per share. 

The following table sets forth the computation of the Company’s basic and diluted net loss attributable per share to 
common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020: 
 
          

  Year Ended December 31,  
     2022     2021     2020 
Numerator:                

Net loss used to compute net loss per share:  $  (156,559)  $  (106,606) $  (54,032)
Induced conversion of preferred stock    —    —    (17,284)

Basic    (156,559)    (106,606) $  (71,316)
Adjustment for change in fair value of warrant liability    —    —    (2,427)

Diluted  $  (156,559)  $  (106,606) $  (73,743)
        

Denominator:                 
Weighted average shares outstanding used to compute loss per share:          

Basic     97,351,241     93,884,566     36,344,234 
Dilutive effect of warrants    —    —    29,981 

Diluted    97,351,241    93,884,566   36,374,215 
       

Loss per share - basic  $  (1.61)  $  (1.14) $  (1.96)
Loss per share - diluted  $  (1.61)  $  (1.14) $  (2.03)
 

The following table discloses securities that could potentially dilute basic net loss per share in the future that were 
not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share because to do so would have been antidilutive for all periods 
presented: 
 
       

      Year Ended December 31,  
  2022      2021      2020 
Stock options    3,862,918    4,822,992   6,414,611 
Restricted stock units and awards   5,309,241   2,712,762   2,581,902 
Performance restricted stock units   920,924   —   — 
Public and private warrants    1,795,700    1,795,700   8,625,000 
Earnout shares   2,050,000   2,050,000   6,150,000 
Convertible debt(1)   16,998,130   16,998,130   — 
Contingently issuable shares in connection with acquisitions(2)   10,631,558   1,192,989   — 
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(1) In connection with the September 16, 2021 issuance of the 2026 Notes, the Company used a portion of the proceeds 

to pay for the capped call transactions, which are expected to generally reduce the potential dilution to the 
Company’s common stock. The capped call transactions impact the number of shares that may be issued by 
effectively increasing the conversion price for the Company from $25 per share to approximately $37.74 per share, 
which would result in 11,261,261 potentially dilutive shares instead of the shares reported in this table as of 
December 31, 2022. 

(2) In connection with the acquisitions of Floify and HOA described in Note 12, the Company provided an obligation to 
issue certain amount of common stock to the extent specified market conditions are met in the future. Contingently 
issuable shares are calculated in accordance with the purchase agreement, assuming they would be issuable if the 
end of the reporting periods were the end of the contingency period. 
 
See Note 8 for additional information regarding the terms of warrants. See Note 9 for additional information 

regarding stock options and restricted stock units and awards. See Note 7 for additional information regarding 
convertible debt. 
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21.   Subsequent Events 

Repurchases of Common Shares 

In the first quarter of 2023, the Company repurchased 1,396,158 shares at the total cost of $3.1 million (including 
commissions). 
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Schedule I: Condensed Financial Information of Registrant 

Porch Group, Inc. 
Condensed Balance Sheets 
(Parent Company Only) 
(all numbers in thousands, except share amounts) 

  December 31, 
      2022      2021 
Assets         

Investment in subsidiary  $  497,535  $  661,619 
Total assets  $  497,535  $  661,619 

           
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity           
Current liabilities           

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities     939     930 
Total current liabilities     939     930 

Long-term debt     416,492     414,585 
Earnout liability, at fair value1    44    13,866 
Private warrant liability, at fair value2    707    15,193 

Total liabilities     418,182     444,574 
Commitments and contingencies3           
Stockholders’ equity           
Common stock, $0.0001 par value:     10     10 

Authorized shares – 400,000,000 and 400,000,000, respectively           
Issued and outstanding shares – 98,455,838 and 97,961,597, respectively     

Additional paid-in capital     670,537     641,406 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (6,171)   (259)
Accumulated deficit     (585,023)    (424,112)

Total stockholders’ equity     79,353     217,045 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $  497,535  $  661,619 

 
1 – See Note 4 (Fair Value) and Note 9 (Stock-Based Compensation) in the notes to the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 
2 - See Note 4 (Fair Value) and Note 8 (Equity and Warrants) in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 
3 - See Note 16 (Commitments and Contingencies) in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 
 

See notes to condensed financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Loss 
(Parent Company Only) 
(all numbers in thousands) 
          

                  For the period from 
  Year ended December 31,  December 23, 2020 
  2022  2021      to December 31, 2020
Operating expenses:          

General and administrative  $  3,550  $  4,079  $  56 
Operating loss     (3,550)    (4,079)    (56)
Other income (expense):                

Interest expense     (5,412)    (1,573)    — 
Change in fair value of earnout liability1    13,822    (18,519)   — 
Change in fair value of private warrant liability1    14,486    (15,389)   2,427 
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiary    (175,905)   (67,046)   1,360 

Total other income (expense)     (153,009)    (102,527)    3,787 
Loss before income taxes     (156,559)    (106,606)    3,731 
Income tax benefit (expense)     —     —     — 
Net loss attributable to Porch Group, Inc.  $  (156,559) $  (106,606) $  3,731 

Other comprehensive loss    (5,912)   (259)   — 
Comprehensive loss attributable to Porch Group, Inc.  $  (162,471) $  (106,865) $  3,731 

 
1 – See Note 4 (Fair Value) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual 
Report. 
 

See notes to condensed financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
(Parent Company Only) 
(all numbers in thousands) 
 
          

          For the period from 
  Year ended December 31,  December 23, 2020 
     2022     2021      to December 31, 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:              

Net (loss) income  $  (156,559) $ (106,606) $  3,731 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities            

Equity in net loss of subsidiary     175,905     67,046     (1,360)
Loss (gain) on remeasurement of private warrant liability     (14,486)    15,389     (2,427)
Loss (gain) on remeasurement of earnout liability    (13,822)   18,519    — 
Interest expense (non-cash)     2,225     643     — 

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and 
divestitures                

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities     (9)    930     — 
Net cash used in operating activities     (6,746)    (4,079)    (56)

Cash flows from investing activities:                
Net (investment) return of capital in subsidiary     10,551     (458,697)    (269,425)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities     10,551     (458,697)    (269,425)
Cash flows from financing activities:                

Proceeds from recapitalization and PIPE financing    —    —    305,133 
Distribution to stockholders    —    —    (30,000)
Transaction costs - recapitalization    —    —    (5,652)
Proceeds from debt issuance, net of fees     —     413,537     — 
Capped call transactions    —    (52,913)   — 
Proceeds from exercises of warrants     —     126,741     — 
Proceeds from exercises of stock options    1,116    4,288    — 
Income tax withholdings paid upon vesting of restricted stock units    (3,108)   (28,877)   — 
Repurchases of stock    (1,813)   —    — 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    (3,805)   462,776    269,481 
Net change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash  $  —  $  —  $  — 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of period  $  —  $  —  $  — 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash end of period  $  —  $  —  $  — 
 

See notes to condensed financial statements. 
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Porch Group, Inc. 
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements 
(Parent Company Only) 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying condensed financial statements of Porch Group, Inc. (referred to in this section as the “Parent 
Company”) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. These condensed Parent Company only financial statements have been prepared using the 
same accounting principles and policies described in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report, with the only exception being that the Parent Company accounts for 
investments in its subsidiaries using the equity method. 

Porch Group, Inc. became the Parent Company as a result of the Merger in December 2020. See Note 1 (Description 
of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report for additional information on the Merger included in the consolidated financial 
statements elsewhere in this Annual Report. As a result, these Parent Company only financial statements reflect the 
periods following this Merger event. 

Long-term Debt 

The information relating to long-term debt and interest expense relates to our convertible senior notes and is 
described in Note 7 – Debt in the notes to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accrued expenses and 
other current liabilities include accrued interest on our convertible senior notes. 

Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Loss 

On the condensed statements of comprehensive loss, other comprehensive loss represents activity of Porch.com, Inc. 
and includes net unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities. 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 

The Parent Company does not hold any cash but has access to funds maintained in Porch.com, Inc. to meet its 
holding company obligation. 

Commitments and contingencies 

See Note 16 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report for 
information regarding pending and threatened litigation. 

Income Taxes 

The Parent Company’s financial statements recognize the current and deferred income tax consequences that result 
from its activities pursuant to the provisions of ASC 740 as if it were a separate taxpayer rather than a member of the 
Parent Company’s consolidated income tax group. No income tax benefit is recognized for its net operating loss and 
other deferred tax assets because realization of these future deductions does not meet the more likely than not standard 
such that they are subject to a full valuation allowance.  
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

Not applicable. 
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined 
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of 
December 31, 2022, which is the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were 
not effective as of December 31, 2022 as a result of a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting 
as described below.  

In light of the material weakness in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, we performed 
additional procedures to ensure that our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K were prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). Following such additional 
procedures, our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has concluded that 
our consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows for the periods presented in this Form 10-K, in conformity with GAAP. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, 
as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation 
of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of 
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 based on the framework in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (2013 framework). Based on this evaluation, due to the material weaknesses described below, we 
concluded that the system of internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2022. 

In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, management 
identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis. 

As of December 31, 2022, the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to the 
ineffective design and operation of information technology (IT) general controls over the IT systems supporting the 
Company’s subsidiary, Homeowners of America (HOA). Business process controls (automated and manual) that are 
dependent on the ineffective IT systems, or that rely on data produced from systems impacted by the ineffective IT 
general controls, are also deemed ineffective. We acquired HOA on April 5, 2021 and HOA was excluded from our 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting in 2021. 

Notwithstanding our material weakness, we have concluded that the financial statements and other financial 
information included in this Annual Report fairly present in all material respects our financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. 

In the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company acquired RWS, as well as other insignificant businesses. As 
permitted by related SEC staff interpretive guidance for newly acquired businesses, the Company excluded these 



159 

acquired businesses from management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2022. The businesses acquired during 2022 represented approximately 6% of the total 
assets and 4% of total revenue of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 has been audited by 
Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included below. 

Planned Remediation Activities 

Our planned remediation efforts related to the above identified material weakness include: 

• Reassess the existing IT general controls to determine if they are appropriately designed to meet the control 
objectives; 

• Perform ongoing trainings with control performers to improve documentation that supports effective control 
activities, including IT general controls over logical user access; 

• Design and implement additional monitoring controls necessary to detect misstatements over data produced by 
relevant financial systems at HOA;  

• Determine if additional investments are needed to upgrade or replace existing systems which do not have the 
appropriate infrastructure to meet the requirements of our internal control framework; and 

• Expand the available resources at the Company with experience in designing and implementing control 
activities, including information technology general controls and automated controls. 

We plan to continue to assess our internal controls and procedures and intend to take further action as necessary or 
appropriate to address any other matters we identify. See “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors — We identified material 
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to remediate these material weaknesses, or 
if we identify additional material weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal 
controls, we may not be able to accurately or timely report our financial condition or results of operations, which may 
adversely affect our business and stock price.” 

Remediation of Prior Material Weaknesses 

As discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the year ended December 31, 2021, management had 
identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021 related to (i) the 
design and implementation of information technology general controls in the areas of user access and program change-
management for systems, and related process-level automated controls, supporting the Company’s internal control 
processes (ii) the identification, design, implementation, and retention of evidence of control activities, including 
controls over the completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity that is used in the operation of its 
control activities; and, (iii) the quantity of personnel across the organization to design and operate internal controls 
commensurate with the nature, growth, and complexity of our business.  

Management identified the people, process and technology necessary to strengthen our internal control over 
financial reporting and to address the material weaknesses identified as of December 31, 2021. We began implementing 
certain of these measures in the fourth quarter of 2021 and continued to develop remediation plans and implemented 
additional measures throughout 2022. 

We have remediated the material weaknesses identified as of December 31, 2021, through the following: 

• We hired a new Chief Financial Officer and Controller in November 2022, and a new Chief Financial Officer at 
HOA in August 2022; all of these individuals are experienced finance and accounting professionals for public 
companies; 
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• we performed a full risk assessment across the company to identify and analyze risks which resulted in the 
identification, design, and implementation of control activities, including IT general controls, to support our 
control objectives; 

• We recruited additional personnel with the appropriate skills and experience to operate the internal controls 
required by the nature, pace, and complexity of our business, in addition to utilizing third-party consultants and 
specialists, to supplement our internal resources; 

• We integrated certain business units into our enterprise resource planning (ERP) system and designed and 
implemented additional automation for reporting into our ERP; and 

• We performed on-going trainings with control performers to improve documentation that supports effective 
control activities, including evidence over the completeness and accuracy of information produced by the entity 
and management review controls. 

As discussed above, while Management has identified a material weakness as of December 31, 2022, we have 
completed our evaluation of the updated internal controls and remediation procedures associated with the material 
weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting identified as of December 31, 2021, and have determined that 
those material weaknesses have been remediated. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Except as noted above, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures 

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, 
as specified above. Our management recognizes that any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is 
based upon certain judgments and assumptions, and cannot provide absolute assurance that its objectives will be met. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Porch Group, Inc. 
 
Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
We have audited Porch Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, because of the effect of the material 
weakness described below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Porch Group, Inc. (the Company) 
has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on the COSO 
criteria. 
 
As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management’s 
assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal 
controls of 2022 acquisitions, which are included in the 2022 consolidated financial statements of the Company and 
constituted 6% of total assets as of December 31, 2022 and 4% of revenues for the year then ended. Our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting of the Company also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial 
reporting of the 2022 acquisitions. 
 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will 
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in 
management’s assessment. Management has identified a material weakness related to the ineffective design and 
operation of information technology (IT) general controls over the IT systems supporting the Company’s subsidiary, 
Homeowners of America (HOA). Business process controls (automated and manual) that are dependent on the 
ineffective IT systems, or that rely on data produced from systems impacted by the ineffective IT general controls, were 
also determined to be ineffective. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related 
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes and financial statement schedule listed in the 
Index at Item 15(a). This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests 
applied in our audit of the 2022 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated 
March 16, 2023, which expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB 
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and 
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. 
 
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
 
Seattle, Washington 
March 16, 2023 
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Item 9B. Other Information 

None. 
 

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections 

None. 
 

PART III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance 

The information required by this Item of Form 10-K will be included in our definitive proxy statement (the “Proxy 
Statement”) to be filed with the SEC in connection with the solicitation of proxies for our 2023 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC within 120 days 
after the end of the fiscal year to which this Annual Report relates. 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation 

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

The information required by this Item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

PART IV 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report: 

1. Financial Statements (See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report); 

2. Financial Statement Schedules (Schedule I: Condensed Financial Information of Registrant); 

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required or the required information is shown in 
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto; and 

3. The exhibits listed in the “Exhibit Index” below to this Annual Report are incorporated herein by reference or 
are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in each case as indicated therein (numbered in accordance with 
Item 601 of Regulation S-K).  
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EXHIBIT INDEX 
 
   

Exhibit 
Number      Description 

  
 

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 30, 2020, by and among the Company, PTAC, Merger 
Sub, and Joe Hanauer, in his capacity as the representative of all Pre-Closing Holders (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on July 31, 
2020). 

2.2 First Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 12, 2020, by and among the 
Company, PTAC and Merger Sub (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K 
(File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on October 14, 2020). 

2.3+ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 13, 2021, by and among Homeowners of America 
Holding Corporation, Porch Group, Inc., HPAC, Inc. and HOA Securityholder Representative, LLC, solely 
in its capacity as the Securityholder Representative (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on January 14, 2021). 

2.4+ Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2021, by and among Porch.com, Inc., 
DataMentors Intermediate, LLC and DataMentors, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on January 14, 2021). 

2.5+ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated September 2, 2021, by and between Porch.com, Inc. and Covéa 
Coopérations S.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File 
No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on September 9, 2021). 

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated December 23, 2020 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on December 29, 2020). 

3.2 Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Porch Group, Inc., as filed with the Secretary 
of State of the State of Delaware on June 9, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the 
Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on June 10, 2022). 

4.1 Description of Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Form 10-K (File 
No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on March 31, 2021). 

4.2 Form of Common Stock Certificate of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on December 31, 2020). 

4.3 Form of Warrant Certificate of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on December 31, 2020). 

4.4 Warrant Agreement, dated November 21, 2019, by and between the Company and Continental Stock 
Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on November 26, 2019). 

4.5 Indenture, dated as of September 16, 2021, by and between Porch Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File 
No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on September 17, 2021). 

4.6 Form of 0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2026 (included as Exhibit A in Exhibit 4.5) (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on 
September 17, 2021). 

10.1# Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between the Company and its directors and officers 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on December 31, 2020). 

10.2 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 23, 2020, by and among the 
Company and certain stockholders of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on December 31, 2020). 

10.3# Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex E to the Company’s 
definitive proxy statement/consent solicitation statement/prospectus (File No. 333-249468), filed with the 
SEC on December 3, 2020). 
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10.4# Porch.com, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s 
Form S-8 (File No. 333-253778) filed with the SEC on March 2, 2021). 

10.5# Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with 
the SEC on May 20, 2021). 

10.6# Form of Stock Option Agreement under Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on 
May 20, 2021). 

10.7# Form of Senior Level Performance Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on May 23, 2022). 

10.8# Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice and Agreement (Initial Awards in 2022) 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on May 23, 2022). 

10.9# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under Porch.com, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with 
the SEC on August 16, 2021). 

10.10# Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Porch.com, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with 
the SEC on August 16, 2021). 

10.11# Form of Stock Option Agreement under Porch.com, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on 
August 16, 2021). 

10.12# Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s 
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on August 16, 2021). 

10.13# Employment Agreement, dated February 11, 2022, by and between Porch Group, Inc. and Matthew 
Ehrlichman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), 
filed with the SEC on February 11, 2022). 

10.14# Form of Performance-Based (Market-Condition) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (CEO) under 
Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on February 11, 2022). 

10.15# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (CEO) under Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive 
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed 
with the SEC on February 11, 2022). 

10.16# Letter Agreement, dated November 8, 2013, by and between Porch.com, Inc. and Matthew Neagle 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Company’s Form S-4 (File No. 333-249468), filed with 
the SEC on October 14, 2020). 

10.17# Retention Agreement, dated February 20, 2018, by and between Porch.com, Inc. and Matthew Neagle 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on December 31, 2020). 

10.18# Employment Agreement, dated February 11, 2022, by and between Porch Group, Inc. and Matthew Neagle 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on February 11, 2022). 

10.19# Form of Performance-Based (Market-Condition) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (COO) under 
Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on November 19, 2021). 

10.20# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (COO) under Porch Group, Inc. 2020 Stock Incentive 
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed 
with the SEC on November 19, 2021). 

10.21# First Amendment to Offer Letter, dated February 11, 2022, by and between Porch.com, Inc. and Martin 
Heimbigner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), 
filed with the SEC on February 11, 2022). 
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10.22# Second Amendment to Offer Letter, by and between Porch.com, Inc.  
and Martin Heimbigner, dated August 9, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on August 9, 2022). 

10.23 Form of Capped Call Confirmation between Porch Group, Inc. and each of the option counterparties 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the 
SEC on September 17, 2021). 

10.24# Form of Senior Level Performance Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's 
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed with the SEC on May 23, 2022). 

10.25# Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice and Agreement (Initial Awards in 
2022)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed 
with the SEC on May 23, 2022). 

10.26# CFO Employment Agreement, by and between Porch Group, Inc. and Shawn Tabak, dated November 2, 
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-39142), filed 
with the SEC on November 2, 2022).  

21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 
23.1*

 
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

24.1 Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference from the signature page of this Annual report on Form 10-K). 

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

32.2** Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document. 
101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 
101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 
101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 
101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 
101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document. 

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101). 
 

* Filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
** The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 that accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K are 

deemed furnished and not filed with the SEC and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the 
Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date of this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. 

+ The schedules and exhibits to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. A 
copy of any omitted schedule and/or exhibit will be furnished to the SEC upon request. 

#   Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary 

None. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 16, 2023. 
   

 PORCH GROUP, INC. 
   
 By: /s/ Matthew Ehrlichman 
  Matthew Ehrlichman 
  Chairman of the Board of Directors, and 
  Chief Executive Officer 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on 
March 16, 2023 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated: 
   

Signature      Title 
   

/ s/ Matthew Ehrlichman  Chief Executive Officer 
Matthew Ehrlichman  (principal executive officer) and Chairman 

   
   

/s/ Shawn Tabak  Chief Financial Officer 
Shawn Tabak  (principal financial and accounting officer) 

   
/s/ Sean Kell   

Sean Kell  Director 
   

/s/ Rachel Lam   
Rachel Lam  Director 

   
/s/ Alan Pickerill   

Alan Pickerill  Director 
   

/s/ Amanda Reierson   
Amanda Reierson  Director 

   
/s/ Maurice Tulloch   

Maurice Tulloch  Director 
   

/s/ Camilla Velasquez   
Camilla Velasquez  Director 

   
/s/ Regi Vengalil   

Regi Vengalil  Director 
 
 
 








